
 

 

 

 01.09.2025 

To,  
The Manager- Listing Department  
Bombay Stock Exchange Limited  
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers,  
Dalal Street, Fort 
Mumbai- 400 001  

BSE script: 526159 
 
Subject: Integrated Annual report for the FY 2024-25 and Notice convening the 39th Annual 

General Meeting 

 

The 39thAnnual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the Members of Nikhil Adhesives Limited (“the 

Company”) is scheduled to be held on Tuesday, 23th September, 2025, at 03:00 p.m. IST 

through Video Conferencing (“VC”) / Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”). 

In terms of the requirements of Regulations 34(1) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015, we are submitting herewith the Annual Report along with 

Notice of AGM for the financial year 2024-25. The Company has sent the same today through 

electronic mode to Members who have registered their email id with the Company's 

RTA/Depository Participants. 

The Notice along with the Annual Report for the financial year 2024-25 is also available on the 

website of the Company www.nikhiladhesives.com 

You are requested to kindly take the above information record. 

 

Thanking You,  

Yours Faithfully,  

For, Nikhil Adhesives Limited 

 

 

Rajendra Sanghavi 
Whole-Time Director  
DIN: 00245637 

http://www.nikhiladhesives.com/
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ABOUT US 

Nikhil Adhesives Ltd, a listed company with the Bombay Stock Exchange is a multi-product company manufacturing, selling and 
exporting various types products like Emditex, Emdilith, Emdibind, Emdicryl, Mahacol, Mahafix which are well know in Adhesives, 
Paints, Textile & Construction Chemicals market. 

The company had acquired the emulsion business of M/s. Mafatlal Dyes & Chemicals Limited the Erstwhile German Company -Hoechst 
Dyes and Chemicals Limited in the year 2003. 

Nikhil Adhesives Ltd has been in this business since 1986 and has Five manufacturing units located at Dahanu (Maharashtra), Silvassa 

(Dadra Nagar Haveli), Dahej(Gujarat), Tumkur (Karnataka) and Mehatpur (Himachal Pradesh). A dedicated technology centre at Turbe 
(Navi Mumbai) and 21+ depot’s spread across various states. 

With it’s presence for more than three decades and current production capacity of 135,000T p.a. Nikhil Adhesives Limited has grown in 
local market also expanded it’s horizon into exports to various countries in Asia, Africa and the Middle East. 

All our speciality products are made and delivered using our well automated manufacturing plants, better RM control, substantial 
production capacity, quality consistency, timely deliveries, excellent technical support, nationwide distribution network and excellent 
team. 
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NOTICE 

Notice is hereby given that the Thirty Nineth Annual General Meeting of Nikhil Adhesives Limited 
will be held on Tuesday, 23° September, 2025 at 3:00 PM through Video Conferencing 
(‘VC’)/Other Audio Visual Means (‘OVAM’) to transact the following business: 

The proceedings of the AGM shall be deemed to be conducted at the Registered Office of the Company 

which shall be the deemed venue of the AGM. 

ORDINARY BUSINESS 

1. Toreceive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for 

the financial year ended 31%*March, 2025 together with the reports of the Board of 

Directors and Statutory Auditors thereon. 

2. To declare dividend of Re.0.22 per equity shares of face value of Re. 1 each for the 

financial year ended 31*March, 2025. 

3. To appoint a director in place of Mr. Rajendra Jayantilal Sanghavi, Whole Time 
Director (DIN:00245637), who retires by rotation at this Annual General Meeting and 
being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. 

4. Appointment of M/s PHD & Associates, Chartered accountants (FRN: 111236W) as 

Statutory Auditors of the Company. 

To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without modification(s), the following Resolution 

as an Ordinary Resolution 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 139, 141, 142 and other applicable 

provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 as amended from time to time or any other 

law for the time being in force (including any statutory modification or amendment thereto or 
re-enactments(s) thereof for the time being in force) and pursuant to recommendations of 
Audit Committee and Board of Directors of the Company, M/s PHD & Associates, Chartered 

Accountants (Firm Reg No :111236W) be and are hereby appointed as Statutory Auditors of 

the Company for a term of 5(Five) years to conduct the Statutory Audit From FY 2025-26 to 
FY 2029-2030 and to hold office from the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting till the 
conclusion of Annual General Meeting held for FY 2028-2029, on such remuneration, as may 
be mutually agreed between the Board/ Audit Committee and the Auditors. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any of the Directors or Company Secretary or Chief Financial 
Officer of the Company be and is hereby authorised either severally or jointly to do all such 
acts, deeds and things as may be deemed proper and expedient to give effect to this 

Resolution. 

SPECIAL BUSINESS 

5. Ratification of Remuneration of Cost Auditor M/s. B. F. Modi & Associates, Cost 

Accountants (Firm Registration No. 100604). 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution 

as an Ordinary Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 148(3) and other applicable provisions, if any, of the 
Companies Act, 2013(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s)thereof, for 
the time being in force), and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended 

from time
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to time, the Company hereby ratifies the remuneration of Rs. 50,000/- per annum (Rupees 

Fifty Thousand Only) plus applicable taxes and reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses 
payable to M/s. B. F. Modi& Associates, Cost Accountants (Firm Registration No. 100604), who 
have been appointed by the Board of Directors, as the Cost Auditors of the Company, to 
conduct the audit of the cost records maintained by the Company for the Financial Year ending 

March 31, 2026. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any of the Directors or Company Secretary or Chief Financial 
Officer of the Company be and is hereby authorised either severally or jointly to do all such 

acts, deeds and things as may be deemed proper and expedient to give effect to this 

Resolution.” 

6. Reappointment of Mr. Pravin Kanubhai Laheri (DIN: 00499080) as an Independent 

Director for 2" term of 5 years. 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution 
as a Special Resolution 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Regulation 17(1A) of the Securities and Exchange Board of 
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and provisions of 
Section 149, 150, 152 read with schedule IV and Section 161(1) read with Companies 
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, and other applicable provisions, 

sections, rules of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory modifications or re- 
enactment thereof for the time being in force) and based on the recommendation of the 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and approval of the Board of Directors, Mr.Pravin 
Kanubhai Laheri (DIN: 00499080), who was appointed as an Non- Executive Independent 

Director of the Company for five consecutive years from 01.04.2021 upto 31.03.2026 and 

being eligible, be and is hereby re-appointed as an Non-Executive Independent Director of the 
Company to hold office for a second consecutive term of 5 years effective from 01.04.2026 
upto 31.03.2031 and she_- shall not be liable to retire by ~ rotation.” 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any of the Directors or Company Secretary or Chief Financial 
Officer of the Company be and is hereby authorised either severally or jointly to do all such 
acts, deeds and things as may be deemed proper and expedient to give effect to this 

Resolution.” 

7. Appointment of M/s. Somani & Associates, Practising Company Secretaries, Mumbai, 
a Peer Reviewed Firm as the Secretarial Auditors of the Company. 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution 

as an Ordinary Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 24A & other applicable provisions 

of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”) read with Circulars issued 
thereunder from time to time and Section 204 and other applicable provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013, if any read with Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 (“the Act”), and based on the recommendation of the Audit 

Committee and the approval of the Board of Directors of the Company, consent of the Company 
be and is hereby accorded for appointment of M/s Somani & Associates, Practising Company 
Secretaries, Mumbai, a Peer Reviewed Firm, as Secretarial Auditors of the Company for a period 
of 5 consecutive years, from April 1, 2025 to March 31, 2030 (‘the Term’), on such terms & 

conditions, including remuneration as may be determined by the Board of Directors (hereinafter 

referred to as the ‘Board’ which expression shall include any Committee thereof or person(s) 

authorized by the Board). 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT approval of the Members is hereby accorded to the Board to avail 
or obtain from the Secretarial Auditor, such other services or certificates or reports which the



ee 7 7 7 7 7 ae J 
NIKHIL 
ADRES WES LTD. 

Secretarial Auditor may be eligible to provide or issue under the applicable laws at a 
remuneration to be determined by the Board. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any of the Directors or Company Secretary or Chief Financial 

Officer of the Company be and is hereby authorised either severally or jointly to do all such 

acts, deeds and things as may be deemed proper and expedient to give effect to this 
Resolution.” 

8. To Increase the Overall Limit of Maximum Remuneration Payable to all the Directors 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution 

as a Special Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT, pursuant to the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V and other 

applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), the rules made 

thereunder, and the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015, including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) 

thereof for the time being in force, the consent of the Members of the Company be and is 

hereby accorded to increase the overall limit of remuneration payable to the Directors, 

including the Managing Director, Whole-time Director(s), and Manager, if any, of the Company, 

in respect of any financial year, in excess of 11% of the net profits of the Company computed 

in accordance with Section 198 of the Act, in the following manner: 

(i) To the Managing Director, Whole-time Director and Manager: in excess of 

10% of the net profits of the Company (from the limit of 5% or 10% as applicable as 

per the companies act 2013), as may be decided by the Board from tine to time, 

without any restriction on individual limit(s) on the remuneration payable to any of 

the Managerial Personnel; 

(ii) To the other than Managing Director and Whole-time Director: in excess of 1% 

of the net profits of the Company as may be decided by the Board from time to time. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board (which shall be deemed to include any committee 

constituted/ to be constituted by the Board) be and is hereby authorised to do all such acts, 

deeds, matters and as may be deemed necessary and settle any question or difficulty 

that may arise, for giving effect to this resolution without being required to seek any further 

consent or approval of the Members of the Company.”
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NOTES: 

1 The Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India (‘MCA’) vide its General Circular No. 
14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, the General Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, the 

General Circular No.22/2020 dated June 15, 2020, the General Circular No. 33/2020 dated 

September 28, 2020, General Circular No. 39/2020 dated December 31, 2020, the General 
Circular No. 10/2021 dated June 23, 2021, General Circular No. 20/2021 dated December 08, 

2021, General Circular No. 02/2022 dated May 05, 2022, General Circular No. 11/2022 dated 
December 28, 2022 and General Circular No. 09/2023 dated September 25, 2023and 

September 19, 2024, respectively (“MCA Circulars”), has and other circulars issued in this 
respect (MCA Circulars )allowed in relation to “Clarification on holding of Annual General 

Meeting (AGM) through Video Conferencing (VC) or Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM)”, 
(collectively referred to as “MCA Circulars”) permitted the holding of the Annual General 
Meeting (“AGM”) through VC/OAVM, without the physical presence of the Members at a 
common venue. In compliance with the MCA Circulars, the AGM of the Company is being held 

through VC /OAVM. The registered office of the Company shall be deemed to be the venue for 

the AGM. 
In accordance with the aforesaid MCA — Circulars and Circular Nos. 
SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2020/79datedMay 12, 2020, SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/ 2021/11 

dated January 15, 2021, SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2022/62 dated May 13, 2022 and 

SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/4 dated January 5, 2023 and SEBI Circular No. SEBI/ 
HO/CFD/CFD-PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/167 October O07, 2023 and SEBI/HO/CFD/CFD-PoD- 

2/P/CIR/2024/133 dated October 3, 2024 issued by Securities Exchange Board of India 

(collectively referred to as “SEBI Circulars”), the Notice of the AGM along with the Integrated 

Annual Report for FY 2024-25 is being sent only to those Members whose e-mail addresses are 
registered with the Company or Registrar and Share Transfer Agent or the Depositories through 
electronic means and no physical copy of the Notice has been sent by the Company to any 

Member. The Notice has also been hosted on the website of the Company 

(www.nikhiladhesives.com), BSE website (www.bseindia.com) and on the website of the 

NSDL(www.evoting.nsdl.com). 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, a Member entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is 

entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf and the proxy need not be a 
Member of the Company. Since this e-AGM is being held pursuant to the MCA Circulars through 

VC/OAVM facility, physical attendance of Members has been dispensed with. Accordingly, the 

facility for appointment of proxies by the Members will not be available for the AGM and hence 

the Proxy Form and Attendance Slip are not annexed to this Notice. 
The Statement, pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Act in respect of Special Business of Item 

No. 5, 6, 7 & 8 forms part of this notice. The Additional information, pursuant to Regulations 
36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, and 

Secretarial Standard — 2 issued by Institute of Company Secretaries of India as notified by the 
Central Government on general meetings in respect of Director seeking appointment or re- 

appointment at the Annual General Meeting is furnished as Annexure to the notice. 
Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the scheduled 

time of the commencement of the meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice. 
The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the 
purpose of ascertaining the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
In case of joint holder attending the Meeting, only such joint holder who is higher in the order 

of names will be entitled to vote. 

Non-Resident Indian Members are requested to inform the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent 
(RTA) immediately about the change in residential status on their return to India, if any. 
Members holding shares in physical form are requested to submit a self-attested copy of their 

Permanent Account Number (PAN) card and Original Cancelled Cheque leaf / attested bank 

passbook showing name of the account holder to the Company / Registrar and Transfer Agent, 

as mandated by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) vide circular no. 
SEBI/HO/MIRSD/POD-1/P/CIR/2023/181 dated November 17, 2023.
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Nomination Facility: Those Members holding Shares in the physical form and desirous of making 

/ changing Nomination in respect of their shareholdings in the Company as permitted under 
Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder, are requested to submit 
the prescribed Form No. SH-13, as applicable for this purpose to the Company’s Registrar and 

Share Transfer Agents (‘RTA’) - MUFG Intime India Private Limited (Formerly Link Intime India 

Private Limited), who will provide the form on request. In respect of shares held in electronic / 

demat form, the Members may please contact their respective depository participant. 
A person, whose name is recorded in the register of members or in the register of beneficial 
owners of the Company, as on the cut-off date i.e.,Tuesday, 16° September, 2025 only shall 

be entitled to avail the facility of e-voting, either through remote e-voting and voting at the 

AGM. A person who is not a member as on the cut-off date should treat this notice for 
information purposes only. The Register of Members and the Share Transfer Books of the 

Company will remain closed from 17‘September, 2025 to 23 September, 2025 (both days 

inclusive). 

The dividend on Equity Shares as recommended by the Board of Directors, if declared, will be 
payable to those Equity Shareholders whose names stand on the Register of Members of the 
Company on 16"September, 2025. If shares are held in the electronic form, the dividend will 
be payable to the beneficial owners as per details furnished by the Depositories for this purpose. 

Members are requested to notify immediately any change of address, contact no., mandates, 
Bank Details and consolidate their holdings into one folio in case they hold shares under 
multiple folios in the identical order of names; 
i. To their Depository Participants (DPs) in respect of their electronic shares account, and 

ii. To the Company’s Registrar - MUFG Intime India Private Limited (Formerly Link Intime India 
Private Limited) in respect of their physical shares, if any, quoting their folio numbers. 

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent 
Account Number (PAN) by every participant in securities market. The Members holding shares 

in electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit their PAN to their Depository Participants 

with whom they are maintaining their demat accounts. The Members holding shares in physical 
form can submit their PAN to the Company/ MUFG Intime India Private Limited Link (Formerly 
Intime India Private Limited) 

Any Shareholders desiring any information relating to the accounts are requested to write to 
the Company at investors@nikhiladhesives.com at an early date so as to enable the 
management to keep the information ready. 
All unclaimed dividends have been transferred to the credit of Investor Education and Protection 

Fund (the Fund) established by the Central Government. The Shareholders are hereby informed 

that pursuant to Section 125 of the Act, the Company will be obliged to transfer to the credit 
of the said Fund any money lying in the Unpaid Dividend Accounts remaining unclaimed for a 
period of seven years from the dates they became first due for payment. In accordance with 

provisions of the said Section, no claims shall lie against the Company or the Fund in respect 

of individual amounts of dividend. The Company has uploaded the details of unpaid and 
unclaimed amounts lying with the Company on the website of the Company 
www.nikhiladhesives.com and on the website of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs. 
Those Shareholders who have not claimed dividend of FY 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20, 2020- 

21,2021-22, 2022-23 and 2023-24 are being requested to apply before the Company’s 
Registrar to Share Transfer Agent MUFG Intime India Private Limited (Formerly Link Intime 
India Private Limited) via email id to:rnt.helpdesk@in.mpms.mufg.com or are requested to 
send a letter for your claim to the RTA Registered Office address. Pursuant to the provisions of 

Sections 124 and 125 of the Act and the IEPF Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and 
Refund) Rules, 2016, (“the Rules”) as amended, all shares on which dividend has not been paid 
or claimed for seven consecutive years or more shall be transferred to IEPF Authority as notified 

by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs. The voting rights on shares transferred to IEPF remains 
frozen until the rightful owner claims the shares. The Shareholders whose dividend/shares have 

been/will be transferred to the IEPF Authority, can claim the same from the IEPF Authority by 
following the procedure as_ detailed on the website of IEPF Authority 
http ://www.iepf.gov.in/IEPF/refund. html. 
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Pursuant to amended Regulation 40 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015, effective from 01% April, 2019, except in case of transmission or 

transposition of securities, requests for effecting transfer of securities shall not be processed 
unless the securities are held in the dematerialised form with a depository. The Company in 
this regard had sent letters to the Shareholders holding shares in physical form informing them 

about the above requirement. All Shareholders holding shares in physical form are requested 
to demat their shares at the earliest. 

Shareholders may note that the Income Tax Act, 1961, as amended by the Finance Act, 2020, 

mandates that dividends paid or distributed by a Company after 15 April, 2020 shall be taxable 

in the hands of the Shareholders. The Company shall therefore be required to deduct Tax at 

Source (TDS) at the time of making the final dividend. In order to enable us to determine the 
appropriate TDS rate as applicable, Members are requested to submit the documents in 

accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961. 

i. For Resident Shareholders, TDS shall be made under Section 194 of the Income Tax Act, 
1961 at 10% (Ten percent) on the amount of Dividend declared and paid by the Company 
during financial year 2024-25 provided PAN is registered by the Shareholder. If PAN is not 
registered, TDS would be deducted @ 20% (Twenty percent) as per Section 206AA of the 

Income Tax Act, 1961. However, no tax shall be deducted on the Dividend payable to a 
Resident Individual if the total dividend to be received by them during financial year 2024- 
25 does not exceed Rs.10,000/-. In cases where the Shareholder provides Form 15G 
(applicable to any person other than a Company or a Firm or HUF)/Form 15H (applicable 

to an Individual above the age of 60 years), provided that the eligibility conditions are 
being met, no TDS shall be deducted. 

li. For Non-resident Shareholders, taxes are required to be withheld in accordance with the 

provisions of Section 195 of the Income Tax Act, 1961 at the rates in force. As per the 

relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961, the withholding tax shall be at the rate 
of 20% (Twenty percent) (plus applicable surcharge and cess) on the amount of Dividend 
payable to them. However, as per Section 90 of the Income Tax Act, 1961, the non-resident 

Shareholder has the option to be governed by the provisions of the Double Tax Avoidance 
Agreement (DTAA) between India and the country of tax residence of the Shareholder, if 
they are more beneficial to them. For this purpose, i.e. to avail the Tax Treaty benefits, 
the non-resident shareholder will have to provide the following: 

e Self-attested copy of Tax Residency Certificate (TRC) obtained from the tax authorities 
of the country of which the Shareholder is resident. 

e Self-declaration in Form 10F if all the details required in this form are not mentioned 

in the TRC. 
« Self-attested copy of the PAN Card allotted by the Indian Income Tax authorities. 
e Self-declaration certifying the following points: 

o Member is and will continue to remain a tax resident of the country of its residence 

during the financial year 2024-25; 
o Member is eligible to claim the beneficial DTAA rate for the purposes of tax 

withholding on dividend declared by the Company; 
o Member has no reason to believe that its claim for the benefits of the DTAA is 

impaired in any manner; 

o Member is the ultimate beneficial owner of its shareholding in the Company and 
Dividend receivable from the Company; and 

o Member does not have a taxable presence or a permanent establishment in India 

during the financial year 2024-25. 

lii. Please note that the Company is not obligated to apply the beneficial DTAA rates at the 

time of tax deduction/withholding on dividend amounts. Application of beneficial DTAA rate 
Shall depend upon the completeness and satisfactory review by the Company of the 
documents submitted by Non-Resident Shareholder.
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iv. Accordingly, in order to enable us to determine the appropriate TDS/withholding tax rate 

applicable, we request you to provide these details and documents as mentioned above 
before 03'° September, 2025. 

v. Kindly note that the aforementioned documents are required to be submitted via email to 

investors@nikhiladhesives.com on or before 03 September, 2025 in order to enable the 

Company to determine and deduct appropriate TDS/withholding tax rate. No 

communication on the tax determination/deduction shall be entertained post 23 
September 2025 . It may be further noted that in case the tax on said dividend is deducted 
at a higher rate in absence of receipt of the aforementioned details/ documents from you, 

there would still be an option available with you to file the return of income and claim an 

appropriate refund, if eligible. 
vi. The soft copy of TDS certificate shall be emailed to you at your registered e-mail ID in 

accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 after filing of the quarterly 

TDS Returns of the Company, post payment of the said Dividend. 

18. Voting through Electronic means: 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the 
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of 

SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (as amended), and the 

Circulars issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs dated April 08, 2020, April 13, 2020 and 
May 05, 2020 the Company is providing facility of remote e-Voting to its Members in respect 
of the business to be transacted at the AGM. For this purpose, the Company has entered into 

an agreement with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) for facilitating voting through 

electronic means, as the authorized agency. The facility of casting votes by a member using 
remote e-Voting system as well as venue voting on the date of the AGM will be provided by 

NSDL: 

The voting period begins on Saturday, 20° September, 2025 (9:00 AM) and ends on the 
Monday, 22"4 September, 2025(5:00 PM). During this period Shareholders of the Company, 
holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialised form, as on the cut-off date (record 
date) of Tuesday, 16"°September, 2025 may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module 

shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. Those Shareholders who have already voted 
prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to vote at the meeting venue. 

How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system? 

Type of |Login Method 

shareholders 

Individual 1. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL Viz. 
Shareholders holding https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a 
securities in demat mobile. On the e-Services home page click on the “Beneficial Owner” 

mode with NSDL, icon under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’section, this will 
prompt you to enter your existing User ID and Password. After 

successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services 
under Value added services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e- 
Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on 
company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will 
be re-directed to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during 

the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during 
the meeting. 

2. If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is 
available at https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select “Register Online for 

IDeAS Portal” or click at 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp 

a
)
 

Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the 
following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal 
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Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is 
launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under 
‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have to 

enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number hold 
with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the 
screen. After successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL 

Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company 
name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be 

redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the 
remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the 
meeting. 

4. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App “NSDL 
Speede” facility by scanning the QR code mentioned below for 

seamless voting experience. 

NSDL Mobile App is available on 

& Google Play 

Individual 

Shareholders holding 
securities in demat 

mode with CDSL 

|. Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through 
their existing user id and password. Option will be made available to 
reach e-Voting page without any further authentication. The users to 

login Easi /Easiest are requested to visit CDSL_ website 
www.cdslindia.com and click on login icon & New System Myeasi Tab 
and then user your existing my easi username & password. 

2. After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e- 

Voting option for eligible companies where the evoting is in progress as 
per the information provided by company. On clicking the evoting 

option, the user will be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service 
provider for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or 

joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. Additionally, there 
is also links provided to access the system of all e-Voting Service 
Providers, so that the user can visit the e-Voting service providers’ 

website directly. 

3. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is 
available at CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click on login & New 
System Myeasi Tab and then click on registration option. 

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing 
Demat Account Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting link available on 
www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will authenticate the user 
by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat 

Account. After successful authentication, user will be able to see the e- 

Voting option where the evoting is in progress and also able to directly 
access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers. 
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Individual You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through 

Shareholders (holding your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. 
securities in demat upon logging in, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Click on e-Voting option, 

mode) login through you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful 
their depository authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name 

participants or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting 
website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or 

joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned 
below: 
Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system 

A) Login method for e-Voting and }] 

securities in demat mode 
ining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holdin 

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, 

Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account 
maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile 

number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility. 

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below: 

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID 

and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website. 

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues 

related to login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL. 

Login type Helpdesk details 
Individual Shareholders holding | Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL 

securities in demat mode with NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.inor call at 

022 - 4886 7000 

Individual Shareholders holding Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL 

securities in demat mode with CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at 

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free no. 1800- 
21-09911 

B) Login Method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than 
Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode and shareholders holding 

securities in physical mode. 

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website? 

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 
https: //www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. 

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which 
is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. 

3. Anew screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and 
a Verification Code as shown on the screen. 

Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at 
https: //eservices.nsdil.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL 

eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 
2 1.e. Cast your vote electronically. 

4. Your User ID details are given below : 
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Manner of holding shares i.e. | Your User ID is: 
Demat (NSDL or CDSL) or Physical 
a) For Members who hold shares in 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID 

demat account with NSDL. For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and 
Client ID is 12****** then your user ID is 
IN3SOOFFFL DEAK KEE, 

b) For Members who hold shares in 16 Digit Beneficiary ID 

demat account with CDSL. For example if your Beneficiary ID is 

L2QFFKKKKKKKKEKKX then your user ID Is 
1 DKK KK KK KKK KK KKK 

c) For Members holding shares in EVEN Number followed by Folio Number 
Physical Form. registered with the company 

For example if folio number is 001*** and 
EVEN is 101456 then user ID _ is 
101456001*** 

5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given 
below: 

a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing 
password to login and cast your vote. 

b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve 

the ‘initial password’ which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your 
‘initial password’, you need to enter the ‘initial password’ and the system will 
force you to change your password. 

c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’? 
(1) If your email ID ts registered in your demat account or with the company, 

your ‘initial password’ is communicated to you on your email ID. Trace 
the email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email and 

open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The password to 
open the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits 
of client ID for CDSL account or folio number for shares held in physical 

form. The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial password’. 

(ii) If your email ID ts not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in 
process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered. 

6. If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “Initial password” or have 
forgotten your password: 

a) Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?” (If you are holding shares in your demat 

account with NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

b) Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) 

option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send 
a request at evoting@nsdl.com mentioning your demat account number/folio 

number, your PAN, your name and your registered address etc. 
d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the 

votes on the e-Voting system of NSDL. 

7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting 
on the check box. 

8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button. 

9. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open. 

10
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Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system. 

ow to cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system? 

1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you 
are holding shares and whose voting cycle and General Meeting is in active status. 

2. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting 
period and casting your vote during the General Meeting. For joining virtual meeting, you need 

to click on “VC/OAVM" link placed under “Join Meeting”. 
Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens. 

Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number 

of shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when 
prompted. 

5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed. 
6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the 

confirmation page. 

7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 

= 
oe 

General Guidelines for shareholders 

i. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned 
copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with attested specimen 
signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e- 
mail to shivharijalancs@gmail.com with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in. 

. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care 
to keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five 
unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In such an event, you will need to go through 

the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset Password?” option available on 
www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password. 

. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and 
e-voting user manual for Shareholders available at the download section of www.evoting.nsdl.com 
or call on 022 - 4886 7000 or send a request to Mr.Suketh Shetty evoting@nsdl.co.in 

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for 

procuring user id and password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions set 

out in this notice: 

1. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy 

of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self- 
attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to investors@nikhiladhesives.com 

In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16 digit 

beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self-attested 
scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to 
investors@nikhiladhesives.com. If you are an Individual shareholders holding securities in demat 
mode, you are requested to refer to the login method explained at step 1 (A) i.e. Login method for 

e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat 

mode. 
Alternatively shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.co.in for procuring user id and 
password for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents. 
In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, 
Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat 

account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are required to update 

their mobile number and email ID correctly in their demat account in order to access e-Voting facility. 

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR e-VOTING ON THE DAY OF THE AGM ARE AS UNDER:- 

11 
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The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned above for 
remote e-voting. 
Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and have 

not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from 
doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system in the AGM. 

Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the AGM. However, they 

will not be eligible to vote at the AGM. 

The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with the facility for e- 
Voting on the day of the AGM shall be the same person mentioned for Remote e-voting. 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER: 

3 

WN
 

Member will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM through the NSDL e-Voting 
system. Members may access by following the steps mentioned above for Access to NSDL e-Voting 
system. After successful login, you can see link of “VC/OAVM link” placed under “Join General 
meeting” menu against company name. You are requested to click on VC/OAVM link placed under Join 
General Meeting menu. The link for VC/OAVM will be available in Shareholder/Member login where the 
EVEN of Company will be displayed. Please note that the members who do not have the User ID and 
Password for e-Voting or have forgotten the User ID and Password may retrieve the same by following 
the remote e-Voting instructions mentioned in the notice to avoid last minute rush. 

Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better experience. 
Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any 

disturbance during the meeting. 

Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting 
via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their respective network. It is 
therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches. 
Shareholders who would like to express their views/have questions may send their questions in advance 

mentioning their name demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at 

investors@nikhiladhesives.com. The same will be replied by the company suitably. 

Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions during the meeting may register 

themselves as a speaker by sending their request in advance at least 7 days prior to meeting mentioning 
their mame, demat account number/follio number, email id, mobile number’ at 

investors@nikhiladhesives.com. The Shareholders who do not wish to speak during the AGM but have 
queries may send their queries in advance 7 days prior to meeting mentioning their name, demat account 

number/folio number, email id, mobile number at investors@nikhiladhesives.com. These queries will be 
replied to you by the Company suitably by email. 

Those Shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express their 
views/ask questions during the meeting. 

Other General Information 

i, Since the meeting will be conducted through VC/OAVM facility, the Route Map is not annexed in this 

Notice. 

The voting rights of Shareholders shall be in proportion to their share of the paid-up equity share 
capital of the Company as on the cut-off date (record date) of the Tuesday, 16" September, 2025. 

Mrs. Poonam Somani, Practicing Company Secretary & Proprietor of M/s Somani & Associates, 

Company Secretaries has been appointed as the Scrutiniser to scrutinise the e-voting process in a 

fair and transparent manner. The Scrutiniser shall, immediately after the conclusion of voting at the 
AGM, count the vote cast at the AGM and thereafter unblock the vote cast through remote e-voting 

in the presence of at least two witnesses not in the employment of the Company. The Scrutinizer 

shall submit a consolidated Scrutinizer’s report of the total votes cast in favour of or against the 
resolutions, within 2 working days of conclusion of the AGM to the Chairman of the Company, who 
shall counter sign the same. The Chairman will declare the result of voting forthwith on receiving of 
the Scrutinizer’s Report. 

The result declared along with the Scrutinizer report shall be placed on the Company’s website 

www.nikhiladhesives.com the result will also be communicated to the Stock Exchange where the 

shares of the Company are listed. 

12
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5. Subject to receipt of the requisite number of votes, the resolutions shall be deemed to have been 

passed on the date of AGM. 

6. All documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and Explanatory Statement shall be open for 

inspection at the Registered Office of the Company during normal business hours (10:00 AM to 6:00 
PM) on all working days, up to and including the date of the AGM of the Company. 

7. The Company has been maintaining, inter alia, the following statutory registers at its registered 
office at Mumbai: 

i. Register of contracts or arrangements in which Directors are interested under Section 189 of 
the Act. 

ii. Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their Shareholding under Section 170 
of the Act. 

ili. Register of Charges; 

iv. Register of Deposits; and other Statutory Register under the Companies Act, 2013. 

In accordance with the MCA circulars, the said registers shall be made accessible for inspection 

through electronic mode, which shall remain open and be accessible to any Members during the 
continuance of the meeting. 

8. Persons who have acquired the shares of the Company after the dispatch of the Annual Report and 

are Members as on 16" September, 2025. (being record date for the purpose of voting), may send 
a request for obtaining their User ID and Password to 

rnt.helpdesk@in.mpms.mufg.com/investors@nikhiladhesives.com or contact MUFG Intime India 
Private Limited (Formerly Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd) on 022-4918 6000/022- 4918 6060. 

Contact Details 

M/s Nikhil Adhesives Limited 

Registered Office:A-902, Kaledonia Building, Sahar Road, Opp. Vijay Nagar, 

Andheri (East) Mumbai-400069. 
Tel: 022-2683 6564/58/59 Fax: 022-26840854 

Email ID: investors@nikhiladhesives.com 
CIN: L51900MH1986PLC041062 

Company 

MUFG Intime India Private Limited (Formerly Link Intime India Private 

Limited) C-101, 247 Park, LBS Marg,Vikhroli (West), Mumbai- 400 083 
Tel: 022 49186000/6270 Fax: 022-4098 6060 

Registrar and 
Share Transfer 

ment Email ID: :rnt.helpdesk@in.mpms.mufg.com 

Date: 08.08.2025 By order of the Board of Directors 

Place: Mumbai For Nikhil Adhesives Limited 

Sd/- 

Umesh J. Sanghavi 

Chairman and Managing Director 

DIN: 00491220 

13
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ANNEXURE TO NOTICE 

Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 

As required by Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act), the following Explanatory Statement sets 

out all material facts relating to the business mentioned under Item number 5, 6, 7&8. 

The Explanatory Statement for Item No. 4 is provided pursuant to Regulation 36(5) of the SEBI Listing 
Regulations. However, the same is strictly not required as per Section 102 of the Act. 

Item No. 4 

Based on the recommendations of the Audit Committee, the Board of Directors at their meeting held on 8" 
August2025, approved the appointment of M/s PHD & Associates as the Statutory Auditors of the Company 
to hold office for a term of 5 (five) consecutive years from the conclusion of the 39" Annual General Meeting 

until the conclusion of the 44" Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held for the FY 2029-30. The 

Board of Directors, in consultation with the Audit Committee, may alter and vary the terms and conditions 

of appointment, including remuneration, in such manner and to such extent as may be mutually agreed 
with the Statutory Auditors 

M/s PHD & Associates have consented to the aforesaid appointment and confirmed that their appointment, 
if made, will be accordance with the provisions of section 139, 141 and other relevant provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder. 

Details as required under regulation 36 (5) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 are as under: 

The fee proposed to be paid to M/s PHD & Associates towards the statutory audit for the FY 2025-26 shall 
not exceed payment of Rs. 10 lakhs p.a as audit fees and Rs. 90,000/- per quarter for Limited Review 

Report, plus out of pocket expenses, with the authority of Board of Directors to make revision as it may 

deem fit for the balance term, based on the recommendation of Audit Committee. 

The fee for services in the nature of statutory certifications and other permissible non-audit services will be 
in addition to the statutory audit fee as above and will be decided by the management in consultation with 

the Statutory Auditors. The provision of such permissible non-audit services will be reviewed and approved 
by the Audit Committee. 

The Audit Committee and the Board of Directors, while recommending the appointment of M/s PHD & 
Associates as the statutory auditor, have considered, among other things, the credential of the firm and 

eligibility criteria prescribed under the act. 

Brief Profile of PHD & Associates 

In March 2010, PHD & Associates was established with the merger of three independent reputed CA Firms. 

In October 2021, P. Parmar & Associates, a CA Firm with 30 years of experience merged with PHD. In April 
2024, C.C. Dalal & Co, a CA Firm with more than 70 years of experience merged with PHD. 

PHD is an integrated, full service CA Firm with vast experience in offering broad range of services as a 
solution provider to the requirements of the corporate world. 

The range of services include Assurance, Direct taxes, Indirect taxes, Risk advisory, Transaction advisory, 

Total handholding for Start-ups, Corporate laws advisory, FEMA & FDI advisory 

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives is concerned or 
interested, financially or otherwise, in the Resolution set out at Item No. 4 of the Notice. 

The Board recommends the Resolution set out in Item No. 4 for approval of members as ordinary resolution. 

Item No. 5 
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Pursuant to Section 148 of the Act read with the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, as 

amended from time to time, the Company is required to undertake the audit of its cost records for products 

covered under the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 to be conducted by a Cost Accountant 
in practice. 

In compliance with the above, M/s B. F. Modi& Associates, Cost Accountants, (Firm Registration No. 100604) 
were re-appointed as Cost Auditors for the year ending 31% March, 2026 by the Board of Directors on the 

recommendation of the Audit Committee at a remuneration of Rs.50,000/- p.a. (plus applicable taxes and 
reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses) payable to the Cost Auditors for FY 2025-26. 

As per Rule 14 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 the remuneration payable to the Cost 
Auditors as approved by the Board has to be ratified subsequently by the Members of the Company. 
Accordingly, consent of the Members is sought for passing an Ordinary Resolution as set out at Item No.5 
of the Notice for ratification of the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors for the financial year ending 

31° March, 2026. 

The Board recommends the Resolution No. 5 for the approval of the Members as an Ordinary resolution. 

None of the Directors/Key Managerial Personnel of the Company/their relatives is, in any way, concerned 
or interested, financially or otherwise in the resolution set out at Item No. 5 of the Notice except to the 
extent of their Shareholding, if any. 

Item No. 6 

Re-appointment of Mr. Pravin Kanubhai Laheri (DIN: 00499080) as an Independent Director for 

2nd term of 5 years. 

Mr. Pravin Kanubhai Laheri was appointed as a Non-Executive Independent Director for a first term of 5 
years w.e.f 26.03.2021 with the approval of members. 

As per Section 149(10) of the Act, an Independent Non-Executive Director shall hold office for a term of 

upto five consecutive years on the Board of a Company, but shall be eligible for re-appointment on passing 
a special resolution by the Company for another term of upto five consecutive years on the Board of a 
Company. 

Based on recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee and in terms of the provisions of 

Sections 149, 150, 152 read with Schedule IV and any other applicable provisions of the Act and SEBI 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, Mr. Pravin Kanubhai Laheri, being 
eligible for re-appointment as a Non-Executive Independent Director and offering himself for re- 

appointment, is proposed to be re-appointed as a Non-Executive Independent Director for second term of 
five consecutive years from 01.04.2026 upto 31.03.2031 

The Board considers that his continued association would be of immense benefit to the Company and it is 

desirable to continue to avail services of Mr. Pravin Kanubhai Laheri as a Non-Executive Independent 
Director. Accordingly, the Board recommends passing of the Special Resolution in relation to reappointment 
of Mr. Pravin Kanubhai Laheri as a Non-Executive Independent Director for another term of five consecutive 
years for the approval by the shareholders of the Company. 

The brief profile Mr. Pravin Kanubhai Laheri is given below 

Mr. Pravin K. Laheri is a retired Indian Administrative Service (IAS) officer, with over 35 years of 
experience in governance, industrial development, and public administration. He holds a degree in Law 
from Bombay University and an M.Sc. (Eco.) from the University of Wales. 

Mr. Laheri has worked in various senior positions in Gujarat's government, including Principal Secretary to 
five Chief Ministers and Chief Secretary of Gujarat. He initiated key projects like the Special Credit Scheme, 
benefiting over 200,000 small artisans. His efforts were instrumental in founding the National Institute of 
Fashion Technology in Gandhinagar. 
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In addition, Mr. Laheri has held leadership roles in major public-sector companies like Gujarat Narmada 

Valley Fertiliser Co., Gujarat State Fertiliser Co., and Gujarat State Investments Ltd. After retiring from 

IAS, he oversaw the completion of the Sardar Sarovar Project as Chairman & Managing Director of Sardar 

Sarovar Narmada Nigam Ltd. 

He continues to serve as a guest faculty member at several institutions, including IIM and AMA. 

The Board of Directors accordingly recommends the resolution set out at Item No. 6 of the accompanying 
Notice for the approval of the Members as the special resolution. None of the Directors, Key Managerial 
Personnel, and/or their relatives, except Mr. Pravin Kanubhai Laheri, in any way, concerned or interested 

in the resolution. 

Item No. 7 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Regulation 24A of SEBI 

(Listing Regulations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended from time to time and 

based on the recommendations of the Audit Committee, the Board of Directors at their meeting held on 

August 08, 2025, approved the appointment of M/s Somani & Associates, Company Secretaries, as the 
Secretarial Auditors of the Company for the first term of 5(Five) consecutive years to conduct the Secretarial 
Audit of the Company from F.Y. 2025-26 to F.Y. 2029-30. The Board of Directors, in consultation with the 
Audit Committee, may alter and vary the terms and conditions of appointment, including remuneration, in 

such manner and to such extent as may be mutually agreed with the Secretarial Auditors. Further, the 

Company has received the consent letter as well as eligibility letter from the audit firm for their proposed 

appointment as secretarial auditors for the first term of 5(Five) consecutive years commencing from F.Y. 

2025-26. Details as required under regulation 36 (5) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 are as under: 

The brief profile of the Secretarial Auditor 

M/s Somani & Associates, Company Secretaries, Mumbai will be appointed for the first term of 5(Five) 
consecutive years to conduct the Secretarial Audit of the Company from F.Y. 2025-26 to F.Y. 2029-30. 

The Audit Committee and the Board of Directors, while recommending the appointment of M/s Somani & 

Associates, Company Secretaries, as the Secretarial Auditor, have considered, among other things, the 
credential of the firm and eligibility criteria prescribed under the act. 

M/s. Somani & Associates is an eminent Practicing Company Secretaries firm based in Mumbai. This firm is 
founded by Poonam Somani having 15 plus years of experience in practice. 

Ms. Poonam Somani, a Fellow Member of the ICSI (Year 2009) and LLB from Rajasthan University (Year 

2010). The firm has advised several listed companies, unlisted companies and start-ups. The firm has been 

empanelled with four large Scheduled Commercial Banks and three Security Trustees towards conducting 
due diligence and carrying out other activities. The Board recommends the ordinary resolution set forth in 

this notice for the approval of Members. 

Item No. 8 

Pursuant to Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act), the total managerial remuneration payable 

by a public company, to Its Directors, including Managing Director and Whole-time Director, and its Manager 

in respect of any financial year, shall not exceed 11% of net profits of that Company for that financial year 

computed as per provisions of Section 198 of the Act, as detailed hereunder: 
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A. To Managing Director / Whole-time Director / Manager: - 

Condition Maximum Remuneration in any financial year 

Company with one Managing Director | 5% of the net profits of the company. 

(MD)/Whole-time Director (WTD)/ 

Manager 

Company with more than one MD/WTD/ 10% of the net profits of the company. 

Manager 

B. To other Directors who are neither Managing Directors nor Whole-time Directors: - 

Condition Maximum Remuneration in any financial 

year 

If there is a MD/WTD/Manager 1% of the net profits of the company. 

If there is no MD/WTD/Manager 3% of the net profits of the company. 

As per the Companies Act, 2013 amended over the time, companies may pay remuneration exceeding 

the aforesaid limit of 11%, subject to the provisions of Schedule V to the Act, as well as other above 

limits, with the approval of the members of the Company in general meeting by way of Special 

Resolution. 

The Board of Directors recognizes the need in the current business environment. While our company 

has been successful in maintaining stability and fostering growth, the individual remuneration paid to 

the directors and managerial personal may cross the limit as specified in the section 197 of the 

Companies act, 2013 

Accordingly, the Board of Directors, pursuant to the provisions of the Act as aforesaid, subject to 

approval of the Members of the Company, approved the proposal to increase the overall limit of 

maximum remuneration payable to the Directors, including Managing Director and Whole-time 

Director of the Company as set out In the Notice. 

The Company has not default in payment of dues to any bank or public financial institution or non- 

convertible debenture holders or other secured creditor, if any. 

Except the change in overall limit of maximum remuneration as proposed in the relevant resolution(s), 

all other terms and conditions of the appointment/re-appointment of Managing Director, Whole-time 

Director and other Directors, approved by the Members shall remain unchanged. 

In view of the above and in terms of section 197, Schedule V and other applicable provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and the rules and regulations made there under, as amended, the approval 

of the members of the Company is required by way of a special resolution. 
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None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives is concerned or 

interested in the resolution except to the extent of their remuneration and/or their shareholding in the 

Company, if any. 

Therefore, the Board recommends the proposed resolution as set out in the accompany notice for the 

consideration and approval of the members by way of passing of Special resolution. 

Disclosure required pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standard-2 of ICSI 

Name of the Directors Mr. Rajendra. J. Mr. Pravin K 

Sanghavi Lehri 
Director Identification Number 00245637 00499080 

Date of Birth& Age 11.12.1955 (69 years) 28.03.1945 

(80 years) 

Date of First Appointment Since inception 01.04.2021 

Status Whole Time Director Non- Executive Non 

Independent 

Qualification Diploma in Engineering IAS Graduate, Law Graduate 

& M.Sc. (Eco.) 

Expertise in specific functional 

type 

Businessman Finance, Accounts, Legal and 

Industrial Development, 

Socio-economic 

Development, 

Administration, etc. 

Terms and Conditions of | Re-appointment on retiring | Re- appointment as an Non- 

Appointment/Re-appointment by rotation Executive Independent 

director 

Directorship of Other Companies None None 

Chairman/Member in the | Member of Chairman of Auidt, 
Committees of the Boards of 

Companies 

Corporate Social 

Responsibility 
Committee 

Nomination & Remuneration, 
Stakeholders Relationship 

and Corporate Social 

Responsibility 

Committees 

Shareholding (No. of Shares) 11,97,000 shares 

Disclosure of relationships 
between Directors inter se 

Mr. Umesh J. Sanghavi & 
Mr.Tarak J. Sanghavi are 
brothers of Mr. Rajendra J. 

Sanghavi 

Date: 08.08.2025 

Place: Mumbai 

By order of the Board of 
Directors 

For Nikhil Adhesives 

Limited 

Sd/- 
Umesh J. Sanghavi 
Chairman and Managing 
Director 

DIN: 00491220 
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT 

ABOUT NIKHIL ADHESIVES LIMITED 

With over three decades of industry experience, Nikhil Adhesives Limited (Nikhil) continues to be among 

the leading players in Specialty Chemicals, Industrial Emulsions, Adhesives (Mahacol), and Construction 
Chemicals (Mahafix). With a strong domestic presence across PAN India supported by a robust 

distribution network, the Company leverages its state-of-the-art R&D, modern manufacturing 
infrastructure, and committed team to deliver customer-centric solutions. 

The major thrust continues to be the expansion of consumer products and value-added import 

substitutes, strengthening Nikhil’s position as a trusted solutions provider. 

KEY HIGHLIGHTS FOR 2024-25 

e Commissioning and stabilising of RDP capacity at Dahej. 

e Further automation and digitalisation across Tumkur and Dahej plants. 
e R&D centre at Navi Mumbai upgraded with application testing facilities for construction 

chemical and wood adhesives products. 

e Entry into new export markets. 

GLOBAL ECONOMIC OVERVIEW 

e IMF projects global GDP growth at 3.1% in 2025, down from 3.2% in 2024, with moderation in 
advanced economies. 

e Commodity volatility persists: crude oil expected in the $75-85/bbl range; non-fuel 

commodities to remain firm. 

e Inflationary pressures have eased, though higher-for-longer interest rates in the US and 
Europe continue to weigh on investment. 

e Trade flows show improvement, with WTO estimating 3% global trade growth in 2025, though 
geopolitical risks remain elevated. 

PERFORMANCE OF MAJOR ECONOMIES 

United States: Real GDP growth projected at 1.9% in 2025 (IMF WEO Update, July 2025). 

Euro area: Growth expected to accelerate to 1.0% in 2025 and 1.2% in 2026 (IMF WEO Update, July 

2025). 

Japan: Growth projected at 0.7% in 2025 (IMF WEO Update, July 2025). 

China: Growth projected at 4.8% in 2025 (IMF WEO Update, July 2025). 

Middle East & Central Asia: Regional growth projected at 3.4% in 2025, 3.5% in 2026 (IMF WEO Update, 
July 2025). 

INDIAN ECONOMIC OVERVIEW 

India remained the fastest-growing major economy in FY 2024-25. 

e Real GDP growth (NSO Provisional Estimates, May 30, 2025): 6.5% for FY 2024-25; Q4 FY25 at 7.4%. 

e Private Final Consumption Expenditure (PFCE): up 7.2% YoY in FY 2024-25; Gross Fixed Capital 

Formation (GFCF): up 7.1%. 

e Sectoral performance: Construction +9.4%; Public Administration, Defence & Other Services +8.9%; 

Financial, Real Estate & Professional Services +7.2%. 

19



ee 7 7 7 7 7 ae J 
NIKHIL 
ADRES WES LTD. 

e Trade (Commerce Ministry/PIB): Overall exports (merchandise + services) rose 5.5% to US$ 820.93 

bn in 2024-25; merchandise exports were US$ 437.42 bn (+0.08% YoY). 

e Inflation: CPI average eased to ~4.6% in FY 2024-25 (lowest in six years), within RBI's tolerance 

band. 

¢ Monsoon 2025: India received above-average rains (106% of LPA), arriving early and aiding timely 

sowing. This boosted kharif crop output, strengthened rural consumption, stabilized food prices, and 

supported overall GDP growth. 

UNION BUDGET 2025 — KEY PRIORITIES 

212 lakh crore capex outlay (10% higher YoY). 

Expanded PLI schemes covering chemicals and specialty intermediates. 
Focus on green energy, solarisation, and energy security to lower industrial costs. 
Stronger support to MSMEs through credit guarantees and skilling initiatives. 
Enhanced allocations for agriculture, employment, and social inclusion. 

Paints & Construction Chemicals 

e Organised paints capacity projected to double to ~15 blpa by FY 2028. 

e Construction chemical market expected to grow at 7% CAGR, crossing USD 5.5 billion by 2030. 
e Rising housing and infra projects to benefit adhesive & polymer demand. 

Adhesives & Specialty Chemicals 

e Adhesives market to grow at ~7% CAGR till 2028, reaching USD 3.9 billion. 

e Growth driven by woodworking, packaging, automotive, and consumer repair segments. 

Consumer Sector 

e India expected to become the third-largest consumer market globally by 2027. 
e Premiumisation trend continues, with affluent segments expected to expand to ~88 million 

individuals by 2028. 

SWOT ANALYSIS 

Strengths 

Over 40 years of promoter experience in specialty chemicals. 

Diversified product portfolio across industrial and consumer adhesives. 

Strong nationwide distribution with 5 plants and 22 warehouses and R & D center. 
Partnerships with leading corporates (Asian Paints, Berger, Akzo Nobel, JK Cement, Indigo, DOW, 

BASF,JSW),. 

e Ongoing R&D investments for import substitution and new products. 

Weaknesses 

e Consumer brand awareness still developing compared to established peers. 
e Margins vulnerable to raw material volatility. 

e Export business in early stages of scale. 
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Opportunities 

e Make in India initiatives to drive import substitution. 

e Expansion into untapped packaging adhesives and construction solutions. 

e Growing demand in both domestic and overseas consumer markets. 
e Export potential to South-East Asia, Middle East, and Africa. 

Threats 

e Raw material price fluctuations (linked to crude oil). 
e Government policy changes on imports, duties, and quality standards. 

e High competition in adhesives and construction chemicals. 

e Currency volatility impacting exports. 

OUTLOOK FOR FY 2025-26 

e Nikhil Adhesives will deepen its consumer business (Wood Adhesives (Mahacol) and 
Construction Chemical (Mahafix)) footprint through brand-building, retail expansion and 

influencer engagement. 

e Strong focus on cost-effective RDP for Putty and Tile Adhesive products. 
e Cost efficiencies from automation and higher capacity utilisation to support margins. 
e Cautiously optimistic stance, with growth driven by construction sector recovery, rising 

consumer demand, and product innovations. 

e Development of specialized emulsion for paint industry. 

Sources: IMF World Economic Outlook Update, July 2025; NSO/MOSPI Provisional Estimates (May 30, 

2025); PIB/Commerce Ministry (Trade Data, 2025); RBI/PIB (Inflation Data, 2025). 

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY 

The Company has strong internal control procedures in place that are commensurate with its size and 
operations. The Board of Directors, responsible for the internal control system, sets the guidelines and 
verifies its adequacy, effectiveness and application. The Company’s internal control system is designed 

to ensure management efficiency, measurability and verifiability, reliability of accounting and 

management information, compliance with all applicable laws and regulations, and the protection of the 
Company’s assets. This will help identify and manage the Company's risks (operational, compliance- 
related, economic and financial). 

HUMAN RESOURCES/INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS 

The Company believes that employees are the foundation for the superstructure of any corporate 

organisation. The Company considers its employees as its most significant asset and provides them with 
a healthy and competitive work environment to excel and set new standards of quality, productivity, 
efficiency and customer satisfaction. The Company's consistent HR policies aid in attracting and retaining 
the best talent pool. 
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS AT A GLANCE 

SEGMENTWISE MANUFACTURING SALES IN VOLUMES in TONS 

QTY 
TEXTILE 

12% CONSTRUCTION 

CHEMICAL 

23% 
LA 

IND ADHESIVES __ 

9% 

CONSUMER & 

CONTRACT MFG 19% 

EXPORT 
PAINTS EMULSION 

35% 

Adhesives & Construction Chemicals contribution 51% of the total sales volume 

(i) Consumer &Contract Manufacturing Adhesives 
(MAHACOL/ EMDILITH) 

Branded consumer & Contract manufacturing adhesives products contributed 19% of the total volume 

sales of the Company. Consumer products include Wood adhesives, Packaging and Lamination Adhesives, 
Sticker Adhesives and Art and Craft Adhesives, Rubber & PU Adhesives and Tape Adhesives. Contract 

Manufacturing is mainly for Asian Paints Ltd. 

(ii) Industrial Adhesives 

Industrial Adhesives contributes 9% of the total volume sales of the Company. Adhesives for Packaging 
Industries. 

(iii) Construction Chemicals 

Company has achieved 23% of total volume sales of the Company. 

(iv) Speciality Emulsions 

The Company's speciality emulsions contribute 48% of the total sales volumes 

a) Paint Emulsions (EMDILITH, EMDICRYL) :- 

Majority of the paint emulsions sales is supplied to large corporate paint manufacturers & the balance 

through distribution channels. 

Out of the total sales volume of the Company, paint emulsions contribute 35%. 

b) Textile (EMDITEX, EMDIBIND) :- 

The Company has a network for textile emulsions and binders through distributors PAN India, textile 
emulsions contribute 12% of the company’s total sales volume. 
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(v) Export:-~ 

Company export’s adhesives and emulsions to Nepal, Taiwan, Bangladesh, Shri Lanka, Philippines and 

Kenya which contributes to 1% of the total volume sales of the Company. 

vi) Mahacol RDP: - Re-dispensible Polymer 

We have launched new business in this financial year which is contributing 1% of the total sales volume, 
is expected to grow in future. 

TURNOVER 
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For the year ended 31% March, 2025 turnover is%. 585 cr. as compared to =. 564 cr. in the previous year. 

PROFITS 

Profits 

" 24-25 

Profit Before Tax (PBT) Profit After Tax (PAT) 

@22-23 023-24 © 24-25 

Profit Before Tax (PBT) has increased from @ 17.93 cr. (FY 2023-24) to € 22.42 cr. (FY 2024-25) and 
Profit After Tax (PAT) has increased from 2 13.25 cr. (FY 2023-24) to = 16.86 cr. (FY 2024-25), 

TRADING 

Revenue from trading segment has decreased from ~ 42.95Crore to = 35.96 Crore during the year ended 
31%* March 2025 as there was a huge fluctuation in international market for the entire chemical segment, 
therefore the company has decided to reduce its activities. 

FOREIGN EXCHANGE FLUCTUATIONS 

Your Company had a foreign currency loss of = 22.65 Lakh in current year (FY 2024-25) as compared to 
forex gain of = 58.09 Lakh in the previous year (FY 2023-24). 
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DIRECTOR'S REPORT 

To The Members of Nikhil Adhesives Limited 

The Board of Directors are pleased to present the thirty Ninth Annual Report together with the Audited 
Accounts for the Financial Year ended 31% March, 2025. 

In Financial Year 2024-25 your Company has continued the phase of positive outlook and witnessed the 
drastic growth and development both in operational as well as in financial segments. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS: 

Summary of the Financial Results for the year is as under: 

(Rs. In Lakh) 

Particulars 31° March, 2025 31°%t March, 2024 

Profit Before Depreciation and Tax 2949.46 2415.37 

Less: Depreciation and amortization expense 707.65 622.66 

Profit Before Tax 2241.81 1792.71 

Less: Provision for Tax 
Current Tax 515.00 382.35 
Tax adjustment of earlier years - - 

Deferred Tax 40.87 85.29 

Profit After Tax 1685.94 1325.07 

DIVIDEND 

The Board of Directors has recommended a dividend of Re.0.22/- (Rupee Zero point Twenty-two only) 

per equity share of face value of Re. 1/- (Rupee One only) each for the Financial Year ended March 31, 

2025 subject to approval of Shareholders. 

RESULT OF OPERATIONS 

(Rs. In Lakh) 

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24 % 

Sales Turnover 58458.75 56419.32 3.61 % 

Other Income 56.62 34.88 62.353: % 

Operating Profit 3,053.72 2,489.11 22.68 % 

Total Comprehensive Income 1670.87 1,323.87 26.22 % 

(Net Profit) 

Detailed analysis of the performance of your Company is presented in the Management Discussion and 
Analysis Report forming part of this Annual Report. 

PUBLIC DEPOSITS 

The Company had accepted the deposits amounting to Rs. 1258.70 Lakh from its members during the 
financial year 2024-25. There has been no default in repayment of deposits or payment of interest during 
the year. No deposits have been unclaimed as at the end of the year. All the deposits accepted by the 

Company are in compliance with the requirements of Chapter V of the Companies Act, 2013. 

TRANSFER TO RESERVES 

There is no transfer made to reserves during the year. 
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SHARE CAPITAL 

There was no change in the Authorized and Paid-up Share Capital of the Company during the year. The 
Authorised Share Capital of the Company is Rs. 5,00,00,000/- (Rupees Five Crore only) divided into 

4,95,00,000 (Four Crores Ninety Five Lakh only) Equity Shares of Re. 1 (Rupee One Only) each and 

50,000 (Fifty Thousand) 8% Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 10 (Rupees Ten Only) 

each. 

The Paid-up Share Capital of the Company is Rs. 4,60,49,603 /- (Rupees Four Crore Sixty Lakh Forty- 

Nine Thousand and Six Hundred Three only) divided into 4,59,43,000 (Four crore Fifty-Nine Lakh Forty- 
Three Thousand Only) Equity Shares of Re. 1/- (Rupee One) each and 2,13,200 forfeited shares of Rs. 
1,06,603/- (One Lakh Six Thousand Six Hundred and Three Only). 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

Your Company strives to maintain the high Corporate Governance practice and standards. The detail 
report on the Corporate Governance is given in this Annual Report. The Certificate from the auditors of 

the Company regarding compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated under 
Regulation 34 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 is also forms part of the report. 

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY INITIATIVES 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Corporate 

Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, the details of contribution to CSR activities are as follows: 

Particular Amount (In 
Rupees) 

Amount statutorily required to contribute during the year F.Y. 2024-25 Rs. 50,24,744 

Actual amount spent as on 31.03.2025 Rs. 50,00,000 

Amount unspent as on 31.03.2025 Rs. 24,744 

Amount spent towards PM CARES Fund within the prescribed time limit of six | Rs. 50,000 
months of end of financial year as per Companies Act, 2013 

Excess amount available for set off in the succeeding financial years Rs.25,256 

Ongoing Projects | Total Project Amount Amount Amount Pending 
- Actual payment spent in spentin FY | spent in FY 

made in FY 2024- FY 23-24 24-25 25-26 
25 
Project Bachpan Rs. 5,50,000 1,70,000 3,80,000 - Nil 

Project Shakti Rs. 5,80,000 4,984 - 5,75,016 Nil 

Umang School Rs. 12,15,000 1,46,800 9,14,744 - 1,53,456 

Jan Jan Ne Bhojan, | Rs. 10,85,000 95,500 6,32,610 - 3,56,890 
Sadvichar 

The CSR report is forming part of this attachment in Annexure IV and CSR policy is placed on the website 

of the Company www. nikhiladhesives.com 

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 

To the best of their knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations obtained by 
them, your Directors make the following statements in terms of Section 134(3) (c) of the Companies 
Act, 2013: 
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a. That in the preparation of the annual financial statements for the year ended 31°* March, 2025, the 

applicable accounting standards read with requirements set out under Schedule III to the Companies 
Act, 2013, have been followed and there are no material departures from the same; 

b. That had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgements and 

estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of 
the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit of the Company for that period; 

c. That had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in 

accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the 

Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

d. That the annual financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis; 
e. That proper internal financial controls were in place and that the financial controls were adequate and 

were operating effectively; 

f. That the systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws were in place and 
were adequate and operating effectively. 

RISK MANAGEMENT AND ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS 

The Company’s system of financial and compliance controls with reference to the financial statements 

and risk management is embedded in the business process by which the Company pursues its objectives. 

The Company uses foreign exchange forward contracts to hedge its exposure for movements in foreign 

exchange rate. The use of this foreign exchange forward contract reduces the risk to the Company. The 
Company does not use these for trading or speculative purpose. Additionally, the Audit Committee and 
the Board of Directors provide risk over sight through their review of potential risks which could 
negatively impact the operations, the proposed budget and plan, the Company’s strategic framework 

and any risks that may negatively impact it. The management is committed to ensure an effective internal 

control environment commensurate with the size, scale and complexity of the operations, which provides 
assurance on the efficiency of the Company’s operations and safety/security of its assets besides orderly 

and legitimate conduct of Company’s business in the circumstances, which may reasonably be foreseen. 

The Company has defined organization structure authority levels delegated powers, internal procedures, 

rules and guidelines for conducting business transactions. 

The Company’s system and process relating to internal control and procedures for financial reporting 

have been designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of 

unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the 
financial statements and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities or deliberate miss- 
statements. Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate disclosure controls 
and procedures and adequate internal controls over financial reporting with respect to financial 

statements besides its effectiveness in the context of applicable regulations. The Internal Auditor, the 
Audit Committee as well as the Board of Directors conduct from time to time an evaluation of the 

adequacy and effectiveness of the system of internal controls for financial reporting with respect to 
financial statements. 

INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS 

Industrial relations remained cordial throughout the year. Your Directors recognize and appreciate the 

sincere and hard work, loyalty, dedicated efforts and contribution of all the employees in the growth and 

performance of the Company during the year. 

DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

In terms of Sections 149,152 and all other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for the 
purpose of determining the Directors liable to retire by rotation, the Independent Directors are not 
included in the total number of Directors of the Company. Accordingly, Mr. Rajendra Jayantilal Sanghavi 

(DIN:00245637), Whole Time Director shall retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and 

being eligible, has offered himself for re-appointment as a Whole Time Director of the Company. The 
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details of Directors seeking re-appointment as required under Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 are given in the notice of the ensuing Annual 

General Meeting, which is being sent to the Shareholders along with Annual Report. 

During the year the Board of Directors in its meeting held on 22" May, 2024 appointed Mrs. Beena 
Khandelwal as Company Secretary and Compliance Officer, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company 

with effect from the same date i.e 22" May 2024. 

The members at its Annual General Meeting held on 26"of September, 2024 appointed of Mr. Jagdish 

Mali as Executive Director of the company with effect from 08" August, 2024 pursuant to the provisions 
of Sections196, 197, 198 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 

Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013. 

Mr. Sethunathan Charlayath Laxmanan (DIN: 10535064), who was appointed by the Board of Directors 

based on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, as an Additional Director 

(Non-Executive Independent Director) of the Company with effect from 17*March, 2025 

Second term of Mrs. Ishita Gandhi from the position of Non-Executive Independent director with the 
company ended on 28" March, 2025 and board took note of the same. 

As on date of this report, the details of the Board of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel are as under; 

Mr.Umesh J. Sanghavi - Chairman and Managing Director 

Mr.Rajendra J. Sanghavi — Wholetime Director 
Mr.Tarak J. Sanghavi - Wholetime Director 
Mr.Pravin K. Laheri — Independent Director 

Ms.Gauri S. Trivedi - Independent Director 

Mr. V. Subramanian- Independent Director 
Mrs. Anita U. Sanghavi-Chief Financial Officer 
Ms.Beena Khandelwal— Company Secretary & Compliance officer 

Mr.Jagdish Mali — Executive Director (w.e.f. 08.08.2024) 
10. Mr.Sethunathan Charlayath Laxmanan- Independent Director (w.e.f. 17.03.2025) 

11. Dr.Satish Gaonkar- Executive Director (w.e.f. 16.06.2025) 
12. Mr.Madhu T Ankleshwaria- Independent Director (w.e.f. 16.06.2025) 
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The Board of Directors comprises of highly qualified members possessing essential qualifications, skills, 

expertise and competencies in the areas of Sales & Marketing, Finance and Accounts, Leadership and 
Governance, Industry Knowledge, General Management and Governance, Relevant Technology which 
can enable them to take effective decisions in the conduct of the affairs of the Company and enhance 

the Stakeholders values. 

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD 

The Company’s Board has following committees. The brief of these Committees are given in section of 

Corporate Governance Report: 

a. Audit Committee 
b. Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

c. Stakeholder Relationship Committee 

d. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee 

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 

The Independent Directors of the Company have furnished the declaration that they meet the criteria of 
Independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16(1) (b) of the 
SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. 
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MEETINGS OF BOARD AND COMMITTEES 

During the year under review, 6Board Meetings were convened and held. The details thereof are given 
in the Report on Corporate Governance. 

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF BOARD, COMMITTEES & DIRECTORS 

As per the Listing Regulations, the Board of Directors of the Company carried out the formal annual 
performance evaluation of all the Directors and also its self-evaluation process, internally, to assess the 

skills set and contribution that are desired, recognizing that competencies and experiences evolves over 
time. The process was conducted by allowing the Board to engage in candid discussions with each 
Directors with the underlying objective of taking best possible decisions in the interest of the Company 
and its stakeholders. The Directors were individually evaluated based on structured self-assessment and 

personal interaction to ascertain feedback on well-defined parameters which, internally, comprised of 

level of engagement and their contribution to strategic planning and other criteria based on performance 

and personal attributes of the Directors. During the process of evaluation, the Board of Directors also 
reviewed and discussed the annual performance evaluation of Directors carried out by the Nomination 

and Remuneration Committee. A statement in detail indicating the manner, in which formal annual 

evaluation has been made by the Board of Directors, is given in the Report on Corporate Governance 

which forms a part of the Annual Report. 

SELECTION AND APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS AND THEIR REMUNERATION 

The Board of Directors in consonance with the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee (NRC) has adopted a term of reference which internally deals with the manner of selection 

of the Directors and the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company. The NRC recommends appointment 

of Director/re-appointment of Managing Director, Whole Time Directors and Independent Directors based 

on their qualifications, expertise, positive attributes and independence in accordance with prescribed 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules framed there under. The NRC, in addition to ensuring 

diversity of race and gender, also considers the impact the appointee would have on Board's balance of 

professional experience, background, viewpoints, skills and areas of expertise. 

The Board of Directors in consonance with the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee has also adopted the Remuneration Policy for the Members of the Board and Executive 
Management. The said policy earmarks the principles of remuneration and ensures a well-balanced and 

performance related compensation package taking into account Shareholders’ interest, industry 
practices and relevant corporate regulations in India. 

VIGIL MECHANISM /WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY 

The Company has a Vigil Mechanism and Whistle-Blower Policy to deal with instances of fraud and 
mismanagement, if any, and conducting business with integrity including in accordance with all applicable 

laws and regulations. The details of the Vigil Mechanism and Whistle Blower Policy are explained in the 

Report on Corporate Governance and also posted on the website of the Company. 

STATUTORY AUDITORS 

On recommendations of Audit Committee and Board of directors, the Company has decided to appoint M/s 

PHD & Associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm Reg. No. 111236W) as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for a 

further period of 5 (Five) years, subject to the approval of members in the ensuing AGM, to conduct the Statutory 

Audit from Financial year 2025-26 and to hold office till the conclusion of 44°°AGM held for the Financial Year 2028- 

29. 
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COST AUDITOR 

The Board of Directors has re-appointed M/s B. F. Modi& Associates, Cost Accountants (Firm Registration 

No. 100604), as the Cost Auditors for conducting audit of the cost accounts maintained by the Company 

in respect of the products of the Company covered under the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) 
Amendment Rules, 2014 and fixed their remuneration based on the recommendation of the Audit 

Committee. The remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors is subject to ratification by the Shareholders 
in this Annual General Meeting of the Company. 
As per Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 

2014, the accounts and records are made and maintained. 

SECRETERIAL AUDITOR 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment 

and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, M/S Somani & Associates., Company 

Secretaries were appointed to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the year ended 31° 
March, 2025. The Secretarial audit report is self-explanatory in the nature as annexed to the part of 

board report. 

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS 

There were no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company which 

have occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to which the financial statement 
relate and the date of the report. 

REGULATORY/COURT ORDERS 

During the year under report no significant and material orders were passed by the regulators or courts 

or tribunals impacting the going concern status and Company's operations in future. 

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

All related party transactions entered into during the financial year under review by the Company are on 
arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course of business. There are no material significant related party 
transactions made by the Company with Promoters, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or other 

designated persons which may have a potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large. All 
related party transactions are placed before the meeting(s) of the Audit Committee for approval. Prior 
omnibus approval of the Audit Committee is obtained for the financial year for the transactions which are 

of a foreseen and repetitive in nature. The statement giving details of all related party transactions 

entered into pursuant to the omnibus approval together with relevant documents/information are placed 

before the Audit Committee for review and approval on quarterly basis. The Company has developed a 
Policy on materiality of Related Party Transactions and dealing with Related Party Transactions including 

the modifications thereof. The Policy on materiality of Related Party Transactions and dealing with Related 

Party Transactions as approved by the Board is uploaded on the Company’s website and the same is 

available at the web link http://www.nikhiadhesives.com 

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTIONS 185 and 186 OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 

There are no loans or guarantees made during the year in pursuance of Sections 185 and 186 of the 
Companies Act, 2013. 

DISCLOSURE OF RATIO OF REMUNERATIONOF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL 
PERSONNEL, ETC. 

As required under Section 197(12) read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration 
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the details of the ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the 
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median employee’s remuneration and such other details as prescribed therein are given in Annexure-II, 

which is attached here to and forms a part of the Directors’ Report. 

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 

Extract of Annual Return of the Company is available on the website of the Company viz. 

www.nikhiladhesives.com 

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES 

The particulars required pursuant to Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 5(2) of the 
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are given in Annexure- 
II, which is attached here to and forms a part of the Directors’ Report. 

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS 
AND OUTGO 

As required under Section 134 (3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules 2014, the information on Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign 
Exchange Earnings and Outgo are given in Annexure-III which is attached hereto and forms a part of the 
Director’s Report. 

GENERAL 

Your Directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the following items as there 

were no transactions on these items during the year under review: 

a2
0 

0
9
 . Issue of equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise. 

. Issue of shares (including sweat equity shares) to employees of the Company under any scheme. 

The Company has no Subsidiary/JV/Associate Companies during the year. 

. Company does not have any subsidiaries hence Neither the Managing Director nor the Whole-time 
Directors of the Company receive any remuneration or commission from any of its subsidiaries. 

. As per the requirement of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & 
Redressal) Act, 2013 (“POSH Act”) and Rules made thereunder, the Company has formed Internal 
Complaints Committee for various work places to address complaints pertaining to sexual harassment 

in accordance with the POSH Act. 
The Company has not issued any sweat equity shares during the year under review and hence no 
information as per provisions of Section 54(1)(d) of the Act read with Rule 8(13) of the Companies 
(Share Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014 is furnished. 

. The Company has not issued any equity shares under Employees Stock Option Scheme during the 
year under review and hence no information as per provisions of Section 62(1)(b) of the Act read 
with Rule 12(9) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014 is furnished. 

. During the year under review, there were no instances of non-exercising of voting rights in respect 

of shares purchased directly by employees under a scheme pursuant to Section 67(3) of the Act read 

with Rule 16(4) of Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 is furnished. 
. The Board of Directors have complied with applicable Secretarial Standards as specified u/s. 118 of 
Companies Act, 2013. 

. The Company confirms that it has paid the Annual Listing Fees for the year 2025-26 to BSE Ltd where 

the Company’s Shares are listed. 
. During the Financial year no application has been made and no proceeding is pending under the 
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016. 

During the year under review, there were no instance of one-time settlement with banks or financial 

institutions and hence the differences in valuation as enumerated under Rule 8(5)(xii) of Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014, as amended, do not arise. 
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TRANSFER TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND: 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 124 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Investors Education 

and Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 and all the applicable 

amendments and re-enactments made thereunder, all shares in respect of which dividend has not been 

paid or claimed for seven consecutive years or more shall be transferred by the Company in the name of 
Investor Education and Protection Fund. 

During the year under review, no shares or unpaid dividend of last 7 years was due to be transferred to 

IEPF. 

HUMAN RESOURCES 
Your directors believe that the key to success of any Company are its employees. Your Company has a 

team of able and experienced professionals, whose dedicated efforts and enthusiasm has been an integral 

part of your Company’s growth. Your directors would like to place on record their deep appreciation of 

their continuous effort and contribution to the Company. 

CASH FLOW STATEMENT 

In conformity with the provisions of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 and requirements of companies Act, 2013 the cash flow statement for the financial year ended 
31.03.2025 is annexed here to as a part of the Financial Statements. 

DISCLOSURE AS REQUIRED UNDER CLAUSE 5A TO PARA A OF PART A OF SCHEDULE III OF 
SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015: 

No Agreement were entered pursuant to clause 5A of paragraph A of Part A of Schedule III of SEBI 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 during FY 2024-25and as on date. 

For and On behalf of Board of Directors 

Sd/- 
Umesh J. Sanghavi 
Chairman and Managing Director 
DIN: 00491220 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 08.08.202 
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ANNEXURE- I 

FORM NO. MR-3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2025 

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 
No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) 

Rules, 2014] 

To, 
The Members, 
Nikhil Adhesives Limited 

A-902, Kaledonia Building, Sahar Road, 
Opp. Vijay Nagar, Andheri (East), 
Mumbai - 400069. 

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions 

and the adherence to good corporate practices by Nikhil Adhesives Limited herein after called 

(“the company”). The secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a 
reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing 

our opinion thereon. 

Based on my verification of books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other 
records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its 

officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby 

report that in my opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year 

ended on 31% March 2025 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that 
the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, 
in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained 

by Nikhil Adhesives Limited (“the Company”) for the financial year ended on 31* March 2025, according to 

the provisions of: 

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder; 

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder; 

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; 

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder 

to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External 

Commercial Borrowings; 

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):- 

a) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 
Regulations, 2011; 

b) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; 

c) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2018; (Not applicable to the company during the review period)
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d) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) 
Regulations, 2021; (Not applicable to the company during the review period) 

e) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015; 

f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible 
Securities) Regulations, 2021; (Not applicable to the company during the review period) 

g) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 

Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; (Not applicable to 
the company during the period under review) 

h) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021; 
(Not applicable to the company during the review period) 

i) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018; (Not 
applicable to the company during the review period) 

j) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participant) Regulations, 
2018; 

(vi) The compliance by the Company of the applicable direct tax laws, indirect tax laws and 

other financial laws has not been reviewed in this Audit, since the same have been subject to 

review by the other designated professionals 

We have relied on the representation made by the company and its officers for the systems 

and mechanisms formed by the company for compliances under the other applicable Acts, Laws 

and Regulations as mentioned by the company in its Management Representation letter. 
During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, 
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards etc. mentioned above. 

I further report that: 

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive 

Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition 

of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in 

compliance with the provisions of the Act. 

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses: 

a) Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 

b) SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015 and _ its 
amendments. 

During the period under review the Company has generally complied with the provisions of the 
Acts, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above subject to the following 

specific observations:. 

1. The Company delayed the submission of the proceedings of the Annual General Meeting held 

on 26.09.2025.The proceedings were submitted within 24 hours instead of the stipulated 12 

hours as required as required under Regulation 30 read with Schedule III of the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

2. The Company filed Forms IEPF-1 and IEPF-2 under Section 125 of the Companies Act, 2013 
with the additional fees.
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We further report that 

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive 
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition 

of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in 
compliance with the provisions of the Act. 

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed 

notes on agenda were sent in advance in accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 

2013 and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on 
the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 

As per the minutes, the decisions at the Board Meetings were taken unanimously. 

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company 

commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance 

with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 

We further report that during the audit period the company had no specific actions having a 

major bearing on the company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, 

regulations, guidelines, standards, etc. referred to above. 

This Report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure- A and 

forms an integral part of this Report. 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 08/08/2025 
For Somani & Associates 

(Practicing Company Secretaries) 

Sd/- 

Poonam Somani 

FCS No. F9364 

CPNo. 8642 

UDIN - F009364G000962514 

This report is to be read with my letter of even date which is annexed as A
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ANNEXURE A 

10, 

The Members, 

Nikhil Adhesives Limited 
A-902, Kaledonia Building, Sahar Road, 
Opp. Vijay Nagar, Andheri (East), 

Mumbai - 400069. 

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

1. Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the 

Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records 

based on my audit. 

2. We have followed the the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain 

reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial 

records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are 
reflected in Secretarial records. We believe that the process and practices, we 
followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion 

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and 
Books of Accounts of the Company. The compliance by the Company of the applicable 
financial laws, like direct and indirect tax laws, has not been reviewed in this Audit, 

since the same have been subject to review by the other designated professionals. 

4. Where ever we required, we have obtained the management representation about 

the compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc. 

5. The Compliance of provision of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, 

regulations, standard is the responsibility of management. My examination was 
limited to the verification of procedure on test basis. 

6. The secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of 

Company nor of the efficacy of effectiveness with which the management has 

conducted the affairs of the company. 

Place: Mumbai For Somani & Associates 

Date: 08.08.2025 (Practising Company Secretaries) 

Sd/- 

Poonam Somani 

FCS No. F9364 

CPNo. 8642 

UDIN: F009364G000962514
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DISCLOSURE UNDER RULE 5(1) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION 

OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL), RULES, 2014 

1. The ratio remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employee and 

percentage increase in remuneration of Directors, CFO and CS: 

= Oo =} - 

in cid ce ce Remuneration- ” ~~ Ratio/ times 

es Name Designation ° nasa pel on pete tor ty remuneration pay meninn 
No g cE 2023-24 (In of employee 

Rs.) nee remuneration 
2024-25 

(In Rs.) 

Chairman 

y, | MRIESD!. | na Whale 45,52,944 21,52,944 111.47 11.52 
Sanghavi ; . 

time Director 

We Reiendea Executive- 

2 Na) Whole Time 45,52,944 21,52,944 111.47 11.52 
J. Sanghavi 

Director 

Executive- 
Mr.Tarak J. 

g || Eiretatard Whole Time 45,52,944 21,52,944 111.47 11.52 
Sanghavi ; 

Director 

Executive 

4 | Mr Jagdish 26,02,139 ; ; 
Mali** 

Director 

Chief 
Dr. ish R. ; g [[RRSBeSR. || Goerating 7,60,107 ; , ; 
Gaonkar ** 

Officer 

Company 

Mrs.Beena Secretary& exe 

° Khandelwal** | Compliance dial 

Officer 

Mrs. Anita Chief 

7 | Umesh Financial 14,08,500 7,21,/04 - - 

Sanghavi**** | Officer 

*The remuneration of Mr. Jagdish B. Mali is covered for the period from 08.08.2024 to 31.03.2025 as 

he appointed as Executive Director w.e.f. 22.05.2024. 

**The remuneration of Mrs. Beena Khandelwal is covered for the period from 22.05.2024 to 

31.03.2025 as she appointed as CS w.e.f. 22.05.2024. 

**The remuneration of Dr Satish R Gaonkar is covered for the period from 01.02.2025 to 31.03.2025 

as she appointed as Chief Operating Officer w.e.f. 01.02.2025. 

36



ee 7 YY 7 7 ae J 
NIKHIL 
ADHESWeS LTD 

Median remuneration of Median remuneration of ereunay( icceasae} 

employees in FY 2024-25 employees in FY 2023-24 

Rs. 3,95,158 Rs. 4,14,403 -4,.52 

2. No. of permanent employees as on 31% March, 2025: 334 Employees 

3. Comparison between average percentile increase and salaries of employees (excluding managerial 

personnel) and percentile increase in managerial remuneration: 

Average percentile Percentile increase in 
increases in salaries of managerial personnel 
employees other than remuneration in FY 

Justification 

managerial personnel in 2024-25 
FY 2024-25 

The increase in salaries of managerial 
personnel remuneration iS 

60.69 98.03 commensurate with their individual 

performance attributable to the 
growth of the Company. 

4. The key parameters for any variable component of remuneration availed by Directors: The KMP 

Remuneration is not wholly related to the Company’s performance. They are paid as per their terms 

of employment. 

5. There are 3 employees who have received remuneration in excess of the highest paid Director. 

Their ratios to the highest paid director are 1.09, 1.41, and 1.68. 

6. This is to affirm that the above remuneration is paid as per the Remuneration Policy of the 

Company. 

Note: 

a) The Non-Executive Independent Directors of the Company are entitled to sitting fee and 

commission as per the statutory provisions and within the limits approved by the Shareholders. 

The remuneration of Non-Executive Directors, details of which are provided in the Corporate 

Governance Report and is governed by the Differential Remuneration Policy, as detailed in the said 

Report. 
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ANNEXURE- ITI 

DISCLOSURE OF CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN 
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUT GO 

The Information under Section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of the 

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for the year ended 31°' March, 2024is given herein below and 

forms part of the Director’s Report. 

A. Conservation of Energy: 

The Company has a well-structured energy management system in place and regular efforts are 

made to optimise process parameters and energy conservation. Additionally, while undertaking 
modernisation and technological up gradation of production facilities, due consideration is also given 
in selection of plant and equipments which conforms to the best in class energy conservation 

parameters. The other identified key initiatives for conservation of energy during the year were: 

1. The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy: 

a. Continuous replacement of incandescent bulbs with compact fluorescent (CFLs) and LED 

bulbs. These are energy efficient modern alternatives which save energy considerably & 

helps to reduce energy consumption. 

b. Replacement and Rewound of Motors, which resulting in conservation of energy. 

c. Capacities are installed for effective distribution of electricity supply and improve the power 

factor. The Company has carried out atomisation of this system, resulting in better control 

and improving further power factor. 

d. Energy also can be saved by better utilisation staff is well trained accordingly. Running of 

equipments unnecessary also results in wastage of energy. Energy is conserved by stopping 

the wastage. 

e. Gardening and plantation to help reducing pollution. 

f. Upgradation of effluent treatment plant is continued. Treated water is used for washing & 

cleaning. 

. Better utilization of energy and water. 

. The Company has installed the solar energy system in its plant at Silvassa. And it has 

installed the solar water heating system in its plant at Dahej and Dahanu which provides 

12KL water in a day with 70 degree Celsius in Dahej Plant and 1KL water in a with 70 degree 

Celsius at its Dahanu plant. The Company is trying best to expand the capacity from the 

above limit and also the installation of solar energy and water heating system in other plants 

of the Company is in process. 

-
 

2. The Steps taken by the Company for utilising alternate sources of energy: 

Alternative energy is any energy source that is an alternative to fossil fuel. Amongst various 
sources of alternate energy like solar, wind, geothermal, biomass, bio fuels, hydropower etc. 

Solar power is the most convenient of all which can be made use of by installing solar panels 
and converting solar energy into electrical energy. 

The solar heating system plays a crucial role in protecting the environment. It is reliable, secure 

and eco-friendly. 

Management has recognised the advantages of solar power and solar heating systems, and 
has initiated installation of solar system in its units as mentioned in the point 1(h) which will 

not only help reduce chemical emission considerably but also reduce power cost. 

3. The capital investment on energy conservation equipments: 
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Rs. 10.77 Lakh was spent on energy conservation equipments. 

B. Technology absorption: 

1. The efforts made towards technology absorption: 

Development of proprietary technology for 100% import substitute Re-dispensable Polymer 

(RDP) & design of plant to manufacture 12,000 TPA. 

2. The benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development 
or import substitution etc.: 

Improvisation in products quality helps to retain and increase the market share. Product 
development too helps to reduce cost and sustainability in market. We constantly look for 
process improvisation at manufacturing level to reduce energy consumption, minimise waste 
generation and to produce cost effective products in line with environmental policies. 

3. Incase of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from 
the beginning of the financial year) 

Not applicable as no technology was imported during the last three years. 

4. The expenditure incurred on Research and Development. 

Rs. 62.59 Lakh was spent on Research and Development. 

C. Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo: 

For the year under consideration, earnings in the foreign exchange in terms of actual inflows is 

Rs.561.79 Lakh and foreign exchange outgo in terms of actual outflows is Rs. 7,750.44 Lakh. 

For and Behalf of the Board of Directors 

Sd/- 
Umesh J. Sanghavi 
Chairman and Managing Director 
DIN: 00491220 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 08.08.2025 
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1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company- 
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The objective of the CSR Policy ("Policy") is to lay down the guiding principles in undertaking various 

programs and projects by or on behalf of the Company in accordance with the Corporate Social 
Responsibility ("CSR') within the meaning of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
Schedule VII of the Act and the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 
(Rules"). 

2. Composition of CSR Committee: 

Sr. Name of Director Designation/ Nature | Number of | Number of 

No. of Directorship meetings of CSR | meetings CSR 

Committee held | Committee 
during the year attended during the 

_year 

1. Mr.Pravin K. Non-Executive 2 2 
Laheri (Chairman) | Director 

2. Mr.Rajendra J. Executive Director | 2 2 
Sanghavi 

(Member) 

3. Mr.Umesh J. Managing Director 2 2 

Sanghavi 
(Member) 

4. Mr.Tarak J. Executive Director 2 2 
Sanghavi 
(Member) 

3. Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved 

by the Board are disclosed on the website of the Company: www.nikhiladhesives.com 

4. Provide the executive summary along with web-link(s) of Impact assessment of CSR projects 
carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility 

Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable: Not Applicable 

5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies 
(Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the 

financial year, if any 

SSI. No. |Financial Year Amount available for set-off [Amount required to be set- 
from preceding financial ioff for the financial year, if 

lyears (in Rs) lany (in Rs) 

1 2024-25 

Total 

6. Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): Rs. 25,12,37,219 

7. a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): Rs. 50,24,744 

(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial 

years: Nil 

(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: Nil 

(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c): Rs.50,24,744 
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8. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year 2024-2025: 

J 
NIKHIL 

Total Amount 

Spent for the 
Financial Year. 

Amount Unspent (in Rs.) 

Total Amount transferred to 
Unspent CSR Account as per 

Amount transferred to any fund specified 
under Schedule VII as per second proviso to 

(in Rs.) Section 135(6 Section 135(5) 
Amount Date of Transfer | Name of the | Amount | Date of 

Fund Transfer 

50,00,000 - PM CARES FUND | 50,000 29/08/2025 

(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year 2024-2025: 

. (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) | (8) (9) (10) (11) 

SI.|; Name | Item | Local |Location of|Project|Amoun| Amou | Amount | Mode of Mode of 
No| of the | from | area the duratio t nt |transferr|Implemen| Implementation - 

Project| the list |(Yes/N| project. n. jallocat| spent; ed to tation - Through 

of 0). ed for |in the |Unspent| Direct Implementing 
activiti the j|curren| CSR_ |(Yes/No). Agency 
es in a project; t Account 

ISchedul Stat/Distric (in |financi| for the Name CSR 
e VII to c. t. Rs.). jal Year) project Registratio) 
the Act. (in | as per n number. 

Rs.). | Section 

135(6) 
(in Rs.). 

1. - - - - - - - - - - - 

Total 

(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year: 

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) 
SI.|Name of the| Item from |Local| Location of | Amount Mode of Mode of implementation 
No.; Project the list of | area| the project. |spent for| implementation |- Through implementing 

activities in |((Yes/ the - Direct agency. 
schedule | No). a project (Yes/No). 
VII to the State.|/District. (in Rs.). Name. CSR 

Act. registration 

number. 

1. | Kapol Yuvak |(ii) promoting) Yes | Maharashtra, | 5,00,000 Direct - - 

Sangh education Mumbai 

2.| Sanghavi |(i)"promoting| Yes | Maharashtra, |45,00,000 Indirect Sanghavi |CSRO0087825 
Jagmohandas| health care Mumbai Jagmohandas| 
Bhagwandas|_ including Bhagwandas 

Trust preventinve Trust 

health car 

Total 50,00,000 

(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: Nil 

(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: NA 

(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e): Rs.50,24,744 

(g) Excess amount for set off, if any: Nil 

Sl. Particular Amount (in Rs.) 

No. 

(i) [Two percent of average net profit of the company as 50,24,744 

per section 135(5) 

(ii) {Total amount spent for the Financial Year 50,50,000 
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(iii) |Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(1) ] 25,256] 

(iv) |Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes Nil 
ior activities of the previous financial years, if any 

(v) |Amount available for set off in succeeding financial 25,256 

years [(iii)-(iv) ] 

9. (a) Details of Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility amount for the preceding three 

Financial Years: 
1 |2 3 4 5 6 7 8 
Sr | Preceding | Amount Balance Amount | Amount transferred Amount Deficie 
N | Financial | transferred to | Amountin | Spentin | to a Fund as remainin | ncy, if 
o | Year(s) Unspent CSR Unspent the specified under g to be any 

Account CSR Financia | Schedule VII as per spent in 
under sub- Account | Year second proviso to succeedi 
section (6) of | under (in Rs) sub-section (5) of ng 
section 135(in | sub- section 135, if any Financial 
Rs.) section Amount Date of Years (in 

(6) of (in Rs) Transfer | Rs) 
section 
135(in 
Rs.) 

1. | F¥-l1 NIL 

2. | FY-2 

3. | FY-3 

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding 

financial year(s): Nil 

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) 
SI. No. Project | Nameof | Financial Project Total Amount |Cumulative| Status of 

ID. the Year in duration. | amount |spenton|; amount _ {the project 

Project. | which the allocated the = |spent at the - 
project was forthe |projectin| endof |Completed 

commenced. project the reporting | /Ongoing. 
(in Rs.). |reporting| Financial 

Financial; Year. (in 
Year (in Rs.) 

Rs). 

1 NA Project 2023-24 - 5,50,000 | 3,80,000 | 5,50,000 | Completed 
Bachpan 

2 NA Project 2023-24 - 5,80,000 - 5,80,000 | Completed 
Shakti 

3 NA Umang 2023-24 lyear {|12,15,000| 9,14,744 | 10,61,564 Ongoing 
School 

4 NA Jan Jan Ne 2023-24 1 year {|10,85,000| 6,32,610 | 3,56,890 Ongoing 

Bhojan, 

Sadvichar 

Total 34,30,000/19,273,54| 19,73,438 

10. 

Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year: Nil 
If Yes, enter the number of Capital assets created/ acquired: Not Applicable 

Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social 

Furnish the details relating to such asset(s) so created or acquired through Corporate Social 
Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year: 
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Number, _ if 

applicable 

Sr Short Pinco | Date of | Amount Details of entity/ Authority/ beneficiary of 
No particulars of | de of | creation | of CSR | the registered owner 

the property or | the amount 
asset(s) prope spent 
[including rty or 

complete asset( 
address and | s) 
location of the 
property] 

(1) | (2) (3) | (4) (5) (6) 
CSR Name Registered 
Registration address 

N.A. 

(All the fields should be captured as appearing in the revenue record, flat no, house no, Municipal 
Office/Municipa 

property as wel 

Corporation/ Gram panchayat are to be specified and also the area of the immovable 

as boundaries) 

i i Specify the reason(s), if the Company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit 
as per section 135(5): For FY 2024-25, the Company has contributed before 31-03-2025 its CSR 
obligation to an intermediary agent (IA). However, the IA has not utilised such contribution before 

31-03-2025. 

Sd/- 
Mr.Umesh Sanghavi 
Chairman and Managing Director 
(Member of CSR Committee) 

DIN: 00491220 

Sd/- 

Mr. Pravin K. Laheri 
Non-Executive- Independent Director 

(Chairman of CSR Committee) 

DIN: 00499080 
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To the Members of Nikhil Adhesives Limited 

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Nikhil Adhesives 

Limited for the year ended on 31% March, 2025, as stipulated in Para E of Schedule V of the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 of the said Company with Stock Exchanges. 

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Company's 
Management. Our examination was limited to procedures and implementation thereof adopted by 

the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither 
an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 

and the representations made by the Directors and the Management, we certify that the Company 
generally complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above 

mentioned Listing Regulations. 

As per the information and explanation provided by the management, there was no investor 
grievances remaining unattended/ pending as on 31° March 2025. 

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the 

Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs 
of the Company. 

For Somani & Associates 
(Practising Company Secretaries) 

Sd/- 
Poonam Somani 
FCS No. F9364 
C P No. 8642 
UDIN No: F009364G000962712 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 08.08.2025
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

Company’s Philosophy on Corporate Governance 

Your Company firmly believes in and continues to practice good Corporate Governance and believes 

that good Corporate Governance is essential for achieving the long term goals and to enhance the 

Stakeholders’ value. Your Company's essential character is shaped by ethical practices in the conduct 

of it’s business transparency, professionalism and accountability. Your Company continuously 

endeavours to improve on these aspects on an ongoing basis. In order to achieve the objective, your 

Company is driven by the following guiding principles: 

e By improving the effectiveness of the Board of Directors in supervising management; and 

e Improving the quality of information and communication with stakeholders. 

Your Company believes that these two principles will result in a better shareholders value. 

Board of Directors 

The composition of our Board is well aligned with the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 

(“Companies Act”), and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
(“Listing Regulations”). The Board consists of 08 directors out of which, 4 are Independent Directors. 
The Board of Directors of your Company comprises of Executive-Chairman& Managing Director, 

Executive-Whole Time Directors and Non-Executive Independent Directors. The Board of Directors 

comprises of highly qualified members and with considerable professional experiences, expertise, 

leadership, and guidance to the management. 

Composition of our Board, Status, No. of Board Meeting and Last AGM attended, Details of 

Directorship and Committees Membership and name of the Listed Companies as on 31° 

March, 2025: 

No. of Attendance at | No. of | No. of Other 
Board Annual Directorship | Committees 

Meetings | General in the Listed | Membership in_ the 

attended | Meeting Companies Public Companies 
. (26.09.2024) | including Including this 

Name of Directors Status this Company, whether 

Company Listed or not 
and Name of | Chairperson | Member 
the 
Company** 

Mr. Umesh Sanghavi | Chairman 6 Attended 1 . 2 
(DIN: 00491220) and 

Managing 

Director, 

Promoter 

Mr. Rajendra Executive 6 Attended 1 - 1 

Sanghavi Whole Time 
(DIN: 00245637) Director, 

Promoter 

Mr. Tarak Sanghavi | Executive 6 Attended 1 - 1 
(DIN: 00519403) Whole Time 

Director, 

Promoter 

Mr. Jagdish Balvant | Executive 3 Attended 1 - - 

Mali (DIN:1073698) | Director 

Mr.Pravin K. Laheri Non- 6 Attended 1 2 a 
(DIN: 00499080) Executive 

Independent 
Director 
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Ms.Gauri S. Trivedi Non- 4 Not Attended 3 3 
(DIN: 06502788) Executive 

Independent 
Director 

Mr. Subramanian V Non- 6 Attended 1 - 
(DIN:1016279) Executive 

Independent 
Director 

Mr.Sethunathan Non- - z 1 - 

Charlayath Executive 
Laxmanan Independent 

(DIN: 1053506)* Director 

*Mr. Sethunathan Charlayath Laxmanan Appointed as Additional (Non-Executive Independent) 

Director by Circular Resolution passed by the company dated 17.03.2025 & subsequently regularise 

in the EGM dated 16.06.2025 

**AS per in Schedule V C(2)(C) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015, the details of name of other Listed Companies in which the following Directors 

holds Directorship, and other Directors are only associated with the Company as provided in the above 

table. 

Sr. Name of the | Name of the Listed Companies in which | Category of 
No. Directors concerned Director is a Director Directorship 
1. Mrs. Gauri S. | Sandesh Limited Non-Executive 

Trivedi Adani Total Gas Limited Independent Director 

Inter-se relationship between the Directors 

Mr. Umesh Sanghavi, Mr. Tarak Sanghavi and Mr. Rajendra Sanghavi are brothers. There is no 

relationship between any of the Executive Directors and Non-Executive Independent Directors. 

Web Link of details of familiarisation programmes imparted to independent directors 

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1qqdcHRAMDhbeHpGacx8c83bqT8VYA5K/view 

Skills/ Expertise /Competence of the Board of Directors (as on 31% March, 2025) 

Name 

the 

of | Mr. 

Vi 

Umesh 

Directors J. 

Sangha 

Mr. 

Rajendra 
J 

Sanghavi 

Mr. 

Tarak J. 
Sanghav 
i 

Mr. Pravin 

K. Laheri 

Mr. 

Jagdish B. 
Mali 

Gauri 

Trivedi 

Mr. 

Ss. 

iaum 

V~. 

Subraman 

Mr. 

Sethunath 
an C 

Laxmanan 

Sales 

Marketing 

& 
v 

General 

nt 

e 

Manageme 

and 

Governanc 

Finance 

and 

Accounts 

and 

= 

Leadership 

Governanc 

Industry 
Knowledge 

Relevant 

Technology 
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Senior v v v v v vw v v 

Manageme 

nt 

Performance Evaluation of Board, Committee and Directors 

A formal annual evaluation was carried out by the Board of it’s own performance and that of it’s 

Committees and Individual Directors. During the year under review, one meeting of the Independent 

Directors was held wherein the performance of Non-Independent Directors, Chairman of your 

Company and the Board as a whole were reviewed. The performance evaluation of Committees and 

Independent Directors was carried out by the entire Board, excluding the Director being evaluated. 

The Independent Directors also assessed the quality, quantity and timelines of flow of information 

between your Company management and the Board that is necessary for the Directors to effectively 

and necessarily perform their duties. The Board, it’s Committees and Directors evaluation provided a 

formal process of communication in raising issues that might not otherwise be vetted by the Board, 

with the underlying objectives to develop an action plan to improve the Board performance, interalia, 

by ensuring compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 and code of corporate 

governance. 

The structure valuation process was focused on identifying areas of improvement, if any, such as 

creating balance of power between the Board and management, long term strategy, more effectively 

fulfilling the Board’s oversight responsibilities, the adequacy of committee(s) structures, the 

assessment of Board culture to ascertain whether the same is conducive to attract right individuals to 

join the Board and updating the evaluating process itself. 

A review of fiduciary duties of the Board, governance policy adopted by your Company and 

acquaintance and familiarisation of Independent Directors with your Company and it’s business model, 

their roles, rights, responsibilities in your Company, nature of the industry in which your Company 

operates etc. and contribution by each director, committees of the Board was also carried out during 

the process of evaluation. The appraisal of the Managing Director and Chief Executive 

Officer and his level of engagement in the affairs of your Company was an important component of 

the Board evaluation. 

The final evaluation was thereafter deliberated and assessed taking into account inputs from the Board 

about evaluation of Independent Directors and various Committees of the Board and suggesting action 

plan for improving Board performance and plan for next Board, it’s Committee(s) and individual 

Director’s evaluation. 

Board Meetings 

During the financial year ended on 31°* March, 2025, 6 Board Meetings were held on 10“ April, 2024; 

224 May, 2024; 08" August, 2024, 26" August, 2024, 12° November, 2025 & 10‘° February 2025. 

All material information are circulated to the Directors before the meeting or placed at the meeting 

including minimum information as required under the Listing Regulations. The Directors were given 

the facility to attend the meeting through Video Conferencing (VC) or Other Audio-Visual Means 

(OAVM). All the Directors have completed and unrestricted access to any information required by them 

to understand the transactions and take decisions. This enables the Board to discharge its 

responsibilities effectively and make an informed decision. The compliance report of all laws applicable 

to your Company as prepared and compiled and circulated to all the Directors along with the agenda 

and placed/reviewed in each Board Meeting. 
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The Board has laid down a Code of Conduct for all Board Members and Senior Management Personnel 

of your Company and the same has been posted on the website of your Company 

(www.nikhiladhesives.com). For the year under review, all Directors and senior management 

personnel of your Company have affirmed their adherence to the provisions of the said Code. 

Brief resume and profile of a Director retiring by rotation and eligible for re-appointment at the ensuing 

Annual General Meeting (AGM) are given in the Notice of AGM of your Company, annexed to this 

Annual Report. 

Audit Committee 

The terms of reference, role and scope of the Audit Committee are in line with those prescribed by 

Regulation 18 read with Schedule II (Part C) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015. Your Company also complies with the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies 

Act, 2013 pertaining to Audit Committee and its functioning. 

Details of the composition and meetings held by the Audit Committee are as follows: 

Sr. Name of the Status No. of No. of Date of Audit 
No. | Director Meetings | Meetings | Committee 

held attended | Meetings 
1 Mrs.Ishita Gandhi | Non-Executive/ 4 4 22 May, 2024, 

(Chairman)* Independent 08" August, 2024, 
2 Mr. Pravin K. Laheri |Non-Executive/ 4 4 12° November,2024, 

(Chairman)** Independent 10° February, 2025. 
3 Ms.Gauri S. Trivedi |Non-Executive/ 4 2 

(Member) Independent 
at Mr. Umesh J. |Executive Whole- | 4 4 

Sanghavi time Director 
(Member) 

5 Mr. Subramanian |Non-Executive/ - - 
Venketakrishnan Independent 

(Member) *** 

All the Members of the Audit Committee have accounting and financial management knowledge and 
expertise/exposure. The representative of Statutory Auditor is invited to the meeting. 

*Mrs.Ishita Gandhi’s tenure as Non-Executive/ Independent director completed on 27.03.2025 
**Mr.Pravin K. Laheri Appointed as Chairperson in Audit Committee by Circular Resolution passed by 

the company dated 17.03.2025. 
*** Mr. Subramanian Venketakrishnan Appointed as Member in Audit Committee by Circular 
Resolution passed by the company dated 17.03.2025 
Mrs. Beena Khandelwal, Company Secretary and Compliance Officer act as a Secretary of the 

Committee. 

The Chairman of the Committee was present at the last Annual General Meeting held on 26.09.2024 

The brief terms of reference of the Audit Committee include: - 

e Oversight of the listed entity's financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial 
information to ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible; To seek 

information from any employee. 

e Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the 
listed entity; 

e Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory 

auditors; 

e matters required to be included in the Director's Responsibility Statement to be included in the 

Board's Report in terms of clause (c) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 
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2013; 

e changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same; 

e reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements and auditor's report thereon 

before submission to the board for approval, with particular reference to; 

>» major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by 

management; 

changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same 

significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings; 

compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements; 

disclosure of any related party transactions; 

modified opinion(s) in the draft audit report. 

e Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the audit committee. 

Vv
 
V
V
 

WV
 

WV
 

Stakeholders Relationship Committee 

No. of Date of 
No. of Meeting | Stakeholders 

ee cadet me Status Meetings | s Relationship 
; held attende | Committee 

d Meetings 
, Mrs.Ishita Gandhi | Non- , 9 10April, 2024 

(Chairman)* Executive/Independent 

asa Be Non-Executive  /Non- 
ze Laher Independent : : 

(Chairman)** 

5 Ms.Gauri S. Non- i 1 

Trivedi (Member) Executive/Independent 

Mr. Subramanian | yo 
4 Venketakrishnan( , - - 

Member)*** Executive/Independent 

*Mrs. Ishita Gandhi's tenure as Non-Executive/ Independent director completed on 27.03.2025. 
** Mr.Pravin K. Laheri Appointed as Chairperson in Stakeholders Relationship Committee by Circular 

Resolution passed by the company dated 17.03.2025. 

*** Mr, Subramanian Venketakrishnan Appointed as Member in Stakeholders Relationship Committee 
by Circular Resolution passed by the company dated 17.03.2025. 

The details of the Shareholders’ complaints received during the financial year: 

Number of shareholders complaints received so far | Ni 

Number of shareholders complaint resolved Ni 

Number of shareholders complaint pending Ni 

Terms of Reference: 

The Company has a Stakeholders Relationship Committee, to look into various aspects of interest of 

Shareholders, Debentures Holders and other Security Holders. 

The Committee deals with various matters relating to: 

e Resolving the grievances of the security holders of the listed entity including complaints related 
to transfer/transmission of shares, non-receipt of annual report, non-receipt of declared 
dividends, issue of new/duplicate certificates, general meetings etc. 

e Review of measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by Shareholders. 

e Review of adherence to the service standards adopted by the listed entity in respect of various 
services being rendered by the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent. 
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e Review of the various measures and initiatives taken by the listed entity for reducing the quantum 

of unclaimed dividends and ensuring timely receipt of dividend warrants/annual reports/statutory 

notices by the Shareholders of the Company. 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

The terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee inter alia includes 

determination of your Company’s policy on appointment and remuneration packages for Directors and 

senior management personnel. 

Date of 
No. of No. of : 

Sr. Name of the : : Remuneration 

No. | Directors aces — sie Committee 

Meetings 
Mr.Pravin K. Non-Executive/ 4 4 10" April, 2024, 

: Laheri( Chairman) Independent 22™ May, 2024, 

Mr.Ishita T. Gandhi | Non-Executive/ 4 3 Og" August, 2024; 
2 (Member) Independent 10" February, 2025. 

Ms.Gauri S. Non-Executive/ 4 2 

3 Trivedi(Member) Independent 

Mr. Subramanian ; 

4 Venketakrishnan me ‘a —— e/ . . 
(Member)*** P 

**Mrs, Ishita Gandhi’s tenure as Non-Executive/ Independent director completed on 27.03.2025. 
***Mr. Subramanian Venketakrishnan Appointed as Member in Stakeholders Relationship Committee 
by Circular Resolution passed by the company dated 17.03.2025. 

Terms of Reference: 

e formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of 

a Director and recommend to the Board of Directors a policy relating to, the remuneration of the 

Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees; 
e For every appointment of an Independent Director, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

shall evaluate the balance of skills, knowledge and experience on the Board and on the basis of 
such evaluation, prepare a description of the role and capabilities required of an Independent 

Director. The person recommended to the Board for appointment as an Independent Director shall 

have the capabilities identified in such description. For the purpose of identifying suitable 
candidates; 

e formulation of criteria for evaluation of performance of Independent Directors and the Board of 

Directors; 

e devising a policy on diversity of Board of Directors; 
e Identifying persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in Senior 

Management in accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the Board of Directors 
their appointment and removal. 

e Whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the Independent Director, on the basis 

of the report of performance evaluation of Independent Directors. 

e Recommend to the Board, all remuneration, in whatever form, payable to Senior Management. 

Remuneration Policy 

In pursuance of the Company’s policy to consider human resources as its invaluable assets, to pay 

equitable remuneration to all Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and employees of the Company and 

to harmonize the aspirations of human resources consistent with the goals of the Company and in 

terms of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Agreement with the Stock 

Exchange as per the requirements of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 (earlier old listing agreement) 

the Company has formulated “Nomination and Remuneration Policy.” This policy on nomination and 
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remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management has been formulated by 

the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board of Directors of the Company. 

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1zCA1lwaJOzkFX8bq-j-sSDKg5XXPJqKE/view 

Remuneration to Directors 

The remunerations for the financial year 2024-25 are as follows: 

Status Salary Bonuses | Contributi | Commissi | Sitting Total 
Name of the on to on Fees 

Directors Provident 
Fund 

Mr.Umesn J. Executive 

Sanghavi Chairman & 1,58,400 
Managing eopoe sae | 47,11,344 
Director 

Mr.Rajendra. J. | Executive 
Sanghavi Whole Time 45,52,944 - 1,58,400 | - - 47,11,344 

Director 

Mr.Tarak. J. Executive 

Sanghavi Whole Time 45,52,944 - 1,58,400 | - - 47,11,344 

Director 

Mr.Jagdish B. Executive 26,02,139 - 13,994 | - - 26,91,714 
Mali* Director 

Mr.V Non-Executive/ - - - - 

Subramaniaum | Independent 1,95,000 1,95,000 

Director 

Mr. Pravin K. Non-Executive/ - - - - 

Laheri Independent 2,20,000 2,20,000 
Director 

Mrs. Ishita T. - - = - 
Gandhi Non-Executive/ 2,25,000 | 2,25,000 

Independent 

Director 

Mrs. Gauri S. Non- - - - - 

Trivedi Executive/ 2,05,000 2,05,000 

Independent 
Director 

Mr. Non- - - - - - - 

Sethunathan Executive/ 
Charlayath Independent 

Laxmanan Director 

*Remuneration of Mr.Jagdish Mali is w.e.f 08.08.2024 

**Mr. Sethunathan Charlayath Laxmanan appointed as Additional (Non-Executive Independent) 

Director by Circular Resolution passed by the company dated 17.03.2025 

Notice period for the Directors is as applicable to the senior employees of your Company. No severance 

fee is payable to the Directors on termination of employment. Your Company does not have a scheme 

for stock options for the Directors or the employees. 

Shareholding of the Non-Executive Directors as on 31°%t March, 2025 

w.e.f 27.03.2025) 

‘ Nature of Percentage to the paid- 
Name of the Director Directorship No. of Shares held up capital 

Mrs.Ishita T. Gandhi Non-Executive 10,000 0.02% 
(Ceased to be director Independent 

Mr.Pravin K, Laheri Non-Executive 
Independent 

Ms.Gauri S. Trivedi Non-Executive 

Independent 
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Mr. V. Subramanian Non-Executive - 

Independent 

Mr.Sethunathan C Non-Executive - - 
Laxmanan (appointed Independent 

w.e.f 17.03.2025) 

Independent Directors Meeting: 

During the year under review, a separate meeting of Independent Directors was held on 10" February, 

2025, interalia to discuss: 

e Evaluation of the performance of Non-Independent Directors and Board of Directors as a whole; 

e Evaluation of the performance of the Chairman of the Company, taking into account the views 

of the Executive and Non-Executive Directors; and 

e Evaluation of the quality, content and timelines of flow of information between the management 

and the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and necessarily perform its duties. 

All the Independent Directors of your Company were present in the meeting. 

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee 

As specified in the Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 

2014, the Constitution of the CSR Committee is not mandatorily applicable to the Company. As a 

matter of good practice and compliance of law in future aspects, the CSR Committee has been 

constituted voluntarily by the Board of Directors. The details of which are as follows; 

Sr. Name of the Director Status No. of the Meeting No. of meeting 
No. Held attended 
1 Mr.Pravink.Laheri Chairman 1 1 

2 Mr.Rajendra J. Sanghavi Member 1 1 

3 Mr.Umesh J. Sanghavi Member 1 1 

4 Mr.Tarak J. Sanghavi Member 1 1 

The Board level Corporate Social Responsibility Committee of the Company shall be responsible to; 

e Formulate and recommend to the Board, a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy which shall 

indicate the activities to be undertaken by the Company in areas or subject, specified in Schedule 
VII; 

e Recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the activities referred to in clause (a); 

and: 

e Monitor the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the Company from time to time. 

During the year, the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee met on 12.11.2024. 

The detailed terms of reference of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committeeis available on the 

website of the Company at www.nikhiladhesives.com 

General Body Meetings 

Details of the last three Annual General Meetings of the Company are given below: 

AGM | Date Locations Time No. of 

Financial Special 
Year Resolutions 

passed 
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26th The meeting conducted through Video 
Conferencing (VC)/other Audio Visual sat th 

2023-24 38 — means (OAVM) at the Registered Office of 03.00 PM 1 

the Company as a deemed venue of the 

meeting. 
Fist The meeting conducted through Video 

Conferencing (VC)/other Audio Visual sa th 

Uaeres ae — means (OAVM) at the Registered Office of Ra Pm 5 
the Company as a deemed venue of the 
meeting. 

2021-22 | 36m | iu) | The meeting conducted through Video | 12.00 PM | 4 
2 Conferencing (VC)/other Audio Visual 

means (OAVM) at the Registered Office of 
the Company as a deemed venue of the 
meeting. 

Details of Special Resolutions passed in the previous three AGMs: 

Date of AGM Particulars of Special Resolutions passed there at 

26" September, 
1. Regularisation of Additional Director Mr.Jagdish Mali (DIN: 10736986) 

nanan appointinghim as Executive Director of the Company. 

1. Appointment of Mr. V. Subramanian (DIN: 10162796) as an Independent 
Director (Non-Executive) of the company. 

2. TO approve payment of remuneration by way of profit related commission 

to Mr. V. Subramanian 
21*September, 3. Re-appointment of Mr.Rajendra J. Sanghavi (DIN: 00245637) as a Whole 

2023 Time Director for a period of 3 years. 
4. Re-appointment of Mr.Tarak J. Sanghavi (DIN: 00519403) as a Whole Time 
Director for a period of 3 years 
5. Change in Designation of Mr.Umesh J. Sanghavi (DIN: 00491220) from 
Chairman and Wholetime Director to Chairman and Managing Director for a 
period of 3 years w.e.f. 10th July, 2023. 

12'*September, 1. Alteration of Memorandum of Association of the Company 

2022 2. Change in Designation of Mr. Rabi R. Mishra (DIN: 02888975) from 

Wholetime Director and Chief Executive Officer to Managing Director and 
Chief Executive Officer 

3. Change in Designation in Mr.Umesh J. Sanghavi (DIN: 00491220) from 

Chairman and Managing Director to Chairman and Wholetime Director 
4. Ratification of the appointment of Ms.Gauri S. Trivedi (DIN:06502788) as 

an Independent Director for a period of 5 years 

During the year under review, there were no Resolutions proposed to be passed through Postal Ballot. 

No Extra Ordinary General Meeting of the Company was held during the year. 

Disclosures 

a) There are no materially significant party transactions entered into by your Company with it’s 

Promoters, Directors or Management or relatives etc. that may have potential conflict with the 

interests of your Company at large. A statement in summary form of transactions with the 

related parties during the year in the ordinary course of business and at Arm’s Length basis is 

disclosed in Note No. 42 of Notes to financial statements in the Annual Report. 

The Policy on materiality of Related Party Transactions and dealing with Related Party 

Transactions as approved by the Board is uploaded on the Company’s website and the same is 

available at the web link http://www.nikhiladhesives.com 

b) Your Company has complied with the requirements of Stock Exchange, Securities and Exchange 

Board of India and other statutory authorities on matter relating to capital markets during the 
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f) 

g) 

n) 

j) 

K) 
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last three years and consequently no penalties or strictures have been imposed on your 

Company by these authorities. 

While preparation of the financial statements during the year under review, no accounting 

treatment which was different from that prescribed in the Indian Accounting Standards was 

followed. The significant accounting policies applied in preparation and presentation of financial 

statements have been set out in Note No. 1 of Notes to financial statements in the Annual 

Report. 

The Company has timely paid the Annual Listing Fees to BSE Ltd. and Annual Custodial Fees 

to NSDL and CDSL for the Financial Year 2025-26. 

Your Company has laid down procedures to inform the Board Members about the risk 

assessment and minimisation procedures covering the entire gamut of business operations of 

your Company. These procedures are periodically reviewed to ensure that executive 

management controls risks by means of a properly defined framework. 

The designated senior management personnel of your Company have disclosed to the Board 

that no material, financial and commercial transactions have been entered into during the year 

under review in which they have personal interest, which may have a potential conflict with 

the interest of your Company at large. 

The Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have furnished a duly signed Certificate 

to the Board for the year ended 31°t March, 2025 in accordance with the provisions of SEBI 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

In accordance with the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 

Regulations, 1992, as amended Mrs. Beena Khandelwal has been designated as the Compliance 

Officer of the Company from 22" May, 2024under the Company’s Code of Conduct for 

Prevention of Insider Trading. Your Company also adheres to the disclosure practices for 

Prevention of Insider Trading as specified in the aforesaid SEBI Regulations. 

Your Company has adopted Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blower Policy for developing a culture 

where it is safe for all Directors/Employees to raise concerns about any unacceptable practice 

and any event of misconduct. The Policy allows unrestricted access to all employees and others 

to approach the Audit Committee and there has been no instance during the year 

No personnel have been denied access to the Audit Committee. There was no complaint under 

this mechanism received during the year. The policy of Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blower is 

placed on the website of the Company (www.nikhiladhesives.com). 

Your Company is familiarising the Independent Directors on its Board on a quarterly basis and 

the detail of familiarisation programme are posted on the website of your Company and is 

available at the web link http://www.nikhiladhesives.com 

Your Company has compliant with all applicable mandatory requirements of the provisions of 

the SEBI LODR for the March 31, 2025. 

m) During the year, the Board has accepted all recommendations made by various Committees of 

Boardof Directors of the Company. 

n) The Company has complied with the requirements of Corporate Governance Report of sub 

0) 

p) 

q) 

paras (2) to (10) mentioned in Para C of Schedule V of SEBI LODR and disclosed necessary 

information as specified in Regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) and (t) of Regulation 

46(2) of SEBI LODR at the respective places in this report. 

The total fees paid to M/s. PPV & CO, Statutory Auditor of the Company in relation to the 

Statutory Audit is given in the financial statements. 

During the year under review, there were no cases filed or reported pursuant to the Sexual 

Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. 

The Certificate from a Company Secretary in practice that none of the Directors on the Board 

of the Company have been debarred or disqualified by the Board/Ministry of Corporate Affairs 

or any such Statutory Authority is given under this Report. 

Disclosure by listed entity and its subsidiaries of ‘Loans and advances in the nature of loans to 

firms/companies in which directors are interested by name and amount’: Not Applicable
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S) Details of material subsidiaries of the listed 
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entity; including the date and _ place of 

incorporation and the name and date of appointment of the statutory auditors of such 

subsidiaries: There are no material subsidiaries of the Company. 

Means of Communication 

Quarterly/Half-yearly financial results of your Company are forwarded to the BSE Ltd. and published 

in Free Press Journal (English Daily) and Navshakti (Marathi Daily) and the financial results are 

uploaded on your Company’s website (www.nikhiladhesives.com), 

General Shareholder Information 

1. Annual General Meeting Date, Time and - Tuesday, 23' September, 2025, 3:00 PM. 
Deemed Venue (through VC/OVAM facility) 

(The Registered Address is deemed venue) 

902, 9th Floor, A-Wing, Kaledonia HDIL 
Building 
Sahar Road, Opp. D-Mart 

Andheri (East), Mumbai — 400069. 

2. Financial Year : 2024-2025 
3. Date of Book Closure/Cut-off date of e- : Book closure start date: 17" September, 

voting 2025 

Book closure end date:23™ September, 2025 

SCUESOF date of e-voting: 16‘° September, 2025 

4. Date of Payment of Dividend within 30 days of 39%" AGM 
5. Financial Calendar (Tentative) 

Unaudited financial result for the quarter 

ended 30' June, 2025 
Unaudited financial result for the quarter 
ended 30‘ September, 2025 
Unaudited financial result for the quarter 

ended 30'"°December, 2025 
Audited financial result for the year ending 
31% March, 2026 
Annual General Meeting for the year ending 
31%tMarch, 2026 

6. Listing of Stock Exchange and its address 

Stock Code on BSE Ltd 

Demat ISIN number NSDL & CDSL 

Grievance Redressal division email O
O
o
 

August 8", 2025 

on or before 14*? November, 2025 

on or before 14""February, 2026 

on or before 30" May, 2026 

on or before 30 September, 2025 

BSE Ltd. 
PhirozeJeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street, 
Mumbai-400001 

526159 

INE926C01022 

investors@nikhiladhesives.com 

10. Distribution Schedule of number of shares as on 31*%* March, 2025: 

Shares No. of Holders % No. of Shares % 

Upto 500 11904 86.8905 1027594.00 2.2367 

501 to 1000 730 5.3285 617621.00 1.3443 

1001 to 5000 806 5.8832 1978032 4.3054 

5001 to 10000 119 0.8686 934046 2.0331 

10001 to above 141 1.0292 41385707 90.0805 

11. Dematerialization of Shares and Liquidity as at 31%* March, 2025: 

Total No. of Fully | Shares in demat Shares in 
_paid up shares form Rereentage <7) physical form Percentage (719) 
4,59,43,000 4,55,43,600 99.13 3,99,400 0.87 

he) 
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12. Category of Shareholding as on 31st March, 2025: 

J 
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Category No. of Shares Bad A 
Shareholding 

A. Promoter’s Holding 
Promoters 

a. Indian Promoters 2,50,10,100 54.44 

b. Foreign Promoters : - 

1. Persons acting in concert - - 
SUB TOTAL (A) 2,50,10,100 54.44 

B. Non-Promoter’s Holding 
2. Institutional Investors 

a. Mutual Funds and UTI - - 

b. Banks, Financial Institutions, Insurance Companies - - 

(Central/State Government Institutions/Non- 

Government Institutions) 

c. FII(s) 18577 0.04 

4. Others 

a. Bodies Corporate 6160969 13.41 

b. Indian Public 12484418 27.17 

c. NRI’s and OCB's 307013 0.67 

d. Clearing Members 869013 1.89 

e. Trusts - - 

f. HUF 455460 0.99 

g. IEPF MCA Account 637450 1.39 

SUB TOTAL (B) 20932900 45.56 

GRAND TOTAL (A+B) 4,59,43,000 100.00 

13. Registrars and Transfer Agents 

14. Share Transfer Systems 

15. Issue of any GDRs, ADRs etc 

16. Plant Locations 

: M/s. MUFG Intime India Private Limited, 

(Formerly Link Intime India Private Limited) 
: C-201, 247 Park, LBS Marg, Vikhroli (West), 
Mumbai- 400 083. 

: Trading in equity shares of the Company is 

permitted only in dematerialized form. In 

terms of the requirements of Regulation 40 of 

the SEBI Listing Regulations w.e.f. April 1, 
2019, transfer of securities in physical form, 
except in case of request received for 

transmission or transposition of securities, 

Shall not be processed. Accordingly, 
shareholders holding equity shares in physical 
form are urged to have their shares 

dematerialized to be able to freely transfer 
them and participate in various corporate 

actions. 

: Your Company has not issued any GDRs, ADRs, 

Warrants or any Convertible Instruments 

: Plant 1: 

Shreeji Industrial Estate, Vadkun College, 
Road, Dahanu, Dist. Palghar - 401602. 

Plant 2: 

Plot No. 7A & 7B, Government Industrial 

Estate, Phase- I, Piparia, Silvassa - 396230. 

Plant 3: 

Plot No. D-2/CH/49, GIDC Estate, Dahej, Tal- 

Vagra, Dist-Bharuch- 392130, Gujarat. 
Plant 4: 

Plot No. 570A & 570B, Vasanthanaraspura 
Industrial 

Area, 2nd Phase, Tumakuru, Dist- Bengaluru. 

Plant 5: 
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Plot No. 73 & 74, Industrial Area, Mehatpur, 

Dist - UNA, Himachal Pradesh - 174315 

17. Registered Office Address (902, 9th Floor, A-Wing, Kaledonia HDIL 
Building, Sahar Road, Opp. OD-Mart, 
Andheri(East), Mumbai - 400069, 
ManarasnNtra. 

18. Address of Shareholders : M/s. MUFG Intime India Private Limited, 

Correspondence (Formerly Link Intime India Private Limited) 

C-101, 247 Park, L.B.S. Marg, Vikhroli (West), 
Mumbai- 400 083 
Website:www.in.mpms.mufg.com 
Email id- rnt.helpdesk@in.mpms.mufg.com 

19. Credit Rating : BBB 

DECLARATION 

As required under Schedule V (D) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulation, 2015, the Board Members and the Senior Management Personnel have confirmed 

compliances with the Code of Conduct for the Board of Directors and the Senior Management for the 

year ended 31st March, 2025. 

For Nikhil Adhesives Limited 

Sd/- Place: Mumbai 
Umesh Sanghavi Date: 08.08.2025 

Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer 

of



ee 7 YY 7 7 ae 

TO, 
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CEO AND CFO CERTIFICATION 

The Members 

Nikhil Adhesives Limited, 
Mumbai. 

Re: Financial Statements for the year 2024-25 Certification by the CEO and CFO. 

We the undersigned, on the basis of the review of the financial statements and the cash flow statement 

for the financial year ended 31° March, 2025 and to the best of our knowledge and belief, hereby 

certify that: 

Le These statements do not contain any materially untrue statements or omit any material fact 

or contains statements that might be misleading. 

2. These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in 

compliance with the Indian Accounting Standards, applicable laws and regulations. 

3. There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the 

Company during the year ended 31° March, 2025 which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of 

the Company’s Code of Conduct. 

4. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls. We have evaluated 

the effectiveness of the internal control systems of the Company and we have disclosed to the 

Auditors and the Audit Committee those deficiencies, of which we are aware, in the design or 

operation of the internal control systems and that we have taken the required steps to rectify 

these deficiencies. 

5. We further certify that: 

a. There have been no significant changes in internal control during this year; 
b. There have been no significant changes in accounting policies during this year; 

c. There have been no instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the 

involvement therein, of management or an employee having significant role in the 
Company’s internal control systems. 

Sd/- Sd/- 
Umesh Sanghavi Anita Sanghavi 
Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer 
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To, 

The Members of, 
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS 

(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10) (i) of the SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015) 

Nikhil Adhesives Limited, 

A-902, Kaledonia B uilding, Sahar Road, 

Opp. Vijay Nagar, Andheri (East), 

Mumbai - 400069. 

I, Poonam Somani, Proprietor of Somani& Associates., Company Secretary in practice have examined 

the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of Nikhil 

Adhesives Limited having CIN L51900MH1986PLC041062 and having registered office at A-902, 

Sahar Road, Opp. Vijay Nagar, Andheri (East), Mumbai - 400069 hereinafter referred Kaledonia Building, 
to as ‘the Company’), 
accordance with Regu 

produced before me by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in 
ation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C clause 10(i) of the Securities Exchange 

Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications (including Directors 

Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and 

explanations furnished to me by the Company & its officers, I hereby certify that none of the Directors 
on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending on 31° March, 2025 have 

been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such other Statutory 

Authority. 

Sr. No. | Name of Director DIN Date of Appointment 
in Company * 

1 Mr.Rajendra Jayantilal Sanghavi 00245637 29/09/1986 
2 Mr.Umesh Jayantilal Sanghavi 00491220 29/09/1986 

3 Mr.Pravin Kanubhai Laheri 00499080 01/04/2021 

4 Mr. Tarak Jayantilal Sanghavi 00519403 01/10/1987 

5 Mr. Subramanian Venketakrishnan 10162796 01/07/2023 

6 Ms.Gauri Trivedi 06502788 01/01/2022 

7 Mr. Jagdish Balvant Mali 10736989 08/08/2024 
8 Mr. Sethunathan C Laxmanan 10535064 17/03/2025 

*The date of appointment is as per the MCA Portal 

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility 

of the management of the Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on my 
verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the 

efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

For Somani& Associates 

(Practising Company Secretaries) 

Poonam Somani 

FCS No. F9364 

CP No. 8642 

UDIN No. F009364G000962789 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 08.08.2025 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

TO THE MEMBERS OF NIKHIL ADHESIVES LIMITED 

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Financial Statements of Nikhil Adhesives 
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31, 2025, the 

Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes 
in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial 
statements, including a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory 
information. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to 
us, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements give the information required by the 

Companies Act, 2013 in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity 

with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the 

Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, and other accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 

2025, its profit, other comprehensive loss, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year 

ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements in accordance with the 
Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. 
Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for 
the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent 

of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of 

the Standalone Financial Statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and 

the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance 
with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have 

obtained is sufficient and appropriate toprovide a basis for our opinion on the Standalone 
Financial Statements. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most 

significance in our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements for the financial year ended 
March 31, 2025. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the Standalone 

Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide 

a separate opinion on these matters. For the key audit matter below, our description of how 

our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context. 

We have determined the matter described below to be the key audit matter to be 

communicated in our report. We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s 
responsibilities for the audit of théStandalone Financial Statementssection of our report, 
including in relation to this matter. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of 

procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of 

the Standalone Financial Statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the 

procedures performed to address the matter below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on 
the accompanying Standalone Financial Statements.
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Key audit matters Auditor’s Response 

Inventory Existence and Valuation 

(Refer Note 1.6 and 9 of the Standalone Financial Statements) 

As at March 31, 2025 the Company held | Our audit procedures included: 

Inventory amounting to = 8,809.74 lakhs. 

Inventories are valued at lower of cost and Net : Bereeeng Ene OMEN. : 
; , accounting policy for inventory 

realizable value. The Company’s major part of waluation’ 

inventory comprises raw materials and work-in- 

progress which are spread across multiple - assessing the inventory valuation 
factories. These inventories are physically processes and testing the key 

counted by Management on a periodical basis. controls around inventory 
ee . existence and valuation 

There is significant management judgement necertinne: 

involved in estimating the overhead costs 

allocation on inventories, assessing provision 

towards non-moving or obsolete inventories, as 

well as net realizable value of items held. 

“ verifying the existence and 

condition of inventory’ by 

attending inventory _ physical 

The Management's estimates of net realizable counts across various locations. 
value are based on the most reliable evidence 

available at the time the estimates are made, of 

the amount the inventories are expected to 

realise. The Management also provides for non- 

moving or obsolete stock on the basis of age of 

inventory. Such methodology relies upon 

certain assumptions made in determining 

appropriate provisioning for such inventories. 

- assessing management 

judgements regarding estimates 

of net realizable value, the 

methodology used for overhead 

costs allocation on inventory and 

treatment for non-moving§ or 

obsolete stock. 

Based on above, existence and valuation of 

inventories have been identified as a key audit 

matters. 

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon 

(“Other Information” ) 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other 
information comprises the information included in the Company’s Annual Report but does not 
include the Standalone Financial Statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The other 

information is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report. 

Our opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements does not cover the other information and 

we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of theStandalone Financial Statements , our responsibility is to 

read the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, 
consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the Standalone 

Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be 

materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement 

of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in 

this regard. 
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the 

Standalone Financial Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of 
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of theéStandalone 
Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial 

performance including other comprehensive loss, cash flows and changes in equity of the 

Company in accordance withIndian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of 

the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended 
and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes 
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for 

safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 

irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments 

and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance 
of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the 

accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and 

presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the 

Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors 
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative 
but to do so. 

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting 

process. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Financial 
Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, 

and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high 
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will 

always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or 

error and are considered material if, individually or n the aggregate, they could reasonably 
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial 

statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Financial 

Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures 

responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to 

provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement 
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 

collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal 

control. 

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether 

the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls. 

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

° Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 
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accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 

exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s 

ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, 
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in 

the Standalone Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify 

our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of 

our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to 
cease to continue as a going concern. 

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone Financial 

Statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Standalone Financial Statements 

represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Standalone Financial Statements that, 
individually or in the aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably 
knowledgeable user of Standalone Financial Statements may be influenced. We consider 
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and 
in evaluating the results of our work and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified 

misstatements in the Standalone Financial Statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 

deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 

relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, 

and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those 
matters that were of most significance in the audit of thStandalone Financial Statements 
for the financial year ended Marcli81, 2025 and are therefore the key audit matters.We 
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public 
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a 
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing 

SO would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such 

communication. 

Other Matter 

The Standalone Financial Statements of the Company fothe year ended March 31 , 2024, 
were prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 
of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, 
and other accounting principles generally accepted in India has been audited by the 

predecessor auditor. The report of the predecessor auditordated May 22, 2024, expressed 
an unmodified opinion. 

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matter. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the 

Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies 
Act, 2013, we give in the Annexure A, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 
3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

2. A] As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 
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(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best 

of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 

Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books. 

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive 

Loss, Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this 

report are in agreement with the books of account; 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements comply with the Indian 

Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies 

(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended; 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as oMarch 

31, 2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified 

as on March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) 

of the Act; 

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these 

Standalone Financial Statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, 

refer to our separate Report in Annexure B to this report; 

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance 

with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and 

to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 

remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance 

with the provisions of section 197 of the Act. 

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance 

with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014,as amended in our 

opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to 

us: 

a. The Company does not have any pending litigations except for as disclosed in 

Note 36 to the said financial statements which would impact its financial 

position. 

b. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative 

contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses. 

c. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to 

the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.There were no 

amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and 

Protection Fund by the Company. 

d. (i) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and 
belief, as disclosed in the Standalone Financial Statements, no funds have 
been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share 

premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in 
any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities 
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or 
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest 
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on 

behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, 
security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

(ii) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and 
belief, as disclosed in the Standalone Financial statements, no funds have 

been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies),including 
foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether
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recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, directly or 

indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) 
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries. 

(iii) Based on such audit proceduresperformed as considered reasonable and 

appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has 
caused us to believe that the representations under subclause (d) (i) and 

(d) (ii) above contain any material mis-statement. 

v. The final dividend paid by the Company during the year, in respect of the same 

declared for the previous year, is in accordance with Section 123 of the Act as 

applicable. 

As stated in Note 48 to the Standalone Financial Statements, the Board of 

Directors of the Company has proposed final dividend for the year which is 
subject to the approval of the members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. 

The dividend declared is in accordance with Section 123 of the Act to the extent 

it applies to declaration of dividend. 

vi. Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used 

an accounting software for maintaining its books of accountfor the financial 

year ended March 31, 2025 which have the feature of recording audit trail (edit 
log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant 

transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit 
we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with 

in respect of the accounting software and the audit trail has been preserved by 
the Company as per statutory requirements for record retention. 

For Jay Shah & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No. 135424W 

CA Jay A. Shah 
(Proprietor) 

Membership No.: 134334 
UDIN: 25134334BMIHTP1328 
Place: Dahej 

Date: May 21, 2025
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Annexure A 

Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 

Requirements’ section of our Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the 

members of Nikhil Adhesives Limited on the Standalone Financial Statements for the 

year ended March 31, 2025. 

In terms of the information and explanantions sought by us and given by the Company and the 

books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of 
our knowledge and belief, we state that: 

(1) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, 

including quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment 
and capital work-in-progress and relevant details of right-of-use assets. 

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of 

intangible assets and intangible assets under development. 

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has a regular 
program of physical verification of its property, plant and equipment under which 

these property, plant and equipment are verified in a phase manner over a period of 
three years, which in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the 
Company and nature of its assets. In accordance with this program, certain property, 
plant and equipment were verified during the year and no material discrepancies 

were noticed on such verification. 

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, the title deeds of all 
immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is the lessee and 

lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the Company) disclosed in 

Standalone Financial Statements included in Property,plant and equipment are held 
in the name of the Company as at the balance sheet date. 

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 

examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its 
Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right-of-use assets) and intangible assets 
during the year hence clause 3(i)(d) of the Order is not applicable. 

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us, no proceedings have been 
initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami property under 
the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder and 
hence clause 3(i)(e) of the Order is not applicable. 

(ii) (a) The inventories, except goods-in-transit and stocks lying with third parties, have been 

physically verified by the management during the year. In our opinion and based on 

information and explanations given to us, the coverage and procedure of such 
verification by the management is appropriate having regard to the size of the 
Company and the nature of its operations. No discrepancies of 10% or more in the 

aggregate for each class of inventories were noticed on suchphysical verification of 

inventories. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 

examination of the records of the Company, the Company has been sanctioned 

working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks on the 

basis of security of current assets. The differences between quarterly returns filed 
with banks and the books of acccount are set out as below: 
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(Amount in Lakhs) 

Amount Reaso 

Nature of Current | disclosed as 

Smarter Name of Assets offered as er As per books Difference — om 
ended the Bank P of account differe 

Security Quarterly nce 

Statements 

Q1 

June 30, 19,084.49 19,103.20 (18.71) 

2024 

Q2 Bank Of A. Inventory Refer 
Sept 30, India & B. Trade 17,416.61 18,223.66 | (807.05) | peas 
2024 Consortiu Receivables ons 1 
Q3 m of Banks (Outstanding & 2 
Dec 31, 2024 upke 90 dave) 15,653.24 16,214.06 (560.82) 

O4 

March 31, 19,245.36 18,965.07 280.29 

2025 

Reason 1 

Certain sale invoices that were already discounted, were not included in the statements 

of trade receivables submitted to the bank as such invoices were ineligible to be again 
offered as security. However, such invoices continued to be reflected in the bks of 

account (unaudited for Ql, Q2 anc 
accounting standards. This has resu 

higher in the books as compared to t 

Reason 2 
Due to transactions of sale and purchase with the same party, these reflect both with 

debit and credit balances. In the quarterly statement submitted to the bank, these have 
been reflected on gross basis (i.e. without deducting credit balances). However, in the 
books of account (unaudited for Q1, Q2 and Q3) such balances have been netted off. 

(iii) 

Q3) in accordance with the applicable Indian 
ted in the value of trade receivables appearing 

ye quarterly returns. 

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any investments, 
provided guarantee or security or granted any advances in the nature of loans, secured 

or unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties 

during the year except loan to employees in respect of which requisite information is as 
below: 

a. During the year, the Company has granted unsecured loan to its employee. 

A. According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company does 
not have any subsidiary, joint ventures & associate. Accordingly, this clause 
is not applicable to the Company. 

B. Based on the audit procedures carried on by us and as per the information 

and explanation given to us, the Company has granted unsecured loan to 
other party as follows : 

(Amount in Lakhs) 

Loan given during the Balance Outstanding as at 
Particulars year March 31, 2025 

Other Party = sae 

- Employees 
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b. According to the information and explanation given to us and based on the audit 

procedure performed by us, we are of the opinion that the terms and conditions 

of the loan granted are, prima facie not prejudicial to the interest of the Company. 

c. According to the information and explanation given to us and based on the audit 
procedures performed by us, in the case of loan given, the repayment of principal 

has been stipulated and the repayment or receipt has been regular. 

d. According to the information and explanation given to us and based on the audit 

procedures performed by us, there is no overdue amount for more than ninety 

days in respect of loan given, consequently reporting for steps taken for recovery 

of the principal and interest does not arise. 

e. According to the information and explanation given to us and based on the audit 
procedures performed by us, no loan or advance in the nature of loan granted 

which has fallen due during the year, or have been renewed or extended or fresh 
loan granted to settle the overdue of existing loan given to the same party. 

f. According to information and explanation given to us and based on the audit 
procedures performed, the Company has not granted any loan either repayable 
on demand or without specifying any terms or period repayment during the year. 
Hence, reporting under clause (iii)(f) of the Order is not applicable. 

(iv) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 

examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not given any loans, 

provided any guarantee or given any security as specified under Section 185 and Section 

186 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”). In respect of the investment made, in our 

opinion the provisions of Section 186 of the Act have been complied with. 

(v) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 

Company has accepted deposits during the year and complied the provisions of Sections 

73 to 76 and other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed 

there under, as applicable. 

(vi) The maintenance of cost records have been specified by the Central Government under 

section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. We have broadly reviewed the cost records 

maintained by the Company pursuant to the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 

2014 as amended, prescribed by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of the 

Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the 

prescribed cost records have been made and maintained. 

(vii) 

a. According to the information and explanations given to us, and on the basis of our 

examination of the books of account, the Company has been generally regular in 

depositing with the appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues including 

Income Tax, duty of custom, Goods and Service Tax (GST), provident fund, 

employees’ state insurance, cess and other statutory dues as applicable, and as at 

March 31, 2025, there were few undisputed dues payable for a period of more than 

six months from the date of becoming payable which are as follows:
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(Amount in lakhs) 
Period to 

Name of the Nature i ee which the Remarks 

Statute of dues amount 

relates 

Income-tax Act, Income 
1961 sie 10.17 Prior years 

Income-tax Act, Income 3.90 FY 2021-22. | The Company is in the 
1961 tax process of going through the 
Income- A Inc inti i ncome-tax Act, ome 1.52 FY 2022-23. | intimations received and to 
1961 tax take appropriate corrective 

Income-tax Act, Income 0.38 FY 9993-24 | Measures in the matter. 
1961 tax 

Income-tax Act Income 
: 0.87 FY 2024-25 

1961 tax . 

b. According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of GST, 
provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales tax, service tax, duty 

of customs, value added tax, cess or other statutory dues which have not been 

deposited by the Company on account of disputes. 

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 

examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or 

disclosed any transactions, previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in 
the tax assessments under the Income-tax Act, 1961 as income during the year. 

(ix) (a) 

(b) 

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in 

repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any 

lender. 

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 

examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a 
wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or government 

authority. 

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the 

(d) 

(f) 

term loans taken by the Company were applied for the purpose for which the loans 
were taken. 

According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that funds raised 

on short-term basis have not been utilised for long term purposes by the Company. 

According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company does not hold 

any investment in any subsidiary, associate or joint venture (as defined under the 
Companies Act, 2013) during the year ended March 31, 2025. Accordingly, clause 
3(ix)(e) is not applicable. 

According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company does not hold 

any investment in any subsidiary, associate or joint venture (as defined under the 

Companies Act, 2013) during the year ended March 31, 2025. Accordingly, clause 
3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable. 

(x) (a) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further Public 
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offer (including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, clause (x)(a) of the 

Order is not applicable. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any 

preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible 

debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause (x)(b) of the Order is not applicable. 

(xi) (a) According to the information and explanation given to us, no fraud by the Company 

and no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year. 

(b) Based on our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in 
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to 
the information and explanations given to us, a report under Section 143(12) of the 

Act, in Form ADT-4, as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) 
Rules, 2014 was not required to be filed with the Central Government. Accordingly, 
the provisions stated under clause 3(xi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the 
Company. 

(c) There were no whistle blower complaints received by the Company during the year. 

(xii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi 
Company. Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable. 

(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
transactions with related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, where applicable, and the details of the related party transactions 
have been disclosed in the Standalone Financial Statements as required by the applicable 
Indian Accounting Standards. 

(xiv) (a) Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in 

our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size 

and nature of its business. 

(b) Internal auditor’s reports for the period under audit have been considered by us. 

(xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons 

connected to its directors and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Companies Act 
2013 are not applicable to the Company. 

(xvi) (a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve 
Bank of India, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi) (a) of the Order is not applicable. 

(b) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve 
Bank of India, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi) (a) of the Order is not applicable. 

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations 

made by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not 
applicable. 

(d) According to the information and explanations provided to us during the course of 

audit, the Group does not have any CIC. Accordingly, the requirements of clause 
3(xvi) (d) are not applicable. 

(xvil) The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and immediately preceding 

financial year.
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(xvili)There has been resignation of the statutory auditors during the year, there were no 

issues, objections or concerns raised by the outgoing auditors. 

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial 

ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of 

financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our 
knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our 

examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our 

attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date 

of audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the 

date of balance sheet, as and when they fall due, within a period of one year from the 
balance sheet date. We however, state that our reporting is not an assurance on the 
future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts 

upto the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance 

that all the liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, 
will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due. 

(xx) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 

Company has not transferred the amount remaining unspent to a Fund specified in 
Schedule VII to the Companies Act, 2013 till the date of our report. However, the 
time period for such transfer i.e. six months of the expiry of the financial year as 
permitted under the second proviso to sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Act, has 

not elapsed till the date of our report. 

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us in 

respect of ongoing projects, the Company has transferred unspent amount to a 

special account, within a period of thirty days from the end of the financial year in 
compliance with section 135(6) of the Act. 

For Jay Shah & Associates 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No. 135424W 

CA Jay A. Shah 

(Proprietor) 

Membership No.: 134334 

UDIN: 25134334BMIHTP1328 

Place: Dahej 

Date: May 21, 2025
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Annexure B 

Referred to in paragraph 2(A)(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 

Requirements’ section of our Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the 

members of Nikhil Adhesives Limited on the Standalone Financial Statements for 

the year ended March 31, 2025. 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of 

Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 

We have audited the internal financial controlsvith reference to the Standalone Financial 
Statements of Nikhil Adhesives Limited (“the Company”) as at March 32025 _, in 
conjunction with our audit of theStandalone F inancial Statements of the Company for the 
year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 

controls based on the internal financial controlwith reference to Standalone Financial 

Statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over 
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These 
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct 

of its business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the 
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required 

under the Act. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controlswith 
reference to the Standalone Financial Statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit 

in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 

Reporting (‘the Guidance Note’) and the Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under 
section 143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, 
both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and both issued by the ICAI. Those 

Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan 

and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal 
financial controls with reference to the Standalone Financial Statements was established and 
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 
internal financial controls system with reference to the Standalone Financial Statements and 

their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to 

Standalone Financial Statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial 
controls with reference to the Standalone Financial Statements, assessing the risk that a 
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness 
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the 

auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 

financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 

a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial 

reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to the Standalone Financial 

Statements
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A Company’s internal financial control with reference to Standalone Financial Statements is a 
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial 

reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles. A Company’s internal financial control with 
reference to Standalone Financial Statements includes those policies and procedures that: 

(a) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly 
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; 

(b) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 

preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in 

accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the Company; and 

(c) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a material 

effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to the Standalone 

Financial Statements 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to Standalone 
Financial Statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override 

of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. 

Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial combtolsreference to 

Standalone Financial Satements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal 
financial control with reference to the Standalone Financialtements may become 
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the 

policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls 

with reference to theStandalone Financial Statements and such internal financial controls 
with reference to the Standalone Financial Statements were operating effectively as at March 
31, 2025, based on the criteria for internal financial control with reference to Standalone 

Financial Statements established by the Company considering the essential components of 

internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

For Jay Shah & Associates 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No. 135424W 

CA Jay A. Shah 

(Proprietor) 

Membership No.: 134334 

UDIN: 25134334BMIHTP1328 

Place: Dahe] 

Date: May 21, 2025 
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NIKHIL ADHESIVES LIMITED 

CIN : L51900MH1986PLC041062 

Balance Sheet as at 31 March, 2025 

(Amount in Lakhs) 
Particular Note No. As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 

ASSETS 

1, Non-current assets 

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 2A 9,133.01 8,892.65 

(b) Right-of-Use Assets 2B 421.74 480.53 

(c) Capital work-in-progress 3 - 1.44 

(d) Intangible assets 4 - - 

(e) Intangible assets under development 5 64.50 

(f) Financial Assets 

(i) Investments 6 0.86 1.10 

(ii) Other non-current financial assets 7 43.49 51.72 

(g) Other non-current assets 8 90.46 127.38 

Total Non-current Assets 9,754.06 9,554.82 

2. Current assets 

(a) Inventories 9 8,809.74 7,596.08 

(b) Financial Assets 

(i) Trade receivables 10 11,326.51 10,072.25 

(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 11 431.87 1,102.90 

(iii) Bank balances other than (ii) above 12 143.81 108.48 

(c) Current Tax Assets (net) 13 1,245.14 750.74 

(d) Other current assets 14 586.61 363.32 

Total Current Assets 22,543.68 19,993.77 

TOTAL ASSETS 32,297.74 29,548.59 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

|. Equity 

(a) Equity Share Capita! 15 460.50 460.50 

(b) Other Equity 16 12,517.09 10,938.27 

TOTAL EQUITY 12,977.59 11,398.77 

ll. Liabilities 

1. Non-Current Liabilities 

(a) Financial Liabilities 

(i) Borrowings 17 2,483.49 2,528.48 

(ii) Lease Liabilities 18 174.61 247.69 

(iii) Other Non-Current Financial Liabilities 19 263.16 155.03 

(b) Provisions 20 191.97 146,24 

(c) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 21 566.35 530.47 

Total Non-Current Liabilities 3,679.58 3,607.90 

2. Current Liabilities 

(a) Financial Liabilities 

(i) Borrowings 22 3,160.88 2,544.19 
(ii) Lease Liabilities 18 106.11 74.55 

(iii) Trade Payables 23 

enterprises 791.24 914.64 

enterprises 7,970.40 8,359.53 

and small enterprises 

(iv) Other Current Financial Liabilities 24 1,779.89 1,390.39 

(b) Other Current Liabilities 25 569.73 510.25 

(c) Provisions 26 10,33 11.40 

(d) Current Tax Liabilities (net) 13 1,251.99 736.99 

Total Current Liabilities 15,640.57 14,541.92 

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 32,297.74 29,548.59 

Material Accounting Policies 1 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements 

As per our attached report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

For Jay Shah & Associates Umesh J. Sanghavi Rajendra J. Sanghavi 

Chartered Accountants (Managing Director) (Whole-time Director) 

Firm Registration No, 135424W DIN : 00491220 DIN : 00245637 

CA Jay A. Shah Tarak J. Sanghavi 5. Venketakrishnan 

(Proprietor) (Whole-time Director) (Independent Director) 

Membership No.: 134334 DIN : 00519403 DIN : 10162796 

Place: Dahej Anita U. Sanghavi Beena Khandelwal 

Date : May 21, 2025 (Chief Financial Officer) (Company Secretary) 

Dahej, May 21, 2025 M. No. A69067 
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NIKHIL ADHESIVES LIMITED 

CIN : LS1900MH1986PLC041062 

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March, 2025 

(Amount in Lakhs) 

pesitcotaK Note No. For the Year Ended For the Year Ended 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

INCOME 

Revenue from operations 2] 58,458.75 56,419.32 

Other income 28 56.61 34.88 

Total income 58,515.36 56,454.20 

EXPENSE 

Cost of materials consumed 29 42,112.64 42,144.52 

Purchases of stock-in-trade 30 3,231.32 3,878.20 

Changes in inventories of Finished goods, Stock-in-trade 
31 716.51 179.42 

and Work-In-Progress 

Employee benefits expense 32 2,404.83 1,905.61 

Finance costs 33 811.91 696.40 

Depreciation and amortization expense 34 707.65 622.66 

Other expenses 35 6,288.69 5,234.68 

Total expenses 

Profit before exceptional items and tax 

Exceptional items 

56,273.55 

2,241.81 

54,661.49 

1,792.71 

Profit before tax 2,241.81 1,792.71 

Tax expense 

Current tax 515.00 382.35 

Deferred tax 40.87 85.29 

tax expenses 555.87 467.64 

Profit for the year 1,685.94 1,325.07 

Other comprehensive income 

Items that will not be reclassified to profit & loss 

Change in fair value of financial assets (0.24) 0.50 

Remeasurements of net defined benefit plans (19.82) (2.27) 

Tax effect of above 4,99 0.57 

Total other comprehensive income /(loss) (15.07) (1.20) 

Total comprehensive income for the year 1,670.87 1,323.87 

Earnings per equity share (Face value of Re. 1/- per share} 37 

Basic 3.67 2.88 

Diluted 3.67 2.88 

Material Accounting Policies 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements 

As per our attached report of even date 

For Jay Shah & Associates 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No. 135424W 

CA Jay A. Shah 

(Proprietor) 

Membership No.: 134334 

Place : Dahej 

Date : May 21, 2025 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Umesh J. Sanghavi 

(Managing Director) 

DIN : 00491220 

Tarak J. Sanghavi 

(Whole-time Director) 

DIN : 00519403 

Anita U. Sanghavi 

(Chief Financial Officer) 

Dahej, May 21, 2025 

Rajendra J. Sanghavi 

(Whole-time Director) 

DIN : 00245637 

5. Venketakrishnan 

(Independent Director) 

DIN : 10162796 

Beena Khandelwal 

(Company Secretary) 

M. No. A69067 

i 
iL. 
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NIKHIL ADHESIVES LIMITED 

CIN : L51900MH1986PLC041062 

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March, 2025 

(Amount in Lakhs) 

. For the Year Ended For the Year Ended 

halenias March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 
A. Cash flows from Operating Activities 

Profit before tax 2,241.81 1,792.71 

Non-cash and not operating adjustment to profit before tax: 

Depreciation and amortisation expense 707.65 622.66 

Allowance for expected credit loss 2.29 16,13 

Provision for Gratuity 24.86 12.55 

Finance costs 811.91 696,40 

Bad debts written off 21.33 4.81 

Foreign exchange (gain)/loss 22.65 1,590.69 (58.09) 1,294.45 

3,832.50 3,087.16 

Change in operating assets and liabilities : 

Decrease/(Increase) in trade receivables (1,300.54) 932.27 

Decrease/(Increase) in inventories (1,213.66) 824.28 

Increase/(Decrease) in trade payables (512.52) (2,770.63) 

Decrease/(Increase) in other non-current financial assets 8.23 (4,43) 

Increase/(Decrease) in other non-current financial Liabilities 153.86 (14,31) 

Decrease/(Increase) in other non-current assets 36.92 (21.98) 

Decrease/(Increase) in other current assets (223.30) 135.54 

Increase/(Decrease) in other current financial liabilities 389.51 398.30 

Increase/(Decrease) in other current liabilities 13.75 (2,647.75) (759.01) (1,279.98) 

Cash generated from operations 1,184.75 1,807.19 

Direct taxes paid (net of refunds) (494.40) (383.21) 

Net cash flows from/(used in) Operating Activities (A) 690.35 1,423.97 

B. Cash flows from Investing Activities 

Payments for acquisition of property, plant and equipment (net) (1,103.86) (1,719.15) 

Government Grant Received 110.07 - 

Term deposits with banks (placed)/ matured(Net) (35.33) 14.41 

Net Cash Flows from/(used in) Investing Activities (B) (1,029.12) (1,704.74) 

C. Cash flows from Financing Activities 

Dividend paid (92.05) (91.89) 

Proceeds / (Repayment) of long term borrowings (Net) (44.99) 937.45 

Proceeds / (Repayment) of short term borrowings (Net) 616.69 967.66 

Finance costs (811.91) (788.81) 

Net Cash Flows from/(used in) Financing Activities (C) (332.26) 1,024.41 

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (671.03) 743.65 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1,102.90 359.26 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 431.87 1,102.90 

Notes: 

A) Cash and cash equivalents are as under: 
(Amount in Lakhs) 

Particulars 
As at 

March 31, 2025 

As at 

March 31, 2024 

(i) Balance with Banks : 

(a) Current Accounts 429.52 602.35 

(b) Term Deposits with original maturity of three month or le - 499,00 

(ii) Cash on hand 2.35 1.55 

Total 431.87 1,102.90 

C) For Disclosure requirements as per amendments to IND AS 7 (Refer note 45) 

B) The above statement of cash flow has been prepared under the "Indirect method" as set out in IND AS-7 "Statement of cash flow" 

As per our attached report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

For Jay Shah & Associates 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No. 135424W 

Rajendra J. Sanghavi 

(Whole-time Director) 

DIN : 00245637 

Umesh J. Sanghavi 

(Managing Director) 

DIN : 00491220 

5. Venketakrishnan 

(Independent Director) 

DIN : 10162796 

CA Jay A. Shah 

(Proprietor) 

Membership No.: 134334 

Tarak J. Sanghavi 

(Whole-time Director) 

DIN : 00519403 

Place : Dahej Anita U. Sanghavi Beena Khandelwal 

Date : May 21, 2025 (Chief Financial Officer) (Company Secretary) 

Dahej, May 21, 2025 M. No. A69067 
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NIKHIL ADHESIVES LIMITED 

CIN : L51900MH1986PLC041062 

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March, 2025 

CORPORATE INFORMATION 

Nikhil Adhesives Ltd (“the Company”) a Public Limited Company having CIN: L51900MH1986PLC041062 incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956, is listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange. The 

Company is mainly engaged in the business of manufacturing various types of polymer emulsions and adhesives that are used for different applications. The Company has five manufacturing units located 

at Dahanu (Maharashtra), Silvassa (Dadra Nagar Haveli), Dahej (Gujarat), Una (Himachal Pradesh) and at Tumkur (Banglore). The company is also engaged In the business of trading in chemicals. 

1. BASIS OF PREPARATION, MEASUREMENT, KEY ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

1.1 Basis of Preparation 

1.1.1 These IND AS financial statements (hereinafter referred to as ‘Financial Statements’) of the Company are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as notified by Ministry of 

Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended. The financial statements of the Company are 

consistently prepared and presented under historical cost convention on an accrual basis ijn accordance with Ind AS except for certain financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair values at the 

end of each reporting period, as stated in the accounting policies set out below. 

1.1.2 The Company's functional currency and presentation currency is Indian Rupees (INR) and is rounded off to the nearest lakhs unless otherwise indicated. 

1.1.3 Classification of Assets and Liabilities into Current and Non-Current 

The Company presents its assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current / non-current classification. 

A) An asset is treated as current when it is: 

a} expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle; 

b) held primarily for the purpose of trading; 

c) expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or 

d) cashorcash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period. 

All other assets are classified as non-current. 

B) A liability is treated as current when : 

a) itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle; 

b) itis held primarily for the purpose of trading; 

c) itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or 

d) there is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period. 

All other liabilities are classified as non-current. 

1.2 Use of judgements, estimates and assumptions 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles of Ind AS requires management of the Company to make judgements, estimates and assumptions 

that affect the reported amount of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosures of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and 

estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment in the future periods in the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected, Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on 

an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and future periods are affected. 

The Company uses the following critical accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions in preparation of the financial statements: 

a) Useful life of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets: 

The Company has estimated useful life of the Property Plant and Equipment as specified in Schedule Ii to the Companies Act, 2013. However the actual useful life for individual equipments could turn out 

to be different, there could be technology changes, breakdown, unexpected failure leading to impairment or complete discard. Alternately the equipment may continue to provide useful service well 

beyond the useful life assumed. The Company reviews the useful life of property plant and equipment at the end of each reporting period. 

b) Fair value measurement of financial instruments: 

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet. 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is 

based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: 

- In the principal market for the asset or liability, 

or 

- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. 

In estimating the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities, the Company uses market observable data to the extent available. Where such Level 1 inputs are not available, the Company 

establishes appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment 

is required in establishing fair values. Judgments include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair 

value of financial instruments. 

c) Impairment of financial and non-financial assets: 

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value 

less costs of disposal calculation is based on available data for similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a 

discounted future cashflows model. The recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the discounted future cashflows model as well as the expected future cash-inflows and the growth 

rate used. 

d) Taxes: 

The Company's tax jurisdiction is India. Significant judgements are involved in estimating budgeted profits for the purpose of paying advance tax, determining the provision for income taxes, including 

amount expected to be paid/recovered for uncertain tax positions. Significant management judgement is also required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon 

the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with Ttuture tax planning strategies, including estimates of temporary differences reversing on account of available benefits from the 

Income Tax Act, 1961. 

e) Defined benefit plans: 

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using acturial valuations. An acturial valuation involves making various assumptions that may 

differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases, attrition rate and mortality rates, Due to the complexities involved in the 

valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. 

f) Provisions: 

The Company makes provision for gratuity based on report received from the independent actuary. These valuation reports use complex valuation models using not only the inputs provided by the 

Company but also various other economic variables. Considerable judgement is involved in the process. 

g) Contingencies: 

A provision is recognised when an enterprise has a present obligation as a result of past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation in respect of which a 

reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligations at the end of the reporting 

period. However the actual liability could be considerably different. 

h) Leases: 

The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of Ind AS 116. Identification of a lease requires significant judgment. The Company uses significant judgment in 

assessing the lease term (including anticipated renewals) and applicable discount rate. 
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements (Contd.) 

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

g) Expected credit loss on trade receivables 

Trade receivables are typically unsecured and are derived from revenue earned from customers. Credit risk has been managed by the Company through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and 

continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business. On account of adoption of Ind AS 109, the Company uses 

expected credit loss model to assess the impairment loss. The Company uses a provision matrix and forward looking information and an assessment of the credit risk over the expected life of the financial 

asset to compute the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables. 

1.3 Property, Plant and Equipment 

Recognition and Measurement : 

ltems of property, plant and equipment, other than freehold land that qualifies as an asset is measured on initial recognition at cost, Following initial recognition, items of property, plant and equipment 

are carried at its cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Freehold land is carried at cost and is not depreciated. 

The cost of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment comprises of its purchase price including taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from tax authorities), duties, freight and other directly 

attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. 

When significant parts of the Property, Plant and Equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company derecognises the replaced part, and recognises the new part with its own associated 

useful life and depreciated accordingly. When a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are 

satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.as incurred. Expenses directly attributable to new manufacturing facility during its construction period 

are capitalized. 

Cost of Software directly identified with hardware is recognised along with the cost of hardware. 

Stores and spares which meet the definition of Property, Plant and Equipment and satisfy recognition criteria of Ind AS 16 are capitalised as Property, Plant and Equipment. 

Depreciation 

Depreciation on the Property, Plant and Equipment is provided over the useful life of assets as specified in Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013 using straight line method. Property, Plant and 

Equipment which are added / disposed off during the year, depreciation is provided on pro rata basis with reference to the month of addition / deletion. 

In line with the provisions of Schedule Il of the Companies Act 2013, the Company depreciates significant components of the main asset (which have different useful lives as compared to the main asset) 
based on the individual useful life of those components. Useful life for such components has been assessed based on the historical experience and internal technical inputs, The estimated useful lives of 

the assets are as follows: 

Asset Block Useful life 

Buildings 30 - 60 years 

Office equipments 5 years 

Plant & Machinery 10 years-20 years 

Furniture & Fixtures 10 years 

Lease Improvements Over the lease term 

Vehicles % years 

Computers 3 years 

Based on technical evaluation of useful life by the Management, it believes that the useful lives as given above best represent the period over which the Management expects to use these assets. Hence, 

the useful lives for these assets Is different from the useful lives as prescribed under Part C of Schedule I! of the Companies Act, 2013. The residual value of Property, Plant & Equipment is considered at % 

Nil as the realisable value at the end of useful life is not expected to be significant. 

Derecognition 

An item of Property, Plant and Equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use. Any gain or loss 

arising on derecognition of the asset is included in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised. 

Government Grant 

Government grants or subsidies received in respect of the acquisition, construction, or development of fixed assets are accounted for in accordance with Ind AS 20 — Accounting for Government Grants 

and Disclosure of Government Assistance. 

Such grants are deducted from the gross carrying amount of the related asset at the time of initial recognition. The net cost (i.e., cost of the asset less the amount of government prant) is depreciated over 

the useful life of the asset in accordance with the Company's depreciation policy. 

Where the grant is received after the asset has been capitalized, it is adjusted against the carrying amount of the asset in the period in which it becomes receivable or received. 

lf the grant becomes refundable due to non-compliance with conditions attached, the refund is adjusted to the carrying amount of the asset and future depreciation is revised prospectively. 

Capital Work-in-progress and Advances 

Capital work-in-progress includes cost of Property, Plant and Equipment which are not ready for their intended use, Advances given towards acquisition of Property Plant and Equipment are disclosed as 

Other Non Current Assets. 

1.4 Intangible Assets 

Recognition and Measurement 

Intangible Assets are recognised only if they are separately identifiable and the Company expects to receive future economic benefits arising out of them. intangible Assets are stated at cost of acquisition 

net of recoverable taxes less accumulated amortisation/ depietion and impairment loss, if any. The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing costs, and any cost directly attributable to bringing the asset 

to its working condition for the intended use. 

Amortisation 

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised on straight line basis over their useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. 

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at each year end. The amortised expense on intangible assets with finite lives and 

impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives, are not 

amortised, but are tested for impairment annually. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful 

life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis. The impairment loss on intangible assets with indefinite life Is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Derecognition 

The carrying amount of an intangible asset is derecognized on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an 

intangible asset is measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the intangible asset and is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is 

derecognized.
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1.5 Impairment of non — financial assets 

At each Balance Sheet date, the Company assesses whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired and also whether there is an indication of reversal of impairment loss recognised in the 

previous periods. Hf any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset Is required, the Company determines the recoverable amount and impairment loss is recognised when the 

carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, 

An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit's (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, 

unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. 

When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and Is written down to its recoverable amount. 

In assessing the value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and 

1.6 Inventories 

Inventories are valued as under : 

Raw materials, packing material, stores and spares are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value, However, materials and other items held for use in the production of inventories are not written 

down below cost if the finished products in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above manufacturing cost. Costs are ascertained on First In First Out (FIFO) basis, Costs includes 

cost of purchase and other cost incurred in bringing each product to its present Jocation and condition. 

Stock in process is valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. 

Finished goods (including in transit) are valued at cost or net realisable value whichever is lower. Cost for this purpose includes direct materials, direct labour utilities, other variable direct costs and 

manufacturing overheads, based on the normal operating capacity and depreciation. 

1.7 Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and Cash Equivalents in the Balance Sheet comprise cash at banks, cash on hand, balances in current accounts and short-term deposits with original maturities of three months or less than three 

Bank Balances other than above 

Dividend escrow account balances, deposits with banks as margin money for guarantees issued by the banks, deposits kept as security deposits for statutory authorities are accounted as bank balances 

other than Cash and Cash equivalents. 

Cash Flow Statement 

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature,any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash 

receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows, The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated. 

1.8 Financial Instruments 

A financial instrument is a contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. 

A. Financial Assets: 

(i) Initial recognition and measurement : 

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset, except in the case of financial assets not recognised at fair value 

through profit and loss. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed through the Statement of Profit or Loss. 

(ii) Subsequent measurement: 

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, the Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories: 

(i) The Company's business model for managing the financial asset and 

(ii) The contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset 

Based on the above criteria, the Company classifies its financial assets into following categories: 

(i) Financial assets measured at amortised cost 

(ii) Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) 

(iii) Finnacial assets measured at fair through profit & loss (FVTPL) 

(iii) Financial assets measured at amortised cost : 

Financial assets are measured at amortised cost using effective interest rate method (EIR), if these financial assets are held within a business whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect 

contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding. The losses 

arising from the impairment are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

(iv) Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income : 

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assets are held within a business whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows 

and selling financial assets and the contractual terms give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding. 

(v) Financial assets measured at fair value through profit and loss : 

A financial asset is measured at FVTPL unless it is measured at amortised cost or at FVTOCI as explained above.This is a residual category applied to all other Financial assets other than Investments which 

are measured at FVTOCI. Such financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value at each reporting date, Fair value changes are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Equity Instruments 

All equity investments within the scope of Ind-AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company 

decides to classify the same either as at FVTOCI or FVTPL. The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable. 

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the Other Comprehensive Income (OCI). There is 

no recycling of the amounts from OCI to profit and loss, even on sale of investment. 

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the profit and loss. 

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements (Contd.) 

(vi) Derecognition of financial assets : 

A financial asset is derecognised only when: 

i. the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset have expired contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. 

li. Where the entity has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial 

asset is derecognised. Where the entity has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is not derecognised. 

lil. Where the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognised if the Company has not 

retained control of the financial asset. Where the Company retains control of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing involvement in the financial asset. 

B. Impairment of Financial Assets 

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss. 

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), 

discounted at the original effective interest rate. 

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial asset. 12-month ECL are a portion of the lifetime ECL which result from default 

events that are possible within 12 months from the reporting date. 

ECL are measured in a manner that they reflect unbiased and probability weighted amounts determined by a range of outcomes, taking into account the time value of money and other reasonable 

information available as a result of past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions. 

As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to measure lifetime ECL on its portfolio of trade receivables. The provision matrix ls prepared based on historically observed default rates 

over the expected life of trade receivables and is adjusted for forward looking estimates. At each reporting date, the historically observed default rates and changes in the forward-looking estimates are 

updated. 

ECL allowance recognised (or reversed) during the period is recognized as income/ expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss under the head ‘Other expenses’. 
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C. Financial Liabilities 

(i) Classification : 

The Company classifies all financial liabilities as subsequently measured at amortised cost, except for financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss. Such liabilities, including derivatives that are 

liabilities, shall be subsequently measured at fair value. 

(ii) Initial recognition and measurement : 

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value, in the case of loans, borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. Financial liabilities include trade and other payables, 

loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts and derivative financial instruments. 

(iii) Subsequent measurement : 

All financial liabilities are re-measured at fair value through statement of profit and loss and include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair 

value through statement of profit and loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. 

(iv) Loans and borrowings : 

Interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss when the 

liabilities are derecognised as well as through EIR amortisation process. The EIR amortisation is included as finance cost in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

(v) Derecognition of financial liabilities : 

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability Is discharged or canceled or expires, When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on 

substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a 

new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

(vi) Derivative financial instruments : 

The Company uses derivative financial instruments such as forward currency contracts and options to hedge its foreign currency risks. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognized at fair 

value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. The gain or loss in the fair values is taken to Statement of Profit and Loss at the end of 

every financial year. Profit or loss on cancellations / renewals of forward contracts and options are recognised as income or expense of the financial year. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when 

the fair value is positive and financial liabilities when the fair value is negative. 

1.9 Fair value measurement 

The Company measures certain financial assets and financial liabilities including derivatives and defined benefit plans at fair value. 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement Is 

based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: 

{a) In the principal market for the asset or liability; or 

(b) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability 

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their best 

economic interest. 

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the Financial Statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy that categorizes into three levels, described as follows, the 

inputs to valuation techniques used to measure value. The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 inputs) and the lowest 

priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 inputs). 

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 

Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly 

Level 3 — Inputs that are unobservable for the asset or liability. 

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the Financial Statements at fair value on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers 

have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization at the end of each reporting period and discloses the same. 

1.10 Borrowing cost 

Borrowing costs, if any, directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are 

capitalized. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. 

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds, Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an 

adjustment to the borrowing costs. 

1.11 Provisions, Contingent liabilities, Contingent Assets 

4 provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event and it Is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation In respect of which a 

reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligations at the end of the reporting 

period. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting Is 

used, the changes in the provision due to the passage of time are recognised as a finance cost. 

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in the case of : 

(a) a present obligation arising from the past events, when it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; 

(b) a present obligation arising from the past events, when no reliable estimate is possible; 

(c) a possible obligation arising from past events, unless the probability of outflow of resources is remote. 

Contingent assets are not recognised but disclosed in the financial statements when an inflow of economic benefit is probable. 

1.12 Employee Benefits 

Employee benefits include Provident Fund, Gratuity Fund, and Compensated Leave. 

(i) Provident Fund : 

The Company contributes to a recognised provident fund which is a defined contribution scheme. The contributions are accounted for on an accrual basis and recognised in the Statement of Profit and 

Loss. 

(ii) Gratuity : 

The employees of the Company are eligible for gratuity in accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, and is a Defined Employee Benefit. The above benefit is not funded but provision is made in the 

accounts. The Company's net obligation in respect of the gratuity benefit is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that the employees have earned in return for their service in the current 

and prior periods, that benefit is discounted to determine its present value. The present value of the obligation under such benefit plans is determined based on actuarial valuation using the Projected 

Unit Credit Method which recognises each period of service that give rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to built up the final obligation. The 

obligation is measured at present values of estimated future cash flows. The discounted rates used for determining the present value are based on the market yields on Government Securities as at the 

balance sheet date. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 
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(iii) Compensated Leave : 

Unutilised leave of staff lapses as at the year end and is not encashable. Accordingly, no provision is made for compensated absences. 

1.13 Revenue Recognition 

Sale of Goods : 

Revenue from sale of products is recognised when the control on the goods transferred to the customer. The performance bifurcation in case of sale of product is satisfied at a point of time i.e. when the 

material is shipped to the customer or on delivery to the customer,as may be specified in the contract. Gross sales measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and are net of 

returns and discounts. 

Dividend Income : 

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive is established and there is a reasonable certainty of its collection. 

Contract Revenue : 

Revenue from goods manufactured under contractual arrangement is recognised on completion of the contractual performance. 

Interest Income : 

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest rate method. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial 

asset to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial 

instruments (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit loss. 

Insurance compensation : 

Compensation in respect of insurance claims is recognised on acceptance basis or when there is reasonable certainty that the ultimate collection will be made. 

Others: 

Income in respect of other claims and commissions are measured at fair value and recognised when there is reasonable certainty that the ultimate collection will be made. 

1.14 Income Taxes 

Income tax expenses comprise current tax expenses and the net change in the deferred tax asset or liabilities during the year, Current and Deferred tax are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss, 

except when they relate to items that are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in Other Comprehensive Income 

or directly in equity respectively. 

Current Tax : 

Current tax is the amount of income taxes payable in respect of taxable profit for a period. 

Current tax is measured using tax rates that have been enacted by the end of reporting period for the amounts expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. 

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretations and establishes provisions where appropriate. 

Deferred Tax : 

Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet approach. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for deductible and taxable temporary differences arising between the tax base of assets and 

liabilities and their carrying amount. 

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences. 

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it Is 

probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised. 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the 

deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow 

the deferred tax assets to be recovered. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset /s realised or liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been 

enacted or substantially enacted at the reporting date. 

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity 

and the same taxation authority, 

Presentation of current and deferred tax: 

Current and deferred tax are recognized as income or an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except when they relate to items that are recognized in Other Comprehensive Income, in which case, 

the current and deferred tax income/ expense are recognized in Other Comprehensive Income. 

The Company offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities, where it has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and where it intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize 

the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. In case of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities, the same are offset if the Company has a legally enforceable right to set off corresponding current 

tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the Company. 

As per the Appendix to Ind AS 12, the Company needs to assess whether it is probable that a tax authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment used or a treatment which is being proposed to be used in 

its income tax filings. 

1.15 Earnings per Share 

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit after tax or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the 

period. 

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the profit or loss for the period attributable to the equity shareholders and the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during 

the period is adjusted to take into account: 

¢ The after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity shares, and 

« Weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive 

potential equity shares. 

1.16 Segment Reporting 

The operating segments have been identified on the basis of nature of products and same are accordingly evaluated by the Management of the Company. Company's operating segments are 

‘Manufacturing of Adhesives & Emulsions’ and ‘Trading in Chemicals & Others’. Company accordingly reports its financials under two segments i.e. Manufacturing of Adhesives & Emulsions and Trading in 

Chemicals & Others. 

1.17 Leases 

The Company, at the inception of a contract, assesses whether the contract is a lease or not lease, A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified 

asset for a time in exchange for a consideration. This policy has been applied to contracts existing and entered into on or after 1st April 2019. 

The Company's lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for office units in a building. The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a 

lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an 

identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset (ii) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the 

period of the lease and (iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset. 

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset ("ROU") and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with 

a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line 

basis aver the term of the lease. Certain Jease arrangements includes the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options 

when it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised. The right-of-use assets are initially recognised at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments 

made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment 

losses. 

83



ey 7 7 7 7 7 ae 
NIKHIL 
ADRES WES LTD. 

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements (Contd.) 

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset, Right of use assets are evaluated for 

recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher 

of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cashflows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In 

such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs. 

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily 

determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these leases. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the 

Company changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option. Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments 

have been classified as financing cash flows. 

The Company recognizes the amount of the re-measurement of lease liability due to reassessment/ modification as an adjustment to the ROU and statement of profit and loss depending upon the nature 

of reassessment/modification. However, lease modification is accounted as separate lease if the modification increases the scope of the lease by adding the right to use one or more underlying assets and 

the consideration for lease increases by an amount commensurate with stand-alone price for the increase in the scope. 

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been classified as financing cash flows. 

1.18 Foreign exchange transactions 

a) Functional and presentation currency 

The standalone financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (NR), which is entity's functional and presentation currency. 

b) Transactions and Balances 

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency, for initial recognition, using the exchange rates at the date of transactions. 

All foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the exchange rates on the reporting date. Exchange differnces arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are 

recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent of exchange differences which are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on foreign currency borrowings that aree directly 

attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets which are capitalized as cost of assets. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not 

retranslated. 

1.19 Capital Work-in-Progress 

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised impairment loss. Cost includes professional fees and, for qualifying 

assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Company's accounting policy. Such properties are classified and capitalised to the appropriate categories of Property, Plant and Equipment 

when completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other property assets, commences when the assets are ready for their intended use. 

1.19 Derivative Financial instruments and hedge accounting 

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts, to hedge its foreign currency risks and interest rate risks respectively. Such derivative financial instruments are 

initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract js entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period. The accounting for 

subsequent changes in fair value depends on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of item being hedged and the type of hedge relationship designated. 

Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative. 

Forward exchange contracts 

The Company enters into forward exchange contracts in nature of currency swaps and interest rate swaps to hedge against its foreign currency exposures relating to the underlying transactions and firm 

commitments. The Company does not enter into any derivative instruments for trading or speculative purposes. 

Exchange differences on such contracts are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which the exchange rates change. Any Profit or Loss arising on cancellation or renewal of such 

forward exchange contract is also recognised as income or expense for the period. 

1.20 Exceptional items 

Exceptional items refer to items of income or expense within the income statement from ordinary activities which are non-recurring and are of such size, nature or incidence that their separate disclosure 

is considered necessary to explain the performance of the Company and to assist users of financial statements in making projections of future financial performance. 

1.21 Events after Reporting date 

Where events occurring after the Balance Sheet date provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period, the impact of such events is adjusted within the financial statements. 

Otherwise, events after the Balance Sheet date of material size or nature are only disclosed. 

1.22 Dividend 

The Company recognises a liability for any dividend declared but not distributed at the end of the reporting period, when the distribution is authorised and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of 

the Company on or before the end of the reporting period. As per Corporate laws in India, a distribution is authorized when it is approved by the shareholders. A corresponding amount is recognized 

directly in equity.
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NOTE 5: INTANGIBLE ASSETS UNDER DEVELOPMENT 

ee 7 YY 7 7 ae 

NIKHIL ADHESIVES LIMITED 

CIN : LS51900MH1986PLC041062 

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March, 2025 

(Amount in Lakhs) 

As at As at 

ii March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024 
Balance at the beginning of the year ‘ 4 

Additions during the year 64.50 - 

Capitalized during the year - - 

Balance at the end of the year 64.50 . 

(i) Ageing schedule of Intangible assets under development is as under: 

(Amount in Lakhs) 

Particular 

Amount in Intangible assets under development for a period of 

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years 
More than 3 

years 

As at 

March 31, 2025 

SAP Modules under acquisition / development / 

Implementation 
64.50 64.50 

NOTE 6: INVESTMENTS 

(Amount in Lakhs) 

Particular nee nem 
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

At Fair value through Other Comprehensive Income 

In quoted equity instruments 

ani (Previous Year : 800) Equity Shares of Bank of 0.86 110 

India of Rs. 10/- each 

Total 0.86 1.10 

NOTE 7 : OTHER NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS 

(Amount in Lakhs) 

Particular eat em 
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Security deposits (other than utility deposits) 43.49 51.72 

Total 43.49 51.72 

NOTE 8 : OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS 

(Amount in Lakhs) 

Particular nina eae 
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Capital Advances 17.05 50.27 

Security deposits - utility 63.37 63.37 

Prepaid rent 10.05 13.75 

Total 90.46 127.38 

NOTE 9 : INVENTORIES (AT LOWER OF COST OR NET REALISABLE VALUE) 

(Amount in Lakhs) 

Particular Sec ali 
March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024 

Raw material and components 6,309.81 4,398.53 

Fuels 3.74 1.63 

Packing materials 353.36 336.58 

Finished goods 2,031.82 2,381.64 

Stock-in-trade (acquired for trading) 111,01 477.70 

Total 8,809.74 7,596.08 

Inventories are hypothecated against secured borrowings (Refer Note 17) 

NIKHIL 
ADRES WES LTD. 

87
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NIKHIL 
ADRES WES LTD. 

NIKHIL ADHESIVES LIMITED 

CIN : LS51900MH1986PLC041062 

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March, 2025 

NOTE 10 : TRADE RECEIVABLES 

(Amount in Lakhs) 

Particulars so eet 
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Unsecured, considered good 11,412.89 10,156.33 

Unsecured, credit impaired 264.51 229,15 

Less: Expected credit loss allowance (350.88) (313.23) 

Total 11,326.51 10,072.25 

(a) Movement in Allowance for doubtful receivables 

(Amount in Lakhs) 

Particulars mean tit 
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Balance at the beginning of the year 313.23 67.95 

Movement in expected credit loss allowance 37.65 245.28 

Balance at the end of the year 350,88 313.23 

(b) The accounts of trade receivables who have not responded to the Company's request for confirmation of balances, are subject to reconciliation, if any, required. 

(c ) There are no unbilled receivables as at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024, 

Trade Receivables ageing schedule (Amount in Lakhs) 
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment kaa 

Particul = - a articulars Less than 6 months 1-2 2-3 More than March 31, 2025 

6 months 1 year years years 3 years 

i T i - idered (i) Undisputed Trade receivables — considere 11,269.23 143.66 ; ; ; 11,412.89 

good 

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables — which 

have significant increase in credit risk 

(iii) Guelsputes Trade Receivables — credit ; 30.51 35.05 ; : 74.56 

impaired 

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables—considered : 

good 

(v) Disputed Trade Receivables — which have 

significant increase in credit risk 

(vi) Dispuced Trade Receivables — credit ; 44.97 31.74 40.06 73.18 189.95 

impaired 

SUB-TOTAL 11,269.23 228.14 66.79 40.06 73.18 11,677.39 

Less: Expected credit loss allowance (79.21) (91.65) (66.79) (40.06) (73.13) (350.88) 

TOTAL 11,190.02 136.49 - : - 11,326.51 

Trade Receivables ageing schedule (Amount in Lakhs) 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment eat 

Particulars Less than 6 months - 1-2 2-3 More than March 31, 2024 

6 months 1 year years years 3 years , 
1 wables — 

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables — considered 10,090.69 65.65 : ; ; 10,156.33 

good 

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables — which 

have significant increase in credit risk 

(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit ; 12.63 0.26 ; : 12.89 

impaired 

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables—considered ; ; : ; 

good 

(v) Disputed Trade Receivables — which have ; ; ; ; ; 

significant increase in credit risk 

(vi) Pispu ted Trade Receivables — credit ; 61.73 61.72 45.90 46.90 916.35 

impaired 

SUB-TOTAL 10,090.69 140.01 61,98 45.90 46.90 10,385.48 

Less: Expected credit loss allowance (70.28) (88.16) (61.98) (45.90) (46.90) (313.23) 

TOTAL 10,020.41 51.85 - - - 10,072.25 

NOTE 11: CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

(Amount in Lakhs) 

As at As at 
Particulars 

March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024 

(i) Balance with Banks : 

(a) Current Accounts 429,52 602.35 

(b) Term Deposits with original maturity of three month or jess - 499.00 

(ii) Cash on hand 2.35 1.55 

Total 431.87 1,102.90 

NOTE 12 : BANK BALANCES OTHER THAN ABOVE 

(Amount in Lakhs) 

As at As at 
Particulars 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Term deposits with more than three months maturity 117.93 73.76 

in earmarked accounts 

- Deposit repayment reserve account 20.35 31.25 

- Unpaid Dividend Account # 5.53 3.46 

Total 143.81 108.48 

# The Company can utilise there balance only towards settlement of unclaimed dividend 
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NOTE 13 : CURRENT TAX ASSETS / (LIABILITIES) 

NIKHIL ADHESIVES LIMITED 

CIN : L51900MH19286PLC041062 

(Amount in Lakhs) 

; As at As at 

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 
Current tax Assets 1,245.14 750.74 

Current tax Liabilities (1,251.99) (736.99) 
Total (6.85) 13.75 

NOTE 14: OTHER CURRENT ASSETS 

(Amount in Lakhs) 

As at As at 

Resticuenls March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 
Unsecured, considered good ; 

Advance to suppliers 435.44 92.19 

Balances with government authorities 15.05 185.85 

Prepaid expenses 114.11 61.91 

Advances recoverable in cash or in kind 22.01 23.37 

Total 586.61 363.32 

NOTE 15 ;: EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL 

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March, 2025 

{Amount in Lakhs) 

Particulars ide oe 
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Authorised 

4,95,00,000 Equity shares of Re. 1/- each (Previous Year: 4,95,00,000 Equity shares of Re. 1/- each) 495.00: 495.00 

50,000 (50,000) 8% Preference shares of Rs. 10/- each 5.00 5.00 

Issued 

4.55,43,000 Equity shares of Re. 1/- each (Previous Year: 4,59,43.000 Equity shares of Re. 1/- each) 459.43 4595.43 

Subscribed and fully paid up 

4,59,43,000 Equity shares of Re. 1/- each (Previous Year: 4,59,43,000 Equity shares of Re. 1/- each) 459.43 459.43 

Add : Forfeited shares account 1,07 1.07 

Total 460.50 460.50 

{a) Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year: 

(Amount in Lakhs) 

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2074 
Particulars 

No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount 

At the beginning of the year 4,59,43,000 459.43 4,59,43,000 459.43 

Outstanding at the end of the year 4,59,.43,000 459.43 4.59,43,000 459.43 

(b) Terms/rights attached to equity shares: 

The Company has one class of Equity shares having a par value of Re. 1/- per share. Each shareholder is eligible for 1 vote per share held. The dividend if any, proposed by 

the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend, 

During the year ended March 31, 2025, the Company has paid fina! dividend of Rs. 0.2/- per Equity Share of face value of Rs. 1/- each ageregating to Rs 92.05 Lakhs. 

NIKHIL ADHESIVES LIMITED 

CIN : L51900MH1986PLC041062 

(c) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company : 

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March, 2025 

(Amount in Lakhs) 

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 
Name of Shareholder 

No. of Shares % holding No. of Shares % holding 

Equity shares of Rs. 1/- each fully paid : 

Vasantben J. Sanghavi - 0.00% 25,33,000 5.51% 

Mrunalini R. Sanghavi 47,61,130 10.36% 47,61,130 10.36% 

Rekha T. Sanghavi 48 46,730 10.55% 46,46,/30 10.55% 

Vasant Polymers & Chemicals Private Limited 50,36,000 10.96% 50,36,000 10.96% 

Anita Umesh Sanghavi 39,21,240 8.54% 39,21,240 8.54% 

(d) Disclosure of Shareholding of Promoters 

(Amount in Lakhs) 

n 

snares ne Oy pera = es the garrett year As at March 31, 2024 me Chane curing the 
Promoter Name year 

No. of shares % of total shares No. of shares % of total shares 

Vasantben Jayantilal Sanghavi . 0.00% 25,33,000 5.51% (0.06) 

Rekha Tarak Sanghavi 48,46,730 10.55% 43,465,730 10.55% - 

Mrunalin| Rajendra Sanghavi 47,61,130 10.36% 47,61,130 10.36% 

Anita Umesh Sanghavi 39,21,240 8.54% 39,21,240 8.54% 

Rajendra Jayantilal Sanghavi 11,97,000 2.61% 11,97,000 2.61% - 

Tarak Jayantilal Sanghavi 11,24,900 2.45% 11,24,900 2.45% = 

Umesh Jayantilal Shanghavi 9,535,400 2.08% 953,400 2.08% 

Nikhil Umesh Sanghavi 13,74,450 2.99% 8,67,850 1.89% 0.01 

Hemal Umesh Sanghavi 13,64,450 2.97% 8,57,850 1.B/% 0.01 

Rajendra Jayantilal Sanghavi HUF 5,091,000 1.20% 5,291,000 1.20% = 

Umesh Jayantilal Sanghavi HUF 5,47,000 1.19% 5,47,000 1.19% 

Tarak Jayantilal Sanghavi HUF 535,500 1.17% 5,35,500 1.17% 

Avni Vinit Bhuva 8,27,300 1.80% 8,27,300 1.80% - 

Ami Tarak Sanghavi 8,286,300 1.80% 3,21,700 0.70% 0.01 

Tulsi Rajendra Sanghavi 8,27,300 1.80% 3,20,700 0.70% 0.01 

Janaki Tarak Sanghavi 8,28,300 1.80% §,28,300 1.80% 

Ashok Jayantilal Sanghavi 800 0.00% 800 0.00% - 

Payal Ashok Sanghavi 7,000 0.02% 7,000 0.02% 

Sagar Ashok Sanghavi 5,11,300 111% 4,700 0.01% 0.01 

Ashok Jayantilal San gha vi HUF 3,000 0.01% 3,000 0.01% 

Total 2,50,10,100 54.44% 2,50,10,100 54.44%, 

{e) Details of forfeited shares : 

{Amount in Lakhs) 

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 
Class of shares 

No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount 

Equity shares 2,13,200 1.07 2,13,200 1.07 

NIKHIL 
ADRES WES LTD.
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NIKHIL ADHESIVES LIMITED 
CIN : L51900MH1986PLC041062 

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March, 2025 

NOTE 16 : OTHER EQUITY 

(Amount in Lakhs) 

Particulars spool As at 
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Capital Reserve 

Balance at the beginning of the year 4.00 4.00 

Addition during the year - 

Deductions during the year - - 

Balance at the end of the year 4.00 4,00 

Securities premium 

Balance at the beginning of the year 1,500.00 1,500.00 

Addition during the year - 

Deductions during the year - - 

Balance at the end of the year 1,500.00 1,500.00 

Retained Earnings 

Balance at the beginning of the year 8,814.72 7,581.53 

Profit/(Loss) for the year 1,685.94 1,325.07 

Dividend paid to equity shareholders (92.05) (91.89) 

Balance at the end of the year 10,408.61 8,814.72 

General Reserve 

Balance at the beginning of the year 642.87 642.87 

Addition during the year - - 

Deductions during the year - . 

Balance at the end of the year 642.87 642.87 

Other Comprehensive Income 

Balance at the beginning of the year (23.33) (22.12) 

Movement in other comprehensive income (net) (15.06) (1.20) 

Balance at the end of the year (38.39) (23.33) 

Total Other Equity 12,517.09 10,938.27 

Nature and purpose of reserve 

(a) Capital Reserve 

The Capital reserve represents the amount recognised long back upon takeover of a running manufacturing unit. 

(b) Securities premium 

Securities Premium reserves is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve can be utilized only for limited purposes such 

as issuance of bonus shares, writing off the preliminary expenses in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. 

(c) Retained earnings 

Retained earnings are the profits that the Company has earned till date, less any transfers to general reserve, dividends or other 

distributions paid to shareholders. 

(d) General reserve 

Under the erstwhile Companies Act, 1956, general reserve was created through an annual transfer of net income at a specified 

percentage in accordance with applicable regulations. Consequent to introduction of Companies Act, 2013, the requirement to 

mandatorily transfer a specified percentage of the net profit to general reserve has been withdrawn. However, the amount previously 

transferred to the general reserve can be utilized only in accordance with the specific requirements of Companies Act, 2013. 

(e) Other comprehensive income 

Other comprehensive loss of Rs. 15,07 lakhs consists of : 

(i) Remeasurement loss on employees defined benefit expenses of Rs. 19.81 lakhs and deferred tax charge 

thereon of Rs. 4.99 Lakhs 

(ii) Fair value loss arising out of change in fair value of investment in equity shares of Rs. 0.24 lakhs 
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NIKHIL ADHESIVES LIMITED 

CIN : L51900MH1986PLC041062 

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March, 2025 

NOTE 17 : NON CURRENT BORROWINGS 

(Amount in Lakhs) 

Particulars nae maa 
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Secured : 

From banks : 

Vehicle finance 4.30 9.70 

Term loans 1,169.29 1,651.25 

Total 1,173.59 1,660.95 

Unsecured : 

Deferred payment liabilities 

Sales tax deferral 5.53 5.53 

Deposits 

From shareholders 1,304.37 862.00 

Total 1,309.90 867.53 

Grand total 2,483.49 2,528.48 

(a) Details of security and terms of repayment for secured long term borrowings: 

(Amount in Lakhs) 

As at As at 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Security and terms of repayment as 

Particulars at 

March 31. 2025 

HDFC Bank Ltd 

Term Loan Ill (a) Secured against first charge on 

present and future movable and 68.65 139.48 

immovable fixed assets of the plant 

at Dahej. 

(b) Repayable in 20 monthly 

installments, last installment being 

due in Nov 2026. 

Term Loan IV (a) Secured against first charge on 

present and future movable and 103.80 170.95 

immovable fixed assets of the plant 

at Dahej. 

(b) Repayable in 27 monthly 

installments, last installment being 

due in June 2027. 
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NIKHIL ADHESIVES LIMITED 

CIN : L51900MH1986PLC041062 

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March, 2025 

J 
NIKHIL 
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(Amount in Lakhs) 

Term Loan IV (a) Secured against first charge on 

present and future movable and 

immovable fixed assets of the plant 

at Dahej. 

(b) Repayable in 30 monthly 

installments, last installment being 

due in September 2027. 

300.00 500.00 

Term Loan V (a) Secured against first charge on 

present and future movable and 

immovable fixed assets of the plant 

at Dahej. 

(b) Repayable in 36 monthly 

installments, last installment being 

due in June 2028. 

696.84 840,81 

Total 1,169.28 1,651.25 

HDFC Bank 

Vehicle - Term Loan (a) Secured against hypothecation of 

the vehicle financed. 

(b) Repayable in 21 monthly 

installments, last installment being 

due in December 2026. 

(c) Rate of Interest is 7.00%. 

4.30 9.70 

Total 4.30 9.70 

(b) Terms of repayment for the unsecured long term borrowings: (Amount in Lakhs) 

Particulars 

Security and terms of repayment as 

at 

March 31, 2025 

As at 

3ist March 2025 

As at 

31st March 2024 

Sales Tax Deferral 

From Shareholders 

Sales tax collected under Package 

scheme of Incentives are payable in 

5 to 6 yearly installments after 10 to 

12 years from the year of collection. 

Deposits repayable as per maturity 

terms not exceeding 3 years. 

3.93 

1,304.37 

ee fe 

662.00 

Total 1,309.90 867.53 

(c) Secured long term borrowings of Rs. 1,169.29 lakhs (Rs. 1,651.25 lakhs) are personally guaranteed by some of the 

directors of the Company. 

(d) Current maturities of Term Loans,Vehicle Finance from Bank and Sales Tax Deferral amounting to Rs. 867.59 lakhs 

(Previous Year Rs. 820.55 lakhs) is disclosed under 'Other Current Liabilities' (Refer Note 22) 
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NIKHIL ADHESIVES LIMITED 

NOTE 18 (A) : LEASE LIABILITIES 

CIN : LS51900MH1986PLC041062 

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March, 2025 

(Amount in Lakhs) 

Non-Current Current 

Particulars As at As at As at As at 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Lease Liabilities 174.61 247.69 106.11 74.55 

Total 174.61 247.69 106.11 74.55 

The aggregate maturities of long term leases, based on contractual undiscounted cash flows are as follows : (Amount in Lakhs) 

' Between1-5 
Particulars Less than 1 year — More than 5 years Total Carrying value 

As at March 31, 2025 

Lease Liabilities 130.92 190.10 - 321.02 280.73 

As at March 31, 2024 

Lease Liabilities 100.64 278.38 - 379.01 322.24 

(b) Movement in Lease Liabilities 

(Amount in Lakhs) 

Particulars FY 2024-25 FY 2023-24 

Opening Balance 322,24 307.42 

Additions 59.19 78.87 

Deletions / Adjustments 8.78 . 

Finance cost 20.94 29.98 

Repayment 70.99 94.04 

Lease rent waived - - 

Closing Balance 280.73 322.24 

(c) Impact on Cash flows on account of Lease Payments 

(Amount in Lakhs) 

Particulars AS a neat 
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Cash out flow of Lease expenses - 

Expense relating to short term leases and low value assets 58.32 78.54 

Expenses relating to long term leases 125.52 94.04 

Expenses relating to lease renewed on short term basis - - 

Total cash outflow for leases 183.84 172.58 

(d) Movement in Right-of-Use (ROU) Assets 

(Amount in Lakhs) 

Particulars Ase Aa at 
March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024 

Right-of-use assets recognized at the beginning of the year 480.53 476.23 

Additions to Right-of-use assets during the year 58,31 86.90 

Deletions to Right-of-use assets during the year (10.40) - 

Depreciation on Right-of-use of assets (106.70) (82.60) 

Total Right-of-Use Assets as at the year end 4271.74 480.53 

(e) Impact of Ind AS 116 on the Statement of Profit and Loss: 

(Amount in Lakhs) 

Particulars emat Agat 
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Interest on lease liabilities 33.11 29.98 

Depreciation of Right-of-use assets 106.70 82.60 

Deferred tax (credit)/charge (4.13) (4.26) 

Impact on the Statement of Profit and Loss 135.68 108.32 
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NIKHIL ADHESIVES LIMITED 

CIN : L51900MH1986PLC041062 

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March, 2025 

NOTE 19 : OTHER NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 

(Amount in Lakhs) 

As at As at 

Particumars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 
Interest accrued but not due on public deposits 59.89 36.99 

Other Payables 90.88 - 

Security Deposits (customers) 112.38 118.04 

Total 263.16 155.03 

NOTE 20 : PROVISIONS 

(Amount in Lakhs) 

: As at As at 

Parties March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 
Provision for employee benefits 

Provision for gratuity 191.97 146.24 

Total 191.97 146.24 

NOTE 21 : DEFERRED TAX (ASSETS) / LIABILITIES (NET) 

Movement in Deferred Tax Balances during the Year ended March 31, 2025 

(Amount in Lakhs) 

Deferred Tax (Asset) / Deferred Tax Deferred Tax Deferred Tax (Asset) / 

Components of Deferred Tax Liability Balance as on | charge/(credit) on Profit | charge/(credit) on Other | Liability Balance as on 

April 01, 2024 & Loss Comprehensive Income March 31, 2025 

Deferred Tax Liabilities/( Assets) - 

- Difference between written down value of fixed 

assets as per the books of accounts and Income 

Tax Act, 1961 616.79 54.87 - 671.66 

~ Borrowing Cost Adjustments for Term Loans 0.35 1.95 - 2,30 

- Provision for gratuity expense allowable in 

income tax when actually paid (45.36) (11.24) (56.60) 

- Expected Credit Loss (21.16) (0.58) (21.74) 

- Difference in Right-of-use asset and lease 

liabilities (9.62) (4.13) - (13.75) 

- Remeasurement of the defined benefit plans 

through OCI (10.54) - (4.99) (15.53) 

Net Deferred Tax Liabilities / (Assets) 530.47 40.87 (4.99) 566.35 

Movement in Deferred Tax Balances during the Year ended March 31, 2024 

(Amount in Lakhs) 

Deferred Tax (Asset) / Deferred Tax Deferred Tax Deferred Tax (Asset) / 

Components of Deferred Tax Liability Balance ason | charge/(credit) on Profit | charge/(credit) on Other | Liability Balance as on 

April 01, 2023 & Loss Comprehensive Income March 31, 2024 

Deferred Tax Liabilities/(Assets) 

- Difference between written down value of fixed 

assets as per the books of accounts and Income 519.21 97.59 - 616.79 

Tax Act, 1961 

~ Borrowing Cost Adjustments for Term Loans 0.60 (0.25) 0.35 

- Provision for gratuity expense allowable in (41.63) (3.73) (45.36) 

income tax when actually paid 

- Expected Credit Loss (17.10) (4.06) (21.16) 

- Difference in Right-of-use asset and lease (5.35) (4.26) (9.62) 

liabilities 

- Remeasurement of the defined benefit plans (9.97) (0.57) (10.54) 

through OCI : 

Net Deferred Tax Liabilities / (Assets) 445.75 85.29 (0.57) 530.47 
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NOTE 22 : CURRENT BORROWINGS 

NIKHIL ADHESIVES LIMITED 

CIN : L51900MH1986PLC041062 

(Amount in Lakhs) 

Particulars AS iat Psat 
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Secured (Refer (a) and (b) below) : 

Cash credit from banks 2,293.29 1,723.63 

Current maturities of Long term debt (secured)* 867.59 820.56 

Total 3,160.88 2,544.19 

(a) Particulars of the secured short-term borrowings: 

(Amount in Lakhs) 

Particulars sa meat 
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Cash Credit from Banks 

1) Bank of India 5.36 - 

2) DBS Bank (Purchase Bill Discounting) 1,771.25 1,186.61 

3) Yes Bank 483.12 527.61 

4) DBS Bank - 9.41 

5) SCB Bank 33.56 : 

Total 2,293.29 1,723.63 

(b) Particulars of security for the secured borrowings 

Nature of Security 

The facilities from the consortium banks viz.Bank of India, Standard Chartered Bank, Yes Bank and DBS Bank are secured against hypothecation 

of stock of raw & packing materials, finished goods, book debts and plant & machineries of the company on pari passu basis. Further they 

are collaterally secured against equitable mortgage of factory blocks at Dahanu. 

Secured borrowings are personally guaranteed by some of the promoters and 

Collaterally secured by way of 

(i) Pledge of 57,28,900 equity shares of Re. 1 each/- held by some promoters of the Company and 

(ii) Equitable mortgage of certain residential flats of the promoter directors in favour of the said banks on pari passu basis, 

During the year, Collateral on shares and mortgage on residential property was released by the Banks on August 02, 2024. 
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NIKHIL ADHESIVES LIMITED 

CIN : L51900MH1986PLC041062 

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March, 2025 

NOTE 23 : TRADE PAYABLES 

(Amount in Lakhs) 

As at As at 
Particulars 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Trade payables 

a) Total outstanding dues of micro & small enterprises 791.24 914.64 

b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro & small enterprises 7,970.40 8,359.53 

Total 8,761.64 9,274.16 

The accounts of trade payables who have not responded to the Company's request for confirmation of balances, are subject to reconciliation, if any, required. 

Trade Payable ageing schedule 

Current reporting period (Amount in Lakhs) 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment# 

Particulars Less than 1 2-3 More than 
1-2 years Total 

year years 3 years 

(i) MSME 791.24 - - - 791.24 

(ii) Others 7,970.40 - - - 7,970.40 

(ii) Disputed dues — MSME - - - - - 

(iv) Disputed dues - Others - - : - : 

TOTAL 8,761.64 - - - 8,761.64 

Previous reporting period (Amount in Lakhs) 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment# 

Particulars Less than 1 2-3 More than 
1-2 years Total 

year years 3 years 

(i) MSME 914.64 - - - 914.64 

(ii) Others 8,359.53 - - : 8,359.53 

(iii) Disputed dues — MSME - - - - 

(iv)Disputed dues - Others - - - - 

TOTAL 9,274.16 - = = 9,274.16 

NOTE 24 : OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 

(Amount in Lakhs) 

Particulars satis niin 
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Other Payables 1,746.77 1,339.90 

Provision for CSR Expenditure (Refer Note ) 

- Ongoing Project 12.95 30.13 

- Other than Ongoing Project - 2.08 

Interest accrued but not due on public deposits 14.64 14,81 

Unclaimed dividend 5.53 3.46 

Total 1,779.89 1,390.39 

NOTE 25 : OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES 

{Amount in Lakhs) 

Particulars wnat nat 
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Liabilities for expenses 474.19 429.29 

Advances from customers 47.39 48.16 

Statutory dues 48.15 32.80 

Total 569.73 510.25 

NOTE 26 : PROVISIONS 

(Amount in Lakhs) 

Particulars ies foto 
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Provision for employee benefits 

Gratuity 10.33 11.40 

Total 10.33 11.40 
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NIKHIL ADHESIVES LIMITED 

CIN : L51900MH1986PLC041062 

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March, 2025 

NOTE 27A: REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS 

(Amount in Lakhs) 

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Sale of products : 

(a) Manufactured goods 53,895.60 51,345.93 

(b) Traded goods 3,595.92 4,294.66 

57,491.52 55,640.59 

Other operating revenues : 

(a) Service charges 893.76 680.67 

(b) Foreign exchange gain 58.09 

(c) Interest Income 9.27 5.98 

(d) Insurance Claim received 42.13 - 

(e) Indenting Income 22.07 33.98 

967.23 778.73 

Revenue from operations 58,458.75 56,419.32 

27B. REVENUE FROM CONTRACT WITH CUSTOMERS AS PER DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS UNDER IND AS 115 

i. Performance obligation 

Revenue from sale of goods measured upon satisfaction of performance obligation which is at a point in time when control of the goods is 

transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of the goods. 

(Amount in Lakhs) 

2 For the year ended For the year ended 
Particulars 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Revenue recognised at point in time 57,564.98 55,/38.65 

Revenue recognised over time 893.76 680.67 

Total 58,458.75 56,419.32 

ii. Disaggregation of revenue 

The Company primarily derives revenue from sale of products from following major segments: 

(Amount in Lakhs) 

: For the year ended For the year ended 
Particulars 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

A. Revenue From Contracts With Customers Disaggregated Based On Nature Of 

Product Or Services 

i. Revenue from Sale of Products 

- Manufacturing sales 53,895.60 51,345.93 
F Trading Sales 3,595.92 4,294.66 

a 57,491.52 55,640.59 

ii, Other Operating Revenue 

- Service charges income 893.76 680.67 

- Other Operating revenue 73.46 98.05 

b 967.23 778.73 

Total (a+b) 58,458.75 56,419.32 

B. Revenue From Contracts With Customers Disaggregated Based On Geography 

>=] 

a >>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>__>=={=[_[{_—_= 

- Home market 57,566.78 54,921.63 

- Export 891.97 1,497.69 

58,458.75 56,419.32 
| 

iii, Contract Liability (advance from customers) 

(Amount in Lakhs) 

Particulars ral aes 
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Advance from Customers 47.39 48.16 
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CIN : LS1900MH1986PLC041062 

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March, 2025 

NOTE 28 : OTHER INCOME 

(Amount in Lakhs) 

Particulars 
For the year ended 

March 31, 2025 

For the year ended 

March 31, 2024 

Other non-operating income : 

(a) Interest Income received 0.50 0.08 

(b) Bad debts recovered - 3.54 

(c) Scrap sales 50.18 31.26 

(d) Other Income 0.77 - 

(e) Gain on sale of asset 5.16 - 

Total 56.61 34.88 

NOTE 29 : COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED 

(Amount in Lakhs) 

For the year ended For the year ended 

nerve March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Raw materials consumed 

Opening stock 4,398.53 5,086.43 

Add : Purchases 40,871.43 37,879.05 

45,269.96 47,965.48 

Less : Closing stock 6,309.81 4,398.53 

Sub total (A) 38,960.15 38,566.95 

Packing materials consumed 

Opening stock 336.58 290.33 

Add : Purchases 3,169.26 3,623.81 

3,505.84 3,914.15 

Less : Closing stock 353.35 336.58 

Sub total (B) 3,152.49 3,577.57 

Total (A)+(B) 42,112.64 42,144.52 

NOTE 30 : PURCHASE OF TRADED GOODS 

(Amount in Lakhs) 

For the year ended For the year ended 

Paucar March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Purchase of stock-in-trade 3,231.32 3,878.20 

Total 3,231.32 3,878.20 

NOTE 31 : CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS AND STOCK-IN-TRADE 

(Amount in Lakhs) 

oo For the year ended For the year ended 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Opening Stock 

(a) Finished goods 2,381.64 2,405.67 

(b) Goods in transit (finished goods) - 7.34 

(c) Stock-in-trade 477.70 625.75 

Sub Total (A) 2,859.34 3,038.76 

Less : Closing Stock 

(a) Finished goods 2,031.82 2,381.64 

(b) Goods in transit (finished goods) - - 

(c) Stock-in-trade 111.01 477.70 

Sub Total (B) 2,142.83 2,859.34 

Total (A)-(B) 716.51 179.42 

J 
NIKHIL 
ADRES WES LTD. 
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NIKHIL ADHESIVES LIMITED 

CIN : L51900MH1986PLC041062 

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March, 2025 

NOTE 32 : EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE 

(Amount in Lakhs) 

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Salaries and wages 2,197.22 1,728.23 

Contributions to provident and other funds 120.03 102.75 

Staff welfare expenses 87.58 74.63 

Total 2,404.83 1,905.61 

NOTE 33 : FINANCE COSTS 

(Amount in Lakhs) 

a For the year ended For the year ended 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Interest on bank borrowings 

- Term Loans 67.24 74.23 

- Cash Credits 202.16 184.07 

Interest on bill discounting 256.95 228.49 

Interest on public deposits 125.76 79.20 

Other borrowing costs 159,80 130.41 

Total 811.91 696.40 

NOTE 34 : DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSE 

(Amount in Lakhs) 

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Depreciation and amortisation expense 686.51 540.06 

Depreciation on Right-of-Use assets 21.14 82.60 

Total 707.65 622.66 

J 
NIKHIL 
ADRES Wes LTD: 

99



ee 7 YY 7 7 ae 

NIKHIL ADHESIVES LIMITED 

CIN : L51900MH1986PLC041062 

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March, 2025 

NOTE 35 : OTHER EXPENSES 
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(Amount in Lakhs) 

partials For the year ended For the year ended 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Stores and spares consumed 146.99 160.10 

Power and fuel 956.45 887.11 

Labour charges 1,022.12 1,050.62 

Rent 63.58 87.11 

Repairs and maintenance : 

- Plant & machinery 104.25 100.73 

- Building 14.94 17.14 

- Others 10.69 9.50 

Printing and stationery 21.64 15.82 

Insurance 75.33 69.70 

Storage charges (net) 208.05 193.65 

Telephone expenses 36.99 35.15 

Travelling and conveyance expenses 433.42 304,48 

Legal and professional charges 223.97 174.67 

Payment to Auditors (Refer Note (i) below) 13.00 13.35 

Sales promotion expenses 1,120.05 661.09 

Transporation and octroi charges 1,478.73 1,188.41 

Brokerage and commission 44,52 27.24 

Donation 7.09 3.11 

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) expenses (Refer Note 46) 45.00 53.99 

Bad debts 21.33 4.81 

Directors sitting fees 8.45 8.75 

Miscellaneous expenses 129.33 100.50 

Expected credit loss 2.29 16.13 

Information Technology Expenses 77.83 51.52 

Foreign Exchange fluctuation loss 22.65 a 

Total 6,288.69 5,234.68 

Note (i) : Payment to Auditors (Amount in Lakhs) 

a For the year ended For the year ended 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

As Auditor 10.00 10.00 

For Limited review reports 2.70 2.70 

For Taxation matters - - 

For Certifications 0.30 0.65 

Total 13.00 13.35 

NOTE 36 : CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 

(Amount in Lakhs) 

ee ee For the year ended For the year ended 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Contingent liabilities not provided for: 

Income Tax demand against the Company not provided for and relating to issues 

of short deduction of tax 16.84 - 

16.84 - 
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NIKHIL ADHESIVES LIMITED 

CIN : L51900MH1986PLC041062 

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March, 2025 

NOTE 37 : EARNINGS PER SHARE 

(Amount in Lakhs) 

‘ For the year ended For the year ended 
Particulars 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Net profit after tax available to the equity shareholders 1,685.94 1,325.07 

Weighted average number of equity shares 459,435,000 4,59,43,000 

Basic and diluted earnings per share (FV Re. 1/- each) 3.67 2.88 

NOTE 38 : EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE 

(a) Defined contribution plans: 

The amount recognised as expense in respect of defined contribution plans (Contribution to provident fund & Emplyee state insuance corporation) aggregate to Rs. 83.02 

lakhs (previous year Rs. 68.89 lakhs). 

(b) Retirement Benefit - Gratuity: 

funded but provision is made in the accounts for accrued gratuity under projected unit credit method of actuarial valuation. 

The following table summaries the components of the employee benefit expenses recognised in the Statement of profit and loss and the amount recognised in the 

balance sheet for the gratuity provision made under actuarial method. 

(Amount in Lakhs) 

The employees of the Company are eligible for gratuity in accordance with the payment of gratuity act, and is a defined employee benefit, The above benefit is not 

As at 

31 March 2024 

As at 
Particulars 

31 March 2025 

(a) Charge to statement of profit and loss 

Net employee benefit expenses (recognized in employee benefit expense) 

Current service cost 25.94 21.58 

Interest on defined benefit obligation 11.07 10.47 

(Expected returns on plan assets) - - 

Net actuarial losses / (gains) recognized in the year - - 

Total included in employee benefit expenses 37.01 32.06 

(b) Charge to other comprehensive income 

Net amount recognised in the Other Comprehensive Income for the year - - 

Actuarial (Gains) / Losses 19.82 2.27 

Return on plan assets, excluding amount recognised in net - - 

Total included in other comprehensive income 19.82 2.27 

(c) Balance sheet (Refer note 20 & 26) 

Details of provision on actuarial basis - - 

Fair value of plan assets at the end of the period - - 

Discounted present value of accrued liability as at the year end 

determined as per Actuarial valuation 202,30 157.63 

Amount in balance sheet 202.30 157.63 

(d) Break - up of amount reflected in the Balance Sheet 

Non-current liability (Refer note 20) 191.97 146.24 

Current liability (Refer note 26) 10.33 11.40 

Amount of provision in balance sheet 202.30 157.63 

(e) Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows: 

Liability at the beginning of the year 157.63 142.81 

Interest costs 11.07 10,47 

Current Service Cost 25.94 21.58 

Expeses recognised in OCI 19.82 2.27 

Benefit paid directly by the Company (12.16) (19.51) 

Contribution made - - 

Actuarial (gain) / losses - : 
Liability/(asset) at the end of the year 202.30 157.63 

(f) Principal actuarial assumptions as at the balance sheet date: 

Discount rate 7.21% 7.49% 

Rate of return on plan assets NA NA 

Salary Increase 6.50% 6.50% 

Employee Turnover 7.00% 7.00% 

Indian Assured Lives Mortality 

Mortality (2012-14) (Urban) 

(2) Quantitative sensitivity analysis for the principal assumptions are as follows*: 

Discount rate 

Increase by 1.00% (19.60) (15.23) 

Decrease by 1.00% 23.14 17.98 

Salary Increase 

Increase by 1.00% 18.88 14.72 

Decrease by 1.00% (16.04) (12.51) 

Employee Turnover 

Increase by 1.00% 0.92 1.42 

Decrease by 1.00% (1.08) (1.63) 

* The sensitivity analysis have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the 

end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant. 
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NOTE 39 : SEGMENT REPORTING 

(a) Information about Business Segments for the year ended March 31, 2025 

J 
NIKHIL 
ADRES WES LTD. 

(Amount in Lakhs) 

Particulars A a ee Trading in Chemicals Total 

Revenue 

Sales/income from operations 54,840.76 3,617.99 58,458.75 

Total revenue 54,840.76 3,617.99 58,458.75 

Result 

Segment result (A) 3,764.30 (67.10) 3,697.19 

Unallocated corporate expenses(net) (B) 643.47 

Operating profit (A-B)=C 3,053.72 

Interest expense(net) (D) 811.91 

Income taxes(including deferred tax) (E } 555.87 

Profit from ordinary activities (C-D-E)=F 1,685.94 

Extraordinary items (G) - 

Net profit (F-G) =H 1,685.94 

Other Information 

Segment assets (I) 29,278.70 1,138.83 30,417.53 

Unallocated corporate assets (J) 1,880.21 

Total assets (I+J) = K 32,297.74 

Segment liabilities 10,830.82 - 10,830.82 

Unallocated corporate liabilities 8,489.33 

Total liabilities (L) 19,320.16 

Add: Share capital and reserves (M)} 12,977.59 

Total capital & liabilities (L+M)=N 32,297.74 

Capital expenditure (including capital work in progress) 1,376.19 - 1,376.19 

Intangible assets under development 64.50 - 64.50 

Depreciation 707.65 . 707.65 

Notes: 

1) The Information stated above is in conformity with Indian Accounting Standard 108 "Operating Segment " 

2) The Business segment is the Primary Segment of the Company and there is no geographical segment having differing risk and returns. 

3) To provide more relevant and transparent information to users of the financial statements , certain assets and liabilities have been reclassified from 

manufacturing segment to unallocated segment, certain expenses have been reclassified fram unallocated segment to manufacturing segment. 

Additionally, the corresponding figures for the previous year have been restated to ensure comparability. 

Revenue from individual customer account for more than 10% of the total revenue is as below: 

Particulars 

As at March 31, 2025 

Revenue Contribution 

more than 10% 
Percentage of Revenue 

lin Lakhs) Contribution 

Sale of Goods: 

Customer A 8,771.06 15.26% 

Customer B 9,285.43 16.15% 

Sale of Services: 

Customer A 893.76 100% 
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March, 2025 

(b) Information about Business Segments for the year ended March 31, 2024 

(Amount in Lakhs) 

. wigs saath, pt Trading in Chemicals Total 
Particulars Adhesives & Emulsions 

(Restated) (Restated) 
(Restated) 

Revenue 

Sales/income from operations 52,090.68 4,328.64 56,419.32 

Total revenue 52,090.68 4,328.64 56,419.32 

Result 

Segment result (A) 2,814.08 139.77 2,953.85 

Unallocated corporate expenses(net) (B) 464.74 

Operating profit (A-B)=C 2,489.11 

Interest expense(net) (D) 696.40 

Income taxes(including deferred tax) (E ) 467.64 

Profit from ordinary activities (C-D-E)=F 1,325.07 

Extraordinary items (G) - 

Net profit (F-G) =H 1,325.07 

Other Information 

Sepment assets (I) 26,065.62 1,282.19 27,347.81 

Unallocated corporate assets (J) 2,200.78 

Total assets (l+J) = K 29,548.59 

Segment liabilities 11,168.42 - 11,168.42 

Unallocated corporate liabilities 6,981.40 

Total liabilities (L) 18,149.82 

Add: Share capital and reserves (M) 11,398.76 

Total capital & liabilities (L+M)=N 29,548.59 

Capital expenditure (including capital work in progress) 119.84 - 119.84 

Depreciation 622.66 - 622.66 

Notes: 

1) The Information stated above is in conformity with Indian Accounting Standard 108 "Operating Segment " 

2) The Business segment is the Primary Segment of the Company and there is no geographical segment having differing risk and returns. 

3) To provide more relevant and transparent information to users of the financial statements , certain assets and liabilities have been reclassified from 

manufacturing segment to unallocated segment, certain expenses have been reclassified from unallocated segment to manufacturing segment. 

Additionally, the corresponding figures for the previous year have been restated to ensure comparability. 

Revenue from individual customer account for more than 10% of the total revenue is as below: 

As at March 31, 2024 

Revenue Contribution 
Particulars seaneccunah ates Percentage of Revenue 

(in Lakhs) Contribution 

Sale of Goods: 

Customer A 10,875.73 19.55% 

Customer B 8,627.91 15.51% 

Sale of Services: 

Customer A 680.67 100% 
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31st March, 2025 

Note 40 : Disclosure under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 are provided as under for 

the year 2024-25, to the extent the Company has received intimation from the “Suppliers” regarding their 

(b) 

(c) 

(d) 

(e) 

(f) 

Interest due thereon remaining unpaid 

The amount of interest paid u/s 16 of MSMED Act, along with the amounts of payments 

made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year 

Principal paid beyond the appointed date 

Interest paid in terms of section 16 of the Act 

Interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been 

paid but beyond the appointed day during the period) but without adding interest 

specified under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Act, 2006 

The amount accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting period 

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, 

until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to small enterprise, this 

is required for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure u/s 23 of the Act. 

status under the Act. 

(Amount in Lakhs) 

Particulars Set hese 
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

(a) |Principal amount remaining unpaid at the end of the 791.24 914.64 

Note 41: Disclosure As Per Section 186 of The Companies Act, 2013 

*The disclosures in respect of the amounts payable to such enterprises as at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 has been made in the financial 

statements based on information received and available with the Company. Further in view of the Management, the impact of interest, if any, that 

may be payable in accordance with the provisions of the Act is not expected to be material. The Company has not received any claim for interest 

from any supplier as at the balance sheet date. 

The details of investments made under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 

2014 are as follows : 

Investments (Amount in Lakhs) 

Name of the entity Nature neat eee 
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Bank Of Indi Osh | ti it ank Of India (800 shares) nvestment in equity age 4-40 

shares 
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March, 2025 

NOTE 42 : RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 

Related Party Disclosures as required by IND-AS - 24 ‘Related Party Disclosures' are given below 

(a) Name of the Related Parties and Nature of Relationship 

Sr Name Nature of Relationship 

A | - Directors and Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) 

1 |Umesh J. Sanghavi Managing Director 

2 [Rajendra J, Sanghavi Whole-time Director 

3 | Tarak J. Sanghavi Whole-time Director 

4 |Rabi Mishra Chief Executive Officer & Managing Director (upto June 30, 2023) 

5 |Umesh Shah Chief Financial Officer (upto July 07, 2023) 

6 | Jagdish Balvant Mali Director (w.e.f. August 08, 2024) 

7 {Anita U. Sanghavi Chief Financial Officer 

8 |Dr. Satish Rama Gaonkar Chief Operating Officer (w.e.f. February 01, 2025) 

9 |Kinjal Rathod Company Secretary & Compliance Officer(Upto 31 Mar 2024) 

10 |Beena Khandelwal Company Secretary (w.e.f. May 22, 2024) 

B | - Relatives of Directors or Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) 

1 |Vasantben Jayantilal Sanghavi Mother of Promoter Director 

2 | Nikhil Umesh Sanghavi Son of Promoter Director 

3 | Ashok J. Sanghavi Brother of Promoter Director 

4 | Avni Vinit Bhuva Daughter of Promoter Director 

5 |Ami Tarak Sanghavi Daughter of Promoter Director 

6 |Janaki Tarak Sanghavi Daughter of Promoter Director 

7? |Mrunalini Rajendra Sanghavi Wife of Promoter Director 

8 | Tulsi Rajendra Sanghavi Daughter of Promoter Director 

9 |Sagar Ashok Sanghavi Nephew of Promoter Director 

10 | Payal Ashok Sanghavi Sister-in-law of Promoter Director 

11 |Hemal Umesh Sanghavi Son of Promoter Director 

12 | Rekha Tarak Sanghavi Wife of Promoter Director 

13 [Vaishali Hemal Sanghavi daughter-in-law of Promoter Director 

- Entities where Key Managerial Personnel / Close family members of Key Managerial Personnel have 

c control/significant influence 

1 |Ashok J. Sanghavi HUF HUF of Ashok J. Sanghavi 

2 | Rajendra J. Sanghavi HUF HUF of Rajendra J. Sanghavi 

3 | TarakJ, Sanghavi HUF HUF of Tarak J. Sanghavi 

4 |Umesh J. Sanghavi HUF HUF of Umesh J. Sanghavi 

5 |Zeki Software Solutions Pvt.Ltd Enterprises significantly influenced by relatives of director 

6 |Vajiya Enercon LLP Enterprises significantly influenced by relatives of director 

7 |Green Tree Lifescapes LLP Enterprises significantly influenced by relatives of director 

8 |Green Building LLP Enterprises significantly influenced by relatives of director 

9 |IND + Architects Enterprises significantly influenced by relatives of director 

10 |Vasant Polymers & Chemicals Pvt Ltd Enterprises significantly influenced by relatives of director 

(b) Transaction with Related Parties are as follows : 

Directors and key Relatives of Directors and EES pete Se TES ORY 
; influenced by the Total 

Sr. harticulars managerial personnel key managerial personnel Directors /Relatives /KMP 

March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31, | March 31, | March 31, March 31, | March 31, 

2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024 

1 |Remuneration paid 185.88 123.72 58.21 58.21 - - 244.09 181.93 

la |Umesh J. Sanghavi 45.53 21.53 - - - 45.53 21,53 

lb |Rajendra J. Sanghavi 45.53 21.53 - - - - 45.53 21.53 

ic |Tarak J. Sanghavi 45.53 21.53 - - - 45.53 21.53 

1d |Rabi Mishra - 30.00 - - - 30.00 

lf |Jagdish Balvant Mali 26.02 - - 26.02 - 

ig |Umesh Shah - 17.07 - - 17.07 

ih | Anita U. Sanghavi 14,09 T.22 14.09 7.22 

li | Nikhil U. Sanghavi 45.64 45.64 45.64 45.64 

1j |Ashok J. Sanghavi - - 12.58 12.58 - 12.58 12.58 

1k |Dr. Satish Rama Gaonkar 7.60 - - - - 7.60 - 

1) |Beena Khandelwal 1.58 - - - - 1.58 - 

lm |Kinjal Rathod 4.84 - - 4.84 

2 |Professional Fees 

2a |Anita U. Sanghavi - - 5.87 - - - 5.87 

3 | Annual maintenance and hosting charges 

3a | Zeki Software Solutions Pvt.Ltd 49.20 42.61 49,20 42.61 

4 |Sale of material 

4a |Green Building LLP - - - - 3.53 24.06 3,53 24.06 

4b |Green Tree Lifescapes LLP - - - 4.53 - 4.53 

4c |Vasant Polymers & Chemicals Pvt Ltd - - - 100.21 - 100.21 

5 |Purchase of assets 

5a | Vajiya Enercon LLP - - - 0.63 26.48 0.63 26,48 

6 |Service Charges Paid 

6a | Vajiya Enercon LLP - - 1.07 - 1.07 - 
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(b) Transaction with Related Parties are as follows : 
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(Amount in Lakhs) 

Directors and key Relatives of Directors and key| Enterprises significantly Total 

Sr. Particulars managerial personnel managerial personnel influenced by the Directors 

March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31, | March 31, | March 31, 

2025 2024 2625 2824 2025 2024 2825 2624 
7 |Interest on Public Deposit 

7a |Ami Tarak Sanghavi - . 1.76 - - 1.76 

7b |Janaki Tarak Sanghavi - - 4,50 1.30 4.50 1.30 

7c | Nikhil U. Sanghavi : - 2.39 0.84 - 2.39 0.84 

7d |Hemal Umesh Sanghavi - - 5.72 1.99 5.72 1.99 

7e |Rajendra J. Sanghavi 3.27 3.77 - - 3.27 3.77 

7f |Rajendra J Sanghvi HUF - - . - 0.25 0.25 > 

7g |Rekha Tarak Sanghavi 0.42 - - 0.42 : 

7h | Tarak J Sanghavi 1.91 : - : - 1.91 - 

7i |Tarak J Sanghavi HUF - - - - 0.68 0.68 : 

7j {Anita Umesh Sanghavi 0.36 - - - - - 0.36 - 

7k |Ind + Architects - - ~ - 0.34 0.34 - 

7| {Umesh Sanghavi 14.82 7.61 - - > - 14.82 7.61 

7m |Umesh J Sanghvi HUF - - - 2:42 1,21 2.12 1.21 

7n {Vaishali Hemal Sanghavi - - 0.56 - - - 0.56 - 

7o {Vasant Polymers & Chemical Pvt Ltd - - - - 1.12 1.12 - 

7p |Zeki Software Solutions Pvt Ltd - - - - 1/17 1.17 - 

8 |Dividend paid 

8a {Ami Tarak Sanghavi - - 0.64 0.64 - 0.64 0.64 

8b |Avni Vinti Bhuva - - 1.65 0.72 = - 1.65 0.72 

8c |Anita U. Sanghavi 7.84 6.04 - - - 7.84 6.04 

8d |Ashok J. Sanghavi : - 0.00 0.46 - - 0.00 0.46 

8e |Ashok J. Sanghavi HUF - - . - 0.01 0.01 0.01 0.01 

Sf |Hemal Umesh Sanghavi - - 1.72 1.72 - . 1.72 1,72 

8g [Janaki Tarak Sanghavi - - 1.66 0.64 - - 1.66 0.64 

8h |Mrunalini Rajendra Sanghavi - : 9,52 8.65 : 9.52 8.65 

8) | Nikhil Umesh Sanghavi - - 1.74 1.74 - - 1.74 1.74 

8j |Payal Ashok Sanghavi - : 0.01 0.01 0.01 0.01 

8k |Rajendra J. Sanghavi 2.39 2.39 - - = - 2.39 2.39 

8| |Rajendra J, Sanghavi HUF - - . - 1.10 1.10 1.10 1.10 

8m_ |Rekha Tarak Sanghavi - - 9.69 8.91 - - 9.69 8.91 

8n |Sagar Ashok Sanghavi - - 0.01 0.01 - - 0.01 0.01 

80 |Tarak J. Sanghavi 2.25 2.25 - - . 2.25 2.25 

8p |Tarak J. Sanghavi HUF - - 7 - 1.07 1.07 1.07 1.07 

8q |Tulsi Rajendra Sanghavi - - 0.64 0.64 - 0.64 0.64 

8r |Umesh J. Sanghavi 1.91 1.91 : - 1.91 1.91 

8s |Umesh J. Sanghavi HUF - - - - 1.09 1.09 1.09 1.09 

8t |Vasantben Jayantilal Sanghavi - - 5.07 10.01 - - 5.07 10.01 

8u |Vasant Polymers & Chemicals Pvt. Ltd. - - 10.07 10.07 10.07 10.07 

9 |Public Deposits Accepted 

9a |Anita Umesh Sanghavi 10.50 - - - 10.50 - 

9b |Hemal Sanghavi - - 77,50 45.00 77.50 45.00 

9c |Ind + Architects - - - - 20.00 20.00 - 

9d |Janki Tarak Sanghavi - - 75.50 42.00 - 75.50 42.00 

9e [Nikhil Sanghavi - - 14,00 14.00 - - 14.00 14,00 

9f |Rajendra J Sanghavi 7.00 170.00 ~ - - - 7.00 170.00 

9g |Rajendra J Sanghvi HUF - - - - 5.00 21.00 5.00 21.00 

9h {Rekha Tarak Sanghavi - 42.00 - : 42.00 - 

9 | Tarak J Sanghavi 48.00 - - - - - 48.00 - 

9) |Umesh J Sanghavi 274.50 221.90 - - - - 274.50 221.90 

9k |Umesh J Sanghvi HUF - - - - 2.00 22,30 2.00 22.30 

9| {Vaishali Hemal Sanghavi - - 13.50 - - 13.50 - 

9m |Vasant Polymers & Chemical Pvt Ltd - . - - 107.50 . 107.50 - 

9n |Zeki Software Solutions Pvt Ltd - - - - 20.00 20.00 - 

90 |Ami Tarak Sanghavi - - 66.00 - 66.00 

10 |Public Deposits Repaid 

10a |Hemal Sanghavi - - 113.50 - 113.50 - 

10b |Ind + Architects : 20.00 20.00 - 

10c |Janki Tarak Sanghavi - - 78.00 41.00 - 78.00 41.00 

10d | Nikhil Sanghavi - 24.00 24.00 : 
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10e |Umesh J Sanghavi 231.90 75.00 - 231.90 75.00 

10f |Vasant Polymers & Chemical Pvt Ltd - - - - 102.00 102.00 - 

10g |Ami Tarak Sanghavi - - - 66.00 - - 66.00 

10h |Rajendra J Sanghavi - 140.00 - - - - - 140.00 

10) |Rajendra J Sanghvi HUF - - . - 21.00 - 21.00 

(b) Transaction with Related Parties are as follows : 

(Amount in Lakhs) 

Directors and key Relatives of Directors and key | . PAEEPTISES Sea CAntly 
: ; influenced by the Directors Total 

. managerial personne! managerial personnel ; 
Sr. Particulars /Relatives /KMP 

March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31, | March 31, | March 31, 

2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024 

11 |Outstanding balances : 

(A) Advance for purchase of asset 

- Vajiya Enercon LLP - - " - - 0.20 - 0.20 

(B) Trade Receivables 

- Green Building Lifescapes LLP - - . - 3.21 21,22 3.21 21.22 

- Vasant Polymers & Chemicals Pvt - 3.73 - 3.73 

(C) Trade Payables 

- Zeki Software Solutions Pvt.Ltd. - ~ 12.18 14.63 12.18 14.63 

(D) Public Deposits 

- Anita Umesh Sanghavi 10.50 - - 10.50 - 

- Hemal Sanghavi - - 9.00 45.00 9.00 45.00 

- Nikhil Sanghavi - 4.00 14.00 4.00 14.00 

- Janki Tarak Sanghavi : . 2.50 - - 2.50 

- Rajendra J Sanghavi 37.00 30.00 ~ - - 37.00 30.00 

- Rajendra J Sanghvi HUF - - - 5.00 5.00 - 

- Rekha Tarak Sanghavi - : 42.00 - 42.00 - 

- Tarak J Sanghavi 18.00 18.00 - 

- Tarak J Sanghavi HUF - - - - 30.00 30.00 - 

- Umesh J Sanghavi 189.50 146.90 - 189.50 146.90 

- Umesh J Sanghvi HUF - - - - 24,30 22.30 24.30 22.30 

- Vaishali Hemal Sanghavi - 13.50 - - 13.50 - 

- Vasant Polymers & Chemical Pvt L - - - - 5.50 5.50 - 

- Zeki Software Solutions Pvt Ltd - - - - 20.00 20.00 - 
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NOTE 43 : FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

(A) Categories of financial instruments 

(Amount in Lakhs) 

Particulars nest meat 
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Financial Assets 

Measured at fair value through Profit & Loss (FVTPL) 

Trade Receivables 62.80 64.71 

Measured at fair value through other comprehensive income 

FVOCI 

Investments 0.86 1.10 

Measured at amortised cost 

(a) Trade receivables 11,263.71 10,007.55 

(b) Cash and cash equivalents 431.87 1,102.90 

(c) Bank balances other than above 143.81 108.48 

(d) Other financial assets 43.49 51,72 

Total Financial assets 11,946.54 11,336.44 

Financial Liabilities 

Measured at fair value through Profit & Loss (FVTPL) 

Trade Payables 1,665.97 2,220.28 

Measured at amortised cost 
(a) Trade payables 7,095.68 7,053.88 

(b) Borrowing 5,644.36 5,072.67 

(c) Lease Liabilities 280.73 322.24 

(d) Other financial liabilities 2,043.05 1,545.42 

Total Financial liabilities 16,729.78] 16,214,49 

(B) Financial risk management objectives 

The Company's Corporate Treasury function provides services to the business, co-ordinates access to domestic and international financial markets, monitors and manages 

the financial risks relating to the operations of the Company through internal risk reports which analyse exposures by degree and magnitude of risks. These risks include 

market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company undertakes transactions denominated in foreign currencies; consequently, exposures to exchange rate fluctuations 

arise. Exchange rate exposures are managed within approved policy parameters utilising foreign exchange forward contracts. Compliance with policies and exposure 

limits is a part of Internal Financial Controls. The Company does not enter into or trade in financial instruments, including derivative financial instruments, for speculative 

purposes. 

(C) Market risk 

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three 

types of risks : interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include borrowings, investments, trade payables, trade 

receivables and derivative financial instruments. 

a) Interest Rate Risk 

Interest rate risk arises from movements in interest rates which could have effects on the Company's net income or financial position. Changes in interest rates may cause 

variations in interest income and expenses resulting from interest-bearing assets and liabilities. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates 

relates primarily to the Company's long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates. 

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of loans and borrowings affected. With all other 

variables held constant, the Company's profit before tax is affected through the impact on floating rate long term borrowings, as follows: 

(Amount in Lakhs) 

Year Ended March 31, 2025 Year Ended March 31, 2024 

Particulars Finance cost Finance cost Finance cost Finance cost 

increased by 1% decreased by 1% increased by 1% decreased by 1% 

Increase/(Decrease) in Profit before tax (8.12) 8.12 (6.96) 6.96 

(D) Foreign currency risk management 

(i) Exposure in foreign currency -Hedged 

The Company enters into forward exchange contracts to hedge against its foreign currency exposures relating to the underlying transactions and firm commitments. The 

Company does not enter into anv derivative instruments for trading or speculative purposes. 

The forward exchange contracts used for hedging foreign currency exposure and outstanding as at reporting date are as under : 

(Amount in Lakhs) 

pai nesoiant Indian rupee equivalent 

Currency Number of contracts (in USD) of forward contract 

liability 

Forward contract to buy USD- as at March 31, 2025 22 19.15 1,657.29 

Forward contract to buy USD- as at March 31, 2024 1 8.81 730,82 
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements (Contd.) 

(ii) Exposure in foreign currency -Unhedged 

The foreign currency exposure not hedged As at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 are as under: 

(Amount in Lakhs) 
As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 

Particulars Amount in foreign Amount in foreign 
Amount in rupees Amount in rupees 

currency currency 
Payable in foreign currency exposure (USD) 0.34 29.04 17.81 1,485.58 

(Amount in Lakhs) 

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 

Particulars Amount in foreign ; Amount in foreign 
Amount in rupees Amount in rupees 

currency currency 

Receivable in foreign currency exposure (USD) 0.73 62.80 0.78 64.71 

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis 

The Company is mainly exposed to changes in USD exchange rate. 

The following table details the Company’s sensitivity to a 5% increase and decrease in the % against the relevant foreign currency. The sensitivity analysis includes only 

outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items as tabulated above and adjusts their translation at the period end for 5% change in foreign currency rates. 

This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant. A positive number below indicates an increase in profit before tax or vice-versa. 

(Amount in Lakhs) 

Particulars Year Ended March 31, 2025 Year Ended March 31, 2024 

% strengthens by 5% % weakens by 5% % strengthens by 5% = weakens by 5% 

Impact on Profit / (loss) 

- Financial Assets (3.14) 3.14 (3.24) 3.24 

- Financial Liabilities 83.30 (83.30) 111.08 (111.08) 

(E) Foreign exchange forward contracts 

It is the policy of the Company to enter into foreign exchange forward contracts to cover foreign currency payments (net of receipts) in USD.The Company enters in to 

contracts with terms upto 90 days.The Company's philosophy does not permit any speculative calls on the currency. It is driven by conservatism which guides that we 

follow conventional wisdom by use of Forward contracts In respect of Trade transactions. 

Regulatory Requirements: The Company does alter its hedge strategy in relation to the prevailing regulatory framework.and guidelines that may be issued by RBI, FEDAI 

or ISDA or other regulatory bodies from time to time. 

Mode of taking Cover: Based on the outstanding details of import payable and export receivable (in weekly baskets) the net trade import exposure is arrived at i.e 

imports - exports = net trade exposures.The net trade import exposure arrived at is netted off with the outstanding forward cover as on date. The forward cover deals are 

all backed by actual trade underlines and settlement of these contracts on maturity by actual delivery of the hedged currency for settling the underline hedged trade 

transaction. 

(F) Credit risk management 

Credit risk refers to risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Company. Credit risk arises primarily from financial 

assets such as trade receivables, investment in mutual funds, derivative financial instruments, other balances with banks, loans and other receivables.The Company has 

adopted a policy of only dealing with counterparties that have sufficiently high credit rating. The Company's exposure and credit ratings of its counterparties are 

continuously monitored and the aggregate value of transactions is reasonably spread amongst the counterparties.Credit risk arising from investment in mutual funds, 

derivative financial instruments and other balances with banks is limited and there is no collateral held against these because the counterparties are banks and recognised 

financial institutions with high credit ratings assigned by the international credit rating agencies. 

(G) Liquidity risk management 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet commitments associated with financial instruments that are settled by 

delivering cash or another financial asset. Liquidity risk may result from an inability to sell a financial asset quickly at close to its fair value. The Company has an established 

liquidity risk management framework for managing its short term, medium term and long term funding and liquidity management The Company's exposure to liquidity 

risk arises primarily from mismatches of the maturities of financial assets and liabilities. The Company manages the liquidity risk by maintaining adequate funds in cash 

and cash equivalents. The Company also has adequate credit facilities agreed with banks to ensure that there is sufficient cash to meet all its normal operating 

commitments in a timely and cost effective manner. 

(H) Fair value measurements 

Some of the Company's financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period. This note provides information about those 

assets and the basis of determination of the fair values in respect thereof. 

(i) The following table give details of the financial assets and financial liabilities which are valued at Fair Value 

(Amount in Lakhs) 

Financial Assets Fair value tabs ean Wlorereh Valuation techniques(s) 

/ Financial Liabilities As at As at , and key input(s) 
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Trade payables (imports) 1,665.97 2,220.28 Level 1 Rate published by FEDAI 

Receivables (exports) 62.80 64.71 Level 1 Rate published by FEDAI 

Investments 0.86 1.10 Level 1 As per quoted price 

r 1 
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(ii) The fair value hierarchy: 

Level 1: Valuation based on quoted market price : 

Financial instruments with quoted prices for identical instruments in active markets that the Company can access at the measurement date. 

Level 2: Valuation using observable inputs : 

Financial instruments with quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets or quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in inactive markets and financial 

instruments valued using models where all significant inputs are observable. 

Level 3 : Valuation technique with significant unobservable inputs : 

Financial instruments valued using valuation techniques where one or more significant inputs are unobservable, 

(iii) Financial instruments measured at amortised cost 

The carrying amount of financial assets and financial liabilities measured at armortised cost in the financial statements are a reasonable approximation of their fair values 

since the Company does not anticipate that the carrying amounts would be significantly different from the values that would eventually be received or settled. 

NIKHIL ADHESIVES LIMITED 

CIN : L51900MH1986PLC041062 

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March, 2025 

NOTE 44 : RECONCILIATION OF INCOME TAX 

The Income Tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows: 

(Amount in Lakhs) 

. As at As at 
Particulars 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Profit Before Tax 2,241.82 1,792.71 

Income Tax Rate (%) 25.168% 25.168% 

Income Tax expense 564.22 451.19 

Effect of expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit 16.61 18.80 

Effect of expenses that are deductible in determining taxable profit (67.02) (86.04) 

Income considered separately under other head (1.30) - 

Income taxable under head Capital Gains 0.64 - 

Others 1.85 (1.60) 

TOTAL 515.00 382.35 

Deferred tax 40.87 85.29 

Income tax expense recognised in profit or loss 555.87 467.64 

Income Tax recognised in Other Comprehensive Income 

(Amount in Lakhs) 

. As at As at 
Particulars 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Tax arising on income and expenses recognised in Other Comprehensive Income: 

- income tax (charge)/credit - gain on re-measurement of defined benefit 

obligation 4.99 0.57 

Total Income Tax recognised in Other Comprehensive Income 4.99 0.57 

NOTE 45 : DISCLOSURE UNDER AMENDMENT TO IND AS 7 REGARDING IMPACT OF NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS ON FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 

Effective April 1, 2017 the Company adopted the amendment to Ind AS 7, which requires the Company to provide disclosure that will enable users of 

financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities from financing activities, including changes arising from cash flow and non cash changes. In order to 

meet this disclosure requirement, the reconciliation between the opening and closing balances for liabilities arising from financing activities in the Balance 

Sheet, is as stated below: 

(Amount in Lakhs) 

Foreign Exchange 
; As at As at 

Particulars Cash Flows ain)/loss April 1, 2024 (gain)/ March 31, 2025 
(Non-Cash) 

Long term borrowings 2,528.48 (44.99) - 2,483.49 

Short term borrowings 2,544.19 616.69 - 3,160.88 

Total liabilities from financing activities 5,072.67 571.70 - 5,644.36 

(Amount in Lakhs) 

Foreign Exchange 

Particulars neat Cash Flows "tpaeyods at 
April 1, 2023 g March 31, 2024 

(Non-Cash) 
Long term borrowings 1,591.03 937.45 - 2,528.48 

Short term borrowings 1,576.53 967.66 - 2,544.19 

Total liabilities from financing activities 3,167.56 1,905.11 - 5,072.67 
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CIN : LS1900MH1986PLC041062 

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March, 2025 

NOTE 46 : CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 

As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a Company, meeting the applicability threshold, needs to spend at least 2% of its average net profit for the immediately preceding three 

financial years on corporate social responsibility (CSR), The details of the CSR expenditure required to be incurred and amount spent during the year on the activities/ contributions 

specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act,2013 are given as under: 

(Amount in Lakhs) 

Sr No. paiviculars For the year ended For the year ended 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

1 Gross Amount required to be spent by the company during the year: 50.25 52.42 

Less Set off of excess expenditure of previous Financial Year - 

Net amount required to be spent by the company during the year 50.25 52.42 

2 Amount spent during the year 

Amount spent on Other than Ongoing Project during the year 45.00 16.03 

Amount spent on ongoing project during the year - 4.17 

Amount provided for on- going project - 30.13 

Amount paid against shortfall of previous year 2.08 - 

3 Shortfall/(Excess) at the end of the year # 5.25 2.08 

4 Reason for shortfall For FY 2024-25, the Company] For FY 2023-24, the Company 

has contributed before 31-03-jhas contributed before 31-03- 

2025 its CSR obligation to anj2024 its CSR obligation to an 

intermediary agent (IA). | intermediary agent (VA). 

However, the IA has not utilised] However, the |A has not utilised 

such contribution before 31-03-|such contribution before 31-03- 

2025. 2024. 

5 Nature of CSR activities Purchase of Machinery and Eradicating hunger, promoting 

equipments for use in Hospital |health care, Research Project, 

promoting special education 

among differently abled children 

6 Details of related party transactions, [e.g., contribution to a trust controlled | Not applicable Not applicable 

by the company] in relation to CSR expenditure as per relevant Accounting 

Standard, 

7 Amount of expenditure incurred on : 

(i) Construction/acquisition of any asset 45.00 

(ii) On purposes other than (i) above - 50.33 

(Amount in Lakhs) 

Opening balance| Amount deposited in Amount required to be Amount spent Closing Balance as on 

as on Specified Fund of spent during during the year March 31, 2025 

April 01, 2024 Schedule Vil within 6 the year towards other 

months than on going project 

2.08 2.08 50,25 45.00 5.25 

# The Company shall transfer the unspent amount of Rs. 5.25 lakhs to a Fund specified in Schedule Vil to the Companies Act, 2013 within the prescribed time of six months from the end 

of the current financial year i.e FY 2024-25 as permitted under the second proviso to sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Act. 

Details of Unspent amount under Section 135(5) of Companies Act 2013 in respect of other than on-going project for year ended March 31, 2025 

The Company shall transfer the unspent amount of Rs. 5.25 lakhs to a Fund specified in Schedule Vil to the Companies Act, 2013 within the prescribed time of six months from the end of 

the current financial year i.e FY 2024-25 as permitted under the second proviso to sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Act. 

Details of Unspent amount under Section 135(6) of Companies Act 2013 in respect of ongoing project for the year ended March 31, 2025 

NIKHIL 
ADRES WES LTD. 

(Amount in Lakhs) 

Opening balance as on Amount required to be Amount spent during the year Closing Balance as on 

In separate CSR Unspent spent during the year From Company's In separate CSR 
With Compa F i pany Alc iievainda chipolia proc bank A/c rom separate CSR unspent A/c With Company Unspent A/c# 

30.13 - 30,13 - 19.27 10,86 - 

(Amount in Lakhs) 

: Amount deposited in : 
is) bal A t red to be 

ON ok lit Specified Fund of "aaa ‘ Amount spent Closing Balance as on 

Aprii o1 2023 | Schedule Vil within 6 ra or during the year March 31, 2024 
Pp ’ menti Y 

2.08 2.08 18.12 16.03 2.08 

# The Company has transferred an amount of Rs. 10.86 lakhs to a separate Unspent CSR Account within 30 days from the end of the financial year in accordance with provisions of 

Section 135(6) of the Companies Act 2013 

Details of Unspent amount under Section 135(5) of Companies Act 2013 in respect of other than on-going project for year ended March 31, 2024 

The Company has transferred the unspent amount of Rs. 2.08 lakhs to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Act, 2013 within the prescribed time of six months from the end 

of the previous financial year i.e FY 2023-24 as permitted under the second proviso to sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Act. 

Details of Unspent amount under Section 135(6) of Companies Act 2013 in respect of ongoing project for the year ended March 31, 2024 

{Amount in Lakhs) 

Opening balance as on April 1, 2023 
Amount required to be 

With Company 
In separate CSR Unspent 

spent during the year A/c pe EB ¥ 

Amount spent during the year Closing Balance as on 

From Company's 

bank A/c 
From separate CSR unspent A/c With Company 

In separate CSR 

34.30 4.1/ 30.13 

Unspent A/c 

The Company has transferred an amount of Rs. 30.13 lakhs to a separate Unspent CSR Account within 30 days from the end of the financial year in accordance with provisions of Section 

135(6) of the Companies Act 2013 
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NIKHIL ADHESIVES LIMITED 

CIN : LS1900MH1986PLC041062 

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March, 2025 

NOTE 47 (B) : ADDITIONAL REGULATORY INFORMATION REQUIRED BY SCHEDULE II] OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 

(i) All immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the 

Company) are held in the name of the Company. 

(ii) The Company does not have any benami property held in its name. No proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against the Company 

tor holding benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and the rules made thereunder. 

(iii) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right-of-Use Assets), and Intangible Assets during the year. 

(iv) The Company does not hold any investment property during the year and as at the year end. 

(v) The Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks on the basis of security of 

current assets. The differences between quarterly returns filed with banks and the books of acccount are set out as below: 

(Amount in Lakhs) 

Amount disclosed 

Quarterended | Name of the Bank ManMee of Claret = as per Quarterly Be Per DOORS OF Difference | Reasons for difference 
offered as Security account 

Statements 

= 19,084.49 19,103.20 (18.71) 
June 30, 2024 ee aa 

a2 17,416.61 18,223.66 807.05) Sept 30,2024 | Bank Of india & Acleventeny a _— ~ 
B. Trade Receivables - Refer Reason 1 & 2 

o ineeeniinabaiens (Outstanding upto 90 days) 15,653.24 16,214.06 560.82 
Dec 31, 2024 _ ati 560-42) 

me 19,245.36 18,965.07 280.29 
March 31, 2025 —— —s ; 

Reason 1 

Certain sale invoices that were already discounted, were not included in the statements of trade receivables submitted to the bank as such invoices were 

ineligible to be again offered as security. However, such invoices continued to be reflected in the books of account (unaudited for Q1, Q2 and Q3) in 

accordance with the applicable Indian accounting standards. This has resulted in the value of trade receivables appearing higher in the books as compared to 

the quarterly returns. 

Reason 2 

Due to transactions of sale and purchase with the same party, these reflect both with debit and credit balances. In the quarterly statement submitted to the 

bank, these have been reflected on gross basis (i.e. without deducting credit balances). However, in the books of account (unaudited for Q1, Q2 and Q3) such 

balances have been netted off. 

(vi) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender or government or any government 

authority. 

(vil) There are no transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956. 

(viii) The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period. However, there has 

been a delay in filing the modification of charge with the Registrar of Companies beyond the prescribed time limit. 

(ix) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share permium or any other sources or kind of funds ) to 

any other persons or entities, including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that 

the Intermediary shall: 

* directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on 

behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 

® provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries 

(x) The Company has not received any fund from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding 

(whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall: 

® directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on 

behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 

* provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries 

(xi) The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as 

income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the 

Income Tax Act, 1961). 

(xii) The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the financial year. 

(xiii) There are no loans or advances in the nature of loan granted to promoters, directors, KMPs and the related parties, either severally or jointly 

with any other person. 

(xiv) The Company has not made any investments, provided guarantee or security or granted any advances in the nature of loans, secured or 

unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties during the year. 

(xv) There are no layers to the Company as prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of Act read with the Companies (Restriction on number of 

Layers) Rules. 

(xvi) The Company has not entered into scheme of arrangement during the year. 

ih "| 
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NIKHIL ADHESIVES LIMITED 

CIN : L51900MH1986PLC041062 

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March, 2025 

Note 48 : The Board of Directors have recommended a payment of final dividend of Rs. 0.22/- (Twenty two paise only) per equity share 

of face value of Re.1/- each for the financial year ended March 31, 2025. 

Note 49 : The figures for the previous year have been regrouped or rearranged wherever necessary. 

Note 50: Figures have been rounded off to nearest lakhs. 

Note 51 : The financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2025 were approved for issue by the Board of Directors at 

their meeting held on May 21, 2025. 

As per our attached report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

For Jay Shah & Associates Umesh J. Sanghavi Rajendra J. Sanghavi 

Chartered Accountants (Managing Director) (Whole-time Director) 

Firm Registration No, 135424W DIN : 00491220 DIN : 00245637 

CA Jay A. Shah Tarak J. Sanghavi S. Venketakrishnan 

(Proprietor) (Whole-time Director) (Independent Director) 

Membership No,: 134334 DIN : 00519403 DIN ; 10162796 

Place: Dahej Anita U. Sanghavi Beena Khandelwal 

Date : May 21, 2025 (Chief Financial Officer) (Company Secretary) 

Dahej, May 21, 2025 M. No. A69067 
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